
     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                 
     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun
Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith.
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh.

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate 
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 / 
643147 / 643694
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  

Ein cyf / Our ref:      
Eich cyf / Your ref:      

Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Iau, 15 Hydref 2020

Annwyl Cynghorydd, 

CYNGOR

Cynhelir Cyfarfod  Cyngor yn o bell trwy Skype for Business ar Dydd Mercher, 21 Hydref 2020 am 
15:00.

AGENDA

1. Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau.

2. Datganiadau o fuddiant  
Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 
Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008. 

3. Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion  3 - 18
I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 16/09/2020

4. Derbyn cyhoeddiadau gan y Maer 

5. Derbyn cyhoeddiadau gan y arweinydd 

6. Cyflwyniad Cymoedd I'r Arfordir  & Rhaglen o Gyflwyniadau i'r Dyfodol i'r 
Cyngor 

19 - 20

7. Adroddiad Blynyddol 2019-20 21 - 78

8. Diweddariad Rhaglen Gyfalaf - Chwarter 2 2020-21 79 - 100

9. Adroddiad Gwybodaeth i'w Nodi 101 - 104

10. I dderbyn y cwestiwn canlynol gan:  

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


Cynghorydd A Hussain i’r Aelod Cabinet Cymunedau

Yn y Deyrnas Unedig mae tua 11 biliwn o wet wipes yn cael eu defnyddio bob blwyddyn - 
gan achosi 93% o'r rhwystrau o fewn carthffosydd y Deyrnas Unedig. Yng Nghymru, mae 
Dŵr Cymru ac eraill yn delio â thua 2,000 o garthffosydd wedi’u blocio bob mis, a’r wet 
wipes hyn yw’r prif reswm am hynny.

O wybod bod 90% o’r wet wipes hyn yn cynnwys mwy na ¾ o blastig a gan ein bod yn 
gwneud mor dda gyda'n casgliad gwastraff ailgylchu, oni ddylem ni fel Cyngor fod y cyntaf i 
gyflwyno casgliad ar wahân ar gyfer y wet wipes yma fel unrhyw blastig arall sy’n cael ei 
ddefnyddio unwaith?

11. Materion Brys  
I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 
y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â Rhan 4 (pharagraff 4) o'r 
Rheolau Trefn y Cyngor yn y Cyfansoddiad.

Nodyn: Sylwch: Yn sgil yr angen i gadw pellter cymdeithasol, ni fydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei
gynnal yn ei leoliad arferol. Yn hytrach, bydd hwn yn gyfarfod rhithwir a bydd Aelodau a Swyddogion
yn mynychu o bell. Bydd y cyfarfod yn cael ei recordio i’w ddarlledu ar wefan y Cyngor cyn gynted
ag sy'n ymarferol ar ôl y cyfarfod. Os oes gennych unrhyw gwestiwn am hyn, cysylltwch â
cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01656 643147 / 643148.

Yn ddiffuant
K Watson
Prif Swyddog – Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau Dynol a Rheoleiddio

Dosbarthiad:

Cynghowrwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr
S Aspey
SE Baldwin
TH Beedle
JPD Blundell
NA Burnett
MC Clarke
N Clarke
RJ Collins
HJ David
P Davies
PA Davies
SK Dendy
DK Edwards
J Gebbie
T Giffard
RM Granville
CA Green
DG Howells

A Hussain
RM James
B Jones
M Jones
MJ Kearn
DRW Lewis
JE Lewis
JR McCarthy
D Patel
RL Penhale-Thomas
AA Pucella
JC Radcliffe
KL Rowlands
B Sedgebeer
RMI Shaw
CE Smith
SG Smith
JC Spanswick

RME Stirman
G Thomas
T Thomas
JH Tildesley MBE
E Venables
SR Vidal
MC Voisey
LM Walters
KJ Watts
CA Webster
DBF White
PJ White
A Williams
AJ Williams
HM Williams
JE Williams
RE Young



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MEDI 2020

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y CYNGOR A GYNHALIWYD YN O BELL TRWY SKYPE DYDD 
MERCHER, 16 MEDI 2020, AM 15:00

Presennol

Y Cynghorydd SE Baldwin – Cadeirydd 

TH Beedle JPD Blundell NA Burnett MC Clarke
N Clarke RJ Collins HJ David P Davies
PA Davies SK Dendy DK Edwards J Gebbie
T Giffard RM Granville CA Green DG Howells
A Hussain RM James M Jones DRW Lewis
JE Lewis JR McCarthy D Patel RL Penhale-Thomas
AA Pucella KL Rowlands B Sedgebeer RMI Shaw
CE Smith SG Smith JC Spanswick RME Stirman
G Thomas T Thomas JH Tildesley MBE E Venables
SR Vidal MC Voisey LM Walters KJ Watts
CA Webster DBF White PJ White A Williams
AJ Williams HM Williams JE Williams RE Young

Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb

MJ Kearn a/ac JC Radcliffe

Swyddogion:

Gareth Denning Arweinydd Tîm Polisi
Deborah Exton Dirprwy Bennaeth Cyllid dros dro
Lindsay Harvey Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd
Laura Kinsey Pennaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol Plant
Martin Morgans Pennaeth Gwasanaeth - Perfformiad a Gwasanaethau Partneriaeth
Janine Nightingale Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau
Jonathan Parsons Rheolwr Grŵp Datblygu
Andrew Rees Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd
Zak Shell Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cymdogaeth
Mark Shephard Prif Weithredwr
Nigel Smith Rheolwr Cyllid
Kelly Watson Prif Swyddog – Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau Dynol a Rheoleiddio

428. DATGANIADAU O DDIDDORDEB

Cofnodwyd y datganiadau canlynol o ddiddordeb: 

Nododd Y Cynghorydd PA Davies ddiddordeb personol yn eitem 6 ar yr agenda - 
Cyflwyniad ar Fargen Prifddinas-Rhanbarth Dinas Caerdydd a’r Rhaglen Gyflwyniadau 
i’r Dyfodol i’r Cyngor am fod y Cynghorydd yn adnabod Cadeirydd y Panel Partneriaeth 
Economaidd Ranbarthol a Buddsoddi.

Nododd y Cynghorydd SE Baldwin ddiddordeb personol yn eitem 6 ar yr agenda - 
declared a personal interest in agenda item 6 - Cyflwyniad ar Fargen Prifddinas-
Rhanbarth Dinas Caerdydd a’r Rhaglen Gyflwyniadau i’r Dyfodol i’r Cyngor am ei fod yn 
adnabod Cadeirydd y Panel Partneriaeth Economaidd Ranbarthol a Buddsoddi.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MEDI 2020

429. CADARNHAU COFNODION

PENDERFYNWYD: Derbyn Cofnodion cyfarfod y Cyngor ar y 22 Gorffennaf 2020, fel 
cofnod gwir a chywir.

430. DERBYN CYHOEDDIADAU GAN Y MAER

Diolchodd y Maer i holl staff yr awdurdod am eu gwaith caled parhaus yn ystod y cyfnod 
anodd hwn, a bod eu hymdrechion diflino’n cael eu gwerthfawrogi’n fawr. 

Llongyfarchwyd Mr Laurence Brophy o Bencoed a oedd wedi beicio o Land’s End i John 
‘O Groats yn ddiweddar i godi arian ac i greu ymwybyddiaeth o Llamau sef elusen i’r 
digartref. Nododd fod Mr Brophy yn fwy arbennig fyth, am ei bod hi’n ymddangos mai ef 
yw’r dyn hynaf i gwblhau’r sialens, ac yntau’n 88 mlwydd oed. Hyd yn hyn, mae wedi 
llwyddo i godi £3,000 ar gyfer yr elusen.

Gyda thristwch, cyhoeddodd y Maer am farwolaeth Mr George Davies yn ddiweddar. 
Bu’n gymar i’r Maer, sef Marlene Thomas ei ferch, yn ystod ei chyfnod fel yr arweinydd 
Dinesig. Roedd hefyd yn gyn Cynghorydd cymunedol. Er dathlu ei ben-blwydd yn 90 yn 
ystod ei gyfnod fel Cymar i’r Maer, ni fethodd yr un digwyddiad gan roi o’i orau yn y rôl, 
gan ymhél â gwaith pellach yn y gymuned hyd yn oed wedi diwrnodau hir yn cyflawni ei 
ddyletswyddau dinesig. Estynnodd y Maer ei gydymdeimlad â Marlene Thomas a’i 
theulu ar ran y Cyngor

431. DERBYN CYHOEDDIADAU GAN YR ARWEINYDD LEADER

Hysbysodd yr Arweinydd yr Aelodau o’r cyhoeddiad mai Rhondda Cynon Taf, yn 
anffodus, oedd yr ail ardal yng Nghymru i wynebu clo mawr a rhoddodd grynodeb i’r 
Aelodau o ddiweddariad ar y sefyllfa ym Mhen-y-bont. Mewn cyfarfod o’r Cabinet ddoe, 
cefnogwyd cynllun gweithredu rhanbarthol a oedd yn amlinellu cyfres o fesurau ar gyfer 
taclo lledaeniad Covid-19 ac ymateb i unrhyw achosion neu ddigwyddiadau’n 
gysylltiedig â’r feirws. Mae Cynllun Atal ac Ymateb i Covid-19 yn ymwneud ag ardal 
Cwm Taf Morgannwg yn gyfan, ac fe’i datblygwyd ar y cyd rhwng awdurdodau lleol a’r 
bwrdd iechyd er mwyn disgrifio rôl, rôl allweddol, prif amcanion a’r mesurau ar gyfer y 
rhanbarth yn fanwl, nodi trefniadau ar gyfer atal lledaeniad yr haint ymysg y mwyaf 
bregus, lliniaru a rheoli ei effaith, a monitro o fewn cymunedau lleol. Mae’r cynllun hefyd 
yn amlinellu’r gweithdrefnau sydd wedi eu mabwysiadu pan fydd gofyn gwneud 
penderfyniadau yn ymwneud â gweithredu camau lleol neu gyfyngiadau, fel y gwelwyd 
yn fwyaf diweddar yn ardal Caerffili, a bellach yn Rhondda Cynon Taf.

Eglurodd fod modd rheoli nifer o glystyrau a digwyddiadau drwy raglen Profi, Olrhain, 
Diogelu heb fod angen cau adeiladau na gweithredu cyfyngiadau clo mawr pellach, ac 
mae ymchwiliadau trylwyr a threfniadau rheoli wedi eu mabwysiadu ar gyfer unrhyw 
ddatblygiadau arwyddocaol. Cyfeiriodd y Cyngor at rôl ganolog pob Cyngor o safbwynt 
rheoli Covid-19 yng Nghymru. Tanlinellodd y modd y caiff trigolion bregus eu cefnogi 
gan ofal cymdeithasol, yr hybiau gofal plant sydd wedi cefnogi gweithwyr allweddol 
hanfodol a phlant bregus. Cynnal gwasanaethau hanfodol, sicrhau fod staff ar gael i 
gefnogi’r rhaglen Profi, Olrhain, Diogelu. Os bydd galw ar y Cyngor i ymateb i 
ddigwyddiadau neu achosion arwyddocaol pellach, bydd yn ateb y galw yma.

Hysbysodd yr Arweinydd yr Aelodau y gall fod pobl yn poeni am y cynnydd diweddar yn 
y cyfraddau heintio ar hyd a lled rhanbarth De Cymru a’r cyfyngiadau sydd eisoes wedi 
eu cyhoeddi, ac aeth ati i sicrhau’r Aelodau a’r trigolion fod y systemau angenrheidiol yn 
eu lle i geisio atal hyn rhag digwydd ym Mwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont. Ar yr un pryd, dylai 
pawb gydnabod fod osgoi gorfod wynebu clo mawr neu beidio yn dibynnu i raddau 
helaeth iawn ar ymateb y gymuned. Pwysleisiodd ei bod hi’n bwysicach nac erioed i’r 

Page 4



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MEDI 2020

Fwrdeistref Sirol ddod ynghyd fel un gymuned, i ymddwyn mewn modd cyfrifol a diogel, 
a dilyn y gofynion cenedlaethol o safbwynt ymbellhau cymdeithasol, gwisgo gorchudd 
wyneb, golchi dwylo a diheintio. Eglurodd nad oedd y pandemig drosodd o bell ffordd, ac 
y dylai trigolion fod yn wyliadwrus o hyd. Hysbysodd yr Aelodau fod datganiad ar y cyd 
wedi ei gyhoeddi yn gynharach yr wythnos hon rhwng y Cyngor a Heddlu De Cymru yn 
gofyn ar i drigolion ymddwyn yn gyfrifol a chadw’n effro gan annog pobl i osgoi ymgasglu 
yn eu niferoedd ar gyfer Gŵyl Elvis ym Mhorthcawl, sydd wedi ei chanslo, ac i feddwl 
ddwywaith, cadw’n ddiogel ac aros gartref. Hyderai y byddai Aelodau’n cefnogi’r 
ymdrechion yma ac yn helpu i hybu’r prif negeseuon pwysig yma ymysg eu hetholwyr.  

Cyhoeddodd yr Arweinydd fod naw digwyddiad wedi bod ers i’r ysgolion ailagor, lle’r 
oedd staff neu ddisgyblion wedi derbyn prawf coronafeirws positif, gan arwain at y 
disgyblion a’r staff yn hunan-ynysu yn unol â chanllawiau cenedlaethol fel cam 
rhagofalus. Nododd fod y fath ddigwyddiadau’n anorfod tra bod y pandemig yn dal yn ei 
anterth, ond gan fod cymaint o fesurau diogelwch rhesymol wedi eu mabwysiadu ar sail 
asesiadau risg llawn, mae mwy o fanteision i fynychu’r ysgol na pheidio. Roedd ysgolion 
wedi bod yn paratoi i groesawu disgyblion nôl i’r ysgol ers cryn amser bellach, ac ym 
mhob achos, llwyddwyd i ymateb yn sydyn yn unol â chyngor Iechyd Cyhoeddus Cymru. 
Mae gan bob ysgol nifer helaeth o fesurau i leihau risg, cyfyngu ar gyswllt a chynnal 
safonau hylendid uchel. Mae disgyblion sydd heb eu heffeithio’n dal i fynychu gwersi fel 
arfer, y rhai sy’n hunan-ynusu’n cael eu dysgu drwy gyfrwng gwersi ar-lein, 
dosbarthiadau rhithiol ac adnoddau dysgu cyfunol. Gofynnodd ar i rieni, gofalwyr a 
gwarcheidwaid gefnogi’r ymdrechion yma i atal lledaeniad y coronafeirws drwy barhau i 
fod yn wyliadwrus, ac osgoi anfon plant sy’n dangos symptomau i’r ysgol. 

Nododd fod y cynnydd sydyn mewn achosion ar hyd a lled y DU, a bod penawdau 
cyfredol y newyddion yn llawn straeon ynglŷn â’r modd y mae’r Llywodraeth ganolog a 
Llywodraeth Cymru’n ymdrin â’r oedi o safbwynt profion coronafeirws. Mae mesurau ar 
waith, yn cynnwys unedau profi symudol sydd i’w lansio yng Nghymru a’u gyrru i’r 
ardaloedd lle mae’r galw mwyaf amdanynt. Gellir gweld y Cynllun Atal ac Ymateb i 
Covid-19 ar wefan y cyngor, ac anogodd yr Aelodau i’w ddarllen er mwyn gweld sut 
mae’r pandemig yn cael ei drin ar raddfa ranbarthol.  Eglurodd y byddai’r Cyngor yn dal i 
weithio ar y cyd â phartneriaid i wneud popeth posib i amddiffyn trigolion bregus, ac i 
sicrhau ei fod yn dal i ddarparu gwasanaethau hanfodol i bobl leol. 

Cydymdeimlodd yr Arweinydd â Mrs Marlene Thomas, cyn arweinydd y Fwrdeistref 
Ddinesig, ar golli ei thad, Mr George Davies, a fu’n Faer cydweddog iddi yn ystod ei 
blwyddyn yn y rôl.

Llongyfarchodd Mr Laurence Brophy o Bencoed ar ei lwyddiant yn beicio o Land’s End i 
John ‘O Groats er mwyn codi arian ar gyfer Llamau.

Estynnodd groeso cynnes i Janine Nightingale, Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau 
a oedd yn mynychu ei chyfarfod cyntaf o’r Cyngor.   

432. CYFLWYNIAD O FARGEN PRIFDDINAS-RANBARTH DINAS CAERDYDD A’R 
RHAGLEN GYFLWYNIADAU I’R DYFODOL I’R CYNGOR

Cyflwynodd y Prif Weithredwr gyflwyniad i’r Cyngor o raglen Bargen Prifddinas-Ranbarth 
Caerdydd a’r rhaglen gyflwyniadau i’r Cyngor yn y dyfodol. Nododd fod tri diben i’r 
cyflwyniad ar Fargen Prifddinas-Ranbarth, yn benodol, er mwyn rhoi gwell dealltwriaeth 
o’r rhaglen i’r Aelodau, rhoi cyfle i ddangos y cynnydd da ac er mwyn trafod cyfleoedd i’r 
rhaglen o fewn Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont. 

Rhoddwyd cyflwyniad o Fargen Prifddinas-Ranbarth Dinas Caerdydd (CCR) i’r Cyngor 
gan Kellie Beirne, Cyfarwyddwr Bargen Prifddinas-Ranbarth Dinas Caerdydd (CCR) a 

Page 5



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MEDI 2020

Frank Holmes, Cadeirydd Panel y Bartneriaeth Economaidd Ranbarthol a Buddsoddi. 
Nododd Cyfarwyddwr y Fargen Prifddinas-Ranbarth mai rhaglen fuddsoddi £1.3bn 
cyhoeddus yw’r Fargen Prifddinas-Ranbarth sy’n seiliedig ar bartneriaeth driwiaeth o 10 
awdurdod lleol, Llywodraeth Cymru a’r Llywodraeth Ganolog. Ei nod oedd cynhyrchu 
25,000 o swyddi ychwanegol, sicrhau gwerth £4 biliwn o fuddsoddiad pellach a 
chynyddu Gwerth Gros Ychwanegol i’r economi o 5%. Eglurodd wrth y Cyngor fod y 
Cynhgorau’n cydweithio ar sail deg am eu bod yn rhannu daearyddiaeth economaidd 
weithredol, ond o fewn hynny, fod rhai o’r mannau mwyaf a lleiaf cystadleuol yn bodoli 
ochr yn ochr â’i gilydd, ac o’r herwydd gallai strategaeth unigol danseilio yn hytrach na 
mynd i’r afael â rhai o’r problemau endemig hynny. Amlinellodd awgrymiadau arloesol y 
rhaglen, a fyddai’n cael eu defnyddio nid yn unig er mwyn canolbwyntio ar dechnoleg a 
busnes, ond hefyd i hybu’r gymdeithas ddinesig, gan sbarduno tyfiant o safbwynt 
economïau Sylfaen a’r sector gwasanaethau cyhoeddus. Y nod yw creu amodau ar 
gyfer llewyrch cyffredinol ac i sicrhau fod amcanion economaidd yn cyd-fynd â pholisi 
cymdeithasol mwy blaengar ac i fod yn wydn a pharhaus.  

Cyfeiriodd Cadeirydd Panel y Bartneriaeth Economaidd Ranbarthol a Buddsoddi y 
Cyngor at y prosesau sydd wedi eu mabwysiadu a’i fod wedi ymgynnull bwrdd o 
unigolion profiadol gyda’r rôl o asesu’r rhaglen fuddsoddi, ymgynghorwyr i’r Cabinet ar y 
cyd ac i sicrhau buddsoddiad mewnol. Soniodd fod angen cynllun ar y Bwrdd i sicrhau 
fod arian yn cael ei fuddsoddi yn unol â’r rhaglen fuddsoddi er mwyn trosoledd o’r 
buddsoddiad ychwanegol o £4bn. Roedd y Bwrdd eisoes wedi dechrau ar y 3 piler 
angenrheidiol o safbwynt sicrhau gwir gysylltedd rhanbarthol gyda phartneriaethau 
cyhoeddus a phreifat. Er mwyn bod yn gystadleuol, roedd angen buddsoddi mewn 
arloesedd a chysylltedd gyda chysylltedd digidol yn hollbwysig a’r angen i fod yn gadarn 
er budd y genhedlaeth hon a chenedlaethau’r dyfodol. Nododd fod y cynllun wedi ei 
adolygu’n ddiweddar, yn ogystal â datblygu fframwaith fuddsoddi er mwyn hybu 
arloesedd a helpu cwmnïau i dyfu. Gwnaed ymchwil helaeth i sicrhau fod arian yn cael 
ei ddefnyddio’n briodol ar draws y rhanbarth. 

Hysbysodd Cyfarwyddwr Bargen Prifddinas-Ranbarth Dinas Caerdydd (CCR) y Cyngor 
o’r ymgyrch i sicrhau tyfiant cadarn da ar sail rhagwelediad a’r hyn oedd i ddod, a 
fyddai’n sicr o gael ei effeithio’n anghyfartal gan Brexit o ystyried dibyniaeth ar gronfeydd 
strwythurol yr Undeb Ewropeaidd o safbwynt tyfiant economaidd. Eglurodd na fyddai 
unrhyw fargen ddinesig arall ac y byddai unrhyw fuddsoddiad rhanbarthol newydd ar 
lefel Llywodraeth y DU bellach yn dod wrth UKIS. Byddai angen datblygu nodweddion er 
mwyn caniatáu i’r rhanbarth fod yn gystadleuol ac y byddai angen i’r sector gyhoeddus 
newid. Cyfeiriodd Cyfarwyddwr y CCR y Cyngor at y seiliau cadarn yr adeiladwyd 
arnynt, a’r modd y gweddnewidiwyd arferion gwaith a chyflymder penderfyniadau. 
Amlinellodd fraslun o’r Gronfa Fuddsoddi ac Ymyrraeth, gan sôn fod 28 cynllun ar y 
gweill oedd yn gofyn am gyfanswm buddsoddiad o £390m. Tanlinellodd y cynlluniau a 
oedd wedi eu cymeradwyo mor belled yn y sectorau cyhoeddus a phreifat a lle’r oedd 
buddsoddiad ychwanegol wedi ei sicrhau. Hysbysodd y Cyngor fod y Rhanbarth wedi 
amlygu ei hun drwy’r cynllun Global Welsh. Rhoddodd Cyfarwyddwr y CCR drosolwg o’r 
hyn oedd yn oblygedig o safbwynt Pen-y-bont, yn cynnwys adeiladu ar gryfderau a 
chyfleodd o fod yn lleoliad gweithgynhyrchiol ddwys. Gorffennodd drwy sôn fod y Fargen 
Prifddinas-Ranbarth wedi ei sefydlu ar seiliau cadarn ar gyfer cam nesaf y daith. 

Cododd un o aelodau’r Cyngor gwestiwn ynglyn ag effaith y Fargen Prifddinas-Ranbarth 
yn sgil y penderfyniad i wrthod caniatâd i ffordd liniaru’r M4. Roedd Cadeirydd y Panel 
Partneriaeth Economaidd Ranbarthol a Buddsoddi o’r farn fod ymwrthod â’r cynllun yn 
newyddion drwg o safbwynt busnes yng Nghymru ac y byddai’n effeithio ar fusnes 
rhyngwladol. Roedd Ffederasiwn y Busnesau Bach, Cydffederasiwn Diwydiant Prydain a 
Sefydliad y Cyfarwyddwyr yn gefnogol i’r cynllun. Eglurodd Cyfarwyddwr y CCR fod yr 
Awdurdod Trafnidiaeth Ranbarthol yn credu fod angen cysoni’r prif gynlluniau 
trafnidiaeth ac y byddai cynllun yr HS2 yn effeithio ar y Fargen Prifddinas-Ranbarth. 

Page 6



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MEDI 2020

Cyfeiriodd aelod o’r Cyngor at y penderfyniad na fyddai unrhyw Fargen Prifddinas-
Ranbarth yn y dyfodol gan holi pa raglenni fyddai’n cael eu datblygu i sicrhau fod cyllid 
ar gael o hyd. Eglurodd Cyfarwyddwr y CCR fod angen cynaladwyedd a bod disgwyl y 
bydd y Fargen Prifddinas-Ranbarthol yn arwain at fwy o gyllid. Hysbysodd Cadeirydd y 
Panel Partneriaeth Economaidd Ranbarthol a Buddsoddi y Cyngor fod y drefn gywir yn 
ei lle i sicrhau ymddiriedaeth ar bob lefel o lywodraeth er mwyn i’r rhanbarth allu 
gwrthsefyll rhanbarthau eraill er mwyn sicrhau buddsoddiad addas. Hysbysodd yr 
Arweinydd y Cyngor fod y rhanbarth yn awyddus i gydweithio â phartneriaid byd-eang o 
ran darparwyr band eang a thechnoleg. Eglurodd fod y rhanbarth ymysg y rhanbarthau 
sy’n datblygu gyflymaf o safbwynt poblogaeth a bod angen sicrhau fod buddsoddwyr yn 
buddsoddi arian yn y rhanbarth er budd yr holl drigolion

Cyfeiriodd aelod o’r Cyngor at agosrwydd Pen-y-bont at ranbarth Bargen Dinas Bae 
Abertawe gan holi os oes cydweithio â’r rhanbarth honno. Hysbysodd Cyfarwyddwr y 
CCR y Cyngor fod cryn drafod â rhanbarth Bargen Dinas Bae Abertawe a bod 
cydweithredu o safbwynt sicrhau fod y rhaglenni’n aliniedig. Mae Bargen Dinas Bae 
Abertawe’n wahanol i’r Fargen Prifddinas-Ranbarthol am fod gan y rhanbarth 
wneuthurwr lled-ddargludydd cyfansawdd. Cyfeiriodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Addysg ac 
Adfywio at y ffaith fod lleoliad Pen-y-bont yn ymyl Bargen Dinas arall yn fantais a bod 
Pen-y-bont wedi bod yn ganolbwynt trafnidiaeth erioed ac roedd yn awyddus i Ben-y-
bont ddatblygu fel canolbwynt o’r gorllewin i gysylltu â Maes Awyr Caerdydd. Soniodd 
am y gwasanaeth rheilffordd anghyson i gyfeiriad Y Pîl ac am yr angen i fuddsoddi yn yr 
orsaf a sicrhau gwasanaeth bob awr yn ystod yr wythnos ac am adnodd parcio a theithio 
er mwyn cysylltu â Phorthcawl a chymunedau yn y cymoedd. Holodd aelod o’r Cyngor 
os oedd cynlluniau i sicrhau integreiddio’r Pîl a Phorthcawl. Eglurodd yr Arweinydd fod 
cyllid ar gael o’r Fargen Prifddinas-Ranbarthol a Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 
buddsoddiad sylweddol yng ngorsaf Y Pîl er mwyn gwella’r cysylltiadau â Phorthcawl. 
Roedd Aelod y Cabinet dros Gymunedau’n gweld fod y ffaith fod Pen-y-bont ar y ffin â 
Bargen Dinas Bae Abertawe fel mantais ac mewn lleoliad unigryw o safbwynt denu 
busnesau byd-eang gan mai yno oedd gorsaf drenau ail brysuraf y rhanbarth gyda 
chysylltiadau â’r maes awyr.  

Holodd aelod o’r Cyngor ynglŷn ag effaith Covid-19 ar y cynlluniau ar gyfer y Fargen 
Prifddinas-Ranbarthol. Eglurodd Cyfarwyddwr y CCR fod pob cynllun wedi ei adolygu yn 
sgil Covid-19 a bod arolwg cynhwysfawr wedi ei gynnal er mwyn sicrhau fod 
buddsoddiad a chefnogaeth ar gael ar gyfer mentrau bach a chanolig. Hysbysodd yr 
Arweinydd y Cyngor fod busnesau yn cael eu gwahodd i wneud cais i’r Gronfa Sialens, 
yn enwedig o blith y sector technoleg feddygol. Eglurodd Cadeirydd y Panel Partneriaeth 
Economaidd Ranbarthol a Buddsoddi wrth y Cyngor fod y Gronfa Sialens yn edrych i 
fynd i’r afael â phroblemau economaidd a chreu cyfleoedd.  

Holodd aelod o’r Cyngor beth fyddai effaith cymdeithasol-economaidd Covid-19 gan 
ofyn am sicrwydd y byddai hyblygrwydd o fewn y strategaeth i addasu i sefyllfaoedd 
gwahanol. Eglurodd Cyfarwyddwr y CCR na allai’r rhaglen aros yn ei hunfan a bod 
angen sicrhau cydbwysedd o fewn y rhaglen gan mai’r amcan oedd gwella bywydau. 
Soniodd Cadeirydd y Panel Partneriaeth Economaidd Ranbarthol a Buddsoddi fod bas 
tystiolaeth yn cael ei gadw’n gyfredol a bod 2 fyfyriwr PHD yn monitro’r gweithgareddau 
yma. Nododd ei bod hi’n anodd rhagweld effaith Covid-19 ond bod angen darparu’r data 
gorau posibl. Hysbysodd yr Arweinydd y Cyngor fod y Fargen Prifddinas-Ranbarthol 
wedi ymateb i’r pandemig drwy ailstrwythuro’r rhaglen a gwneud hynny yn y fath fodd er 
mwyn gallu ymateb i newidiadau.   

PENDERFYNWYD:           Y byddai’r Cyngor yn: 

Page 7



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MEDI 2020

(1) Nodi cyflwyniad Cyfarwyddwr y Fargen Prifddinas-Ranbarthol Dinas a Chadeirydd 
y Panel Partneriaeth Economaidd Ranbarthol a Buddsoddi. 

(2) Nodi’r rhaglen ar gyfer cyflwyniadau i’r Cyngor yn y dyfodol fel yr amlinellwyd.  

Gohiriwyd y cyfarfod am 16.55 gan ailddechrau eto am 17.00.    
     

433. ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL CANLYNIAD RHEOLI’R TRYSORLYS 2019-20

Cyflwynwyd yr adroddiad gan y Dirprwy Bennaeth Cyllid Dros Dro, gyda’r bwriad o 
gydymffurfio â gofynion Rheolaeth y Trysorlys mewn Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus: Cod 
Ymarfer (y Cod) y Sefydliad Siartredig Cyllid Cyhoeddus a Chyfrifeg (CIPFA), i gyflwyno 
trosolwg o weithgareddau’r trysorlys ar gyfer y flwyddyn ariannol flaenorol ac i adrodd ar 
Ddangosyddion Rheoli’r Trysorlys 2019-20.  

Adroddodd y Dirprwy Bennaeth Cyllid Dros Dro fod y trysorlys y Cyngor yn cael ei reoli o 
fewn fframwaith Rheolaeth y Trysorlys mewn Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus: Cod Ymarfer 
Rhifyn 2017 (y Cod CIPFA) y Sefydliad Siartredig Cyllid Cyhoeddus a Chyfrifeg sy’n 
gofyn i’r Cyngor gymeradwyo Strategaeth Rheoli’r Trysorlys (TMS) cyn dechrau bob 
blwyddyn ariannol. Darperir arweiniad i’r Cyngor ynglŷn â rheoli’r trysorlys gan 
Arlingclose ac yn dilyn proses dendro, nhw sydd wedi eu penodi eto am gyfnod o 4 
mlynedd, tan Awst 2024.  

Eglurodd y Dirprwy Bennaeth Cyllid Dros Dro fod ymadawiad y DU â’r Undeb 
Ewropeaidd a threfniadau masnachu i’r dyfodol yn parhau i fod yn un o’r prif 
ddylanwadau ar economi’r DU yn ystod 2019-20.  Symudodd Banc Lloegr, a oedd wedi 
cadw cyfraddau llog yn gyson ar 0.75% drwy gydol 2019-20 bron, i dorri’r gyfradd o 
0.75% i 0.25% ym mis Mawrth 2020 a’i thorri eto’n fuan wedyn i 0.1%, sy’n record. 
Hysbysodd y Dirprwy Bennaeth Cyllid Dros Dro y Cyngor fod y pandemig Covid-19 wedi 
newid y popeth yn gyflym iawn tua diwedd y flwyddyn ariannol gan greu ansicrwydd yn y 
marchnadoedd arian. 

Adroddodd y Dirprwy Bennaeth Cyllid Dros Dro ar Ganlyniad Rheoli’r Trysorlys ar gyfer 
2019-20 gan hysbysu’r Cyngor ei fod wedi cydymffurfio â’r gofynion deddfol a 
rheolaethol yn ystod 2019-20. Cyflwynodd grynodeb o’r ddyled allanol a’r sefyllfa 
fuddsoddi ar gyfer 1 Ebrill 2019 tan 31 Mawrth 2020, ni chymerwyd unrhyw fenthyciadau 
tymor hir yn ystod 2019-20 ac ni chafodd unrhyw ddyled ei had-drefnu am nad oedd 
manteision arbed arian sylweddol, ond byddai’r portffolio benthyciadau’n cael ei adolygu 
yn ystod  2020-21. Hysbysodd y Dirprwy Bennaeth Cyllid Dros Dro y Cyngor fod llif arian 
ffafriol wedi sicrhau cyllid dros ben ar gyfer buddsoddi a bod balans y buddsoddiadau ar 
y 31 Mawrth 2020 yn £30 miliwn, ar raddfa llog cyfartalog o 0.82%. Gwelwyd cynnydd yn 
y buddsoddiadau dyledus o ddechrau’r flwyddyn ariannol pan welwyd buddsoddiad o 
£27.4 miliwn ar raddfa llog cyfartalog o 0.94%. Cyflwynodd y Dirprwy Bennaeth Cyllid 
Dros Dro grynodeb a chanlyniad y strategaeth fuddsoddi gan egluro mai’r prif amcanion 
yn ystod 2019-20 oedd cynnal sicrwydd cyllid; sicrhau hylifedd, fel bod cyllid ar gael pan 
fydd ei angen a dim ond ceisio cynnydd ar y buddsoddiadau wedyn. Hysbysodd y 
Cyngor fod y mwyafrif o’r buddsoddiadau yn rhai tymor byr oedd yn cael eu dal gydag 
awdurdodau lleol o fewn y DU a banciau o ansawdd credyd uchel.

Nododd aelod o’r Cyngor mai arfer awdurdodau lleol oedd benthyca arian i awdurdodau 
lleol eraill. Hysbysodd Dirprwy Arweinydd y Cyngor fod Strategaeth Reoli’r Trysorlys 
wedi ei chymeradwyo gan y Cyngor a bod y Swyddogion yn gweithredu’r strategaeth. 
Eglurodd fod benthyg arian i gynghorau eraill yn fodd i’r Cyngor fuddsoddi. Hysbysodd y 
Dirprwy Bennaeth Cyllid Dros Dro yr Aelodau fod y Cyngor yn buddsoddi arian am 
gyfnod byr gydag awdurdodau lleol y DU gan dderbyn ad-daliad bob tro, ac yn aml iawn 

Page 8



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MEDI 2020

yr un arian sy’n cael ei ail-fuddsoddi. Ceisir cyngor ynglŷn â buddsoddi oddi wrth 
ymgynghorwyr Rheoli’r Trysorlys y Cyngor bob amser. 

Holodd aelod o’r Cyngor a allai’r cyngor ail-drafod benthyciadau LOBO ar sail y 
cyfraddau llog is cyfredol. Eglurodd y Dirprwy Bennaeth Cyllid Dros Dro wrth y Cyngor 
fod gan y benthyciwr yr opsiwn i awgrymu cyfradd llog newydd a bod gan y Cyngor yr 
opsiwn, fel yr un sy’n rhoi’r benthyciad, p’un ai i dderbyn y gyfradd honno. Aeth ymlaen i 
ddweud gan fod y cyfraddau llog mor isel, byddai benthycwyr yn annhebygol o leihau’r 
cyfraddau. Hysbysodd y Cyngor hefyd y byddai’r Cyngor yn wynebu cosb petai’n ad-
dalu’n gynnar.

Holodd aelod o’r Cyngor a allai’r Swyddogion ystyried y cyfle i fanteisio ar fenthyciadau 
rhatach yn sgil cyfraddau llog isel yn achos eu hadroddiad nesaf ar Reoli’r Trysorlys i’r 
Cyngor. Cytunodd y Dirprwy Bennaeth Cyllid Dros Dro ystyried hyn. 

PENDERFYNWYD:           Y byddai’r Cyngor yn: 

 Cymeradwyo gweithgareddau blynyddol rheoli’r trysorlys ar gyfer 2019-20.
 Cymeradwyo gwir ddangosyddion Rheoli’r Trysorlys ar gyfer 2019-20 yn erbyn y 

rhai a gafodd eu cymeradwyo yn Strategaeth Rheoli’r Trysorlys 2019-20.

434. DIWEDDARIAD O GYNLLUN CORFFORAETHOL 2018-2022 WEDI EI ADOLYGU AR 
GYFER 2020-21, YN SGIL EFFAITH COVID-19

Gofynnodd y Prif Weithredwr i’r diweddariadau i Gynllun Corfforaethol y Cyngor ar gyfer 
2018-2022 wedi ei adolygu ar gyfer 2020-21, yn sgil effaith  Covid-19 gael eu 
cymeradwyo ac i’r Cyngor fabwysiadu’r Cynllun Corfforaethol diwygiedig.

Adroddodd fod Cynllun Corfforaethol 2018-2022 yn disgrifio gweledigaeth y Cyngor ar 
gyfer Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont, y 3 amcan lles a’r gwerthoedd sefydliadol a’r 
egwyddorion sy’n sail i’r modd y bydd y Cyngor yn gweithio i gyflawni ei flaenoriaethau. 
Eglurodd fod y Cynllun yn cynrychioli cyfraniad y Cyngor wrth gyflawni’r 7 amcan lles 
cenedlaethol fel y nodwyd yn Neddf Lles Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015 ac 
amcanion cynnydd Mesur Llywodraeth Leol (Cymru) 2009.  

Eglurodd fod effaith y pandemig Covid-19 wedi effeithio ar allu’r Cyngor i symud ymlaen 
o safbwynt cyflawni ei amcanion lles yn unol â’r Cynllun Corfforaethol diwygiedig. 
Nododd mai da o beth fyddai adolygu’r ymrwymiadau a’r targedau cyfredol a 
chanolbwyntio ar y prif flaenoriaethau ar gyfer gweddill 2020-21. Cyfeiriodd at 
newidiadau arfaethedig y Cynllun Corfforaethol oedd yn cynnwys rhai mân newidiadau i 
ymrwymiadau’r Cyngor yn ogystal ag ambell un newydd i adlewyrchu’r prif feysydd 
blaenoriaeth y mae angen i’r Cyngor ganolbwyntio arnynt yn ystod gweddill 2020-21. 
Dywedodd fod nifer o fesurau llwyddiant newydd yn y Cynllun, yn ogystal â rhai cyfresol, 
a’u targedau wedi eu hadolygu. Yn achos y targedau oedd wedi eu lleihau o ganlyniad i 
effaith Covid-19 darparwyd eglurhad o’r rhesymeg, er enghraifft, effaith cau canol trefi ar 
fusnesau a nifer ymwelwyr.  

Hysbysodd y Prif Weithredwr y Cyngor y byddai’r Cynllun yn cael ei adolygu’n flynyddol 
er mwyn ystyried newidiadau yn y sefyllfa a’r cynnydd a wnaed ochr yn ochr â’r 
amcanion lles er mwyn sicrhau cyflawni gofynion y Mesur Llywodraeth Leol (Cymru) 
2009 a Deddf Lles Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015. Bydd yr ymrwymiadau a’r 
mesurau diwygiedig yn cymryd lle’r ymrwymiadau a’r mesurau a gynhwysir yn y Cynllun 
Corfforaethol cyfredol ac yn dod yn rhan o Gynllun Corfforaethol 2018-2022 wedi ei 
adolygu ar gyfer 2020-21. Hysbysodd y Cyngor y caiff cyflawniad ei gefnogi gan y 
Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor Canolig a chyfarwyddiaeth cynlluniau busnes a’i fonitro’n 

Page 9



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MEDI 2020

chwarterol drwy gyfrwng cyfarfodydd tîm rheoli’r gyfarwyddiaeth a’r Pwyllgor Trosolwg a 
Chraffu Corfforaethol gan ystyried argymhellion y Panel Adferiad.  

Pwysleisiodd y prif newidiadau a argymhellwyd yng nghyswllt yr adran deilliannau 
dysgwyr yn sgil cyflwyno dysgu hybrid a chyfunol a datblygiad amgylchedd diogel mewn 
ysgolion. Ceir ffocws cynyddol ar gefnogi isadeiledd er mwyn i fusnesau allu goresgyn 
effaith y pandemig. O safbwynt datblygu cymunedau cadarn, bydd y Cyngor yn gweithio 
mewn partneriaeth â Chynghorau Tref a Chymuned a grwpiau cymunedol i sicrhau 
atebion tymor hir er mwyn rheoli adnoddau / gwasanaethu. O safbwynt diwylliant a 
hamdden roedd angen ailsefydlu cyfranogiad drwy wella mynediad a dileu rhwystrau. 
Edrychir ar gyfleoedd o safbwynt trawsnewidiadau digidol er mwyn esblygu ffyrdd 
newydd o weithio ac ailfodeli gwasanaethau. 

Hysbysodd y Cyngor fod y Cabinet wedi awgrymu newidiadau o safbwynt ychwanegu 
naratif yng nghyswllt adeiladau gwag a pharcio rhad ac am ddim a pharhau i weithio 
gyda busnesau sy’n bodoli eisoes a busnesau newydd. O safbwynt gweithio gyda 
Chynghorau Tref a Chymuned, bydd y Cyngor hefyd yn gweithio gyda’r trydydd sector. 
Bydd ychwanegiad hefyd i weithio ar leihau digartrefedd ac i weithio gyda’r rhai sy’n 
cysgu ar y stryd gan ddefnyddio cyllid Llywodraeth Cymru. Bydd y Cyngor yn datblygu 
strategaeth iechyd meddwl ar gyfer oedolion a phlant. Bydd y Cyngor hefyd yn datblygu 
cyfleoedd ar gyfer prentisiaethau. Cymeradwyodd yr Arweinydd yr adolygiadau i’r 
Cynllun Corfforaethol.  

Holodd aelod o’r Cyngor p’un ai fyddai oblygiadau ariannol y pandemig yn effeithio ar y 
nifer o staff sy’n cael eu cyflogi gan y Cyngor. Hysbysodd y Prif Weithredwr y Cyngor fod 
effaith ariannol y pandemig yn anhysbys hyd yma am nad oedd cadarnhad ynglŷn â 
chyfraniad ariannol Llywodraeth Cymru. Eglurodd fod gan y Cyngor feichiau newydd ac 
y gallai fod newid yn rôl rhai aelodau o’r staff er mwyn cyflawni rôl newydd. Mae cronfa 
Covid wedi ei chreu ac roedd yn hyderus y byddai Llywodraeth Cymru yn ariannu costau 
unigol, ond roedd yn bryderus ynglŷn â’r incwm roedd y Cyngor wedi ei golli. Nododd y 
byddai angen ystyried gweithio mewn modd gwahanol yn hytrach na lleihau nifer y staff.  

Nododd aelod o’r Cyngor y dylai’r strategaeth iechyd meddwl hefyd gynnwys pobl hŷn 
yn sgil y teimladau o unigrwydd y maent wedi gorfod eu hwynebu yn ystod y pandemig. 
Dywedodd yr Arweinydd y byddai’r strategaeth yn ymdrin ag oedolion a phlant gyda’r 
bwriad o’i gyfeirio at y bwrdd iechyd a’r trydydd sector.  

PENDERFYNWYD:  Fod y Cyngor yn cymeradwyo’r diweddariad i’r Cynllun 
Corfforaethol 2018-22 wedi ei adolygu ar gyfer 2020-21 a atodir 
fel Atodiad A ac yn mabwysiadu’r Cynllun Corfforaethol diwygiedig 
a atodir fel Atodiad B.

435. CYNLLUN DATBLYGU LLEOL PEN-Y-BONT (LDP) – CYTUNDEB CYFLWYNO WEDI’I 
DDIWYGIO

Cyfeiriodd Arweinydd y Tîm Cynllunio Datblygiad at yr angen i adolygu’r Cytundeb 
Cyflwyno Cynllun Datblygu Lleol (DA), a gafodd ei gymeradwyo’n flaenorol gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru (WG) ym mis Mehefin 2018 a cheisio cael caniatâd i addasu’r 
Amserlen ar gyfer paratoi’r Cynllun Datblygu Lleol yn sgil y pandemig Covid-19. 
Hysbysodd y Cyngor fod y Pwyllgor Rheoli Datblygiad, yn ystod cyfarfod 20 Awst 2020, 
wedi cytuno i’r argymhellion yn yr adroddiad hwn gan gyfeirio’r argymhellion i’r Cyngor 
eu cymeradwyo.

Adroddodd fod y Cyngor wedi derbyn llythyr oddi wrth Lywodraeth Cymru ar 7 
Gorffennaf 2020 yn eu cynghori i ymgymryd ag asesiad o’r bas tystiolaeth dechnegol 
oedd yn sail i’r Cynllun Datblygu Lleol newydd, ynghyd â’r strategaeth ddewisedig a 

Page 10



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MEDI 2020

pholisïau o safbwynt sensitifrwydd i ganlyniadau’r pandemig. Eglurodd fod y dasg hon 
wedi ei chwblhau ynghyd â’r casgliadau a amlinellwyd yn Atodiad 1 o’r adroddiad. 
Roedd Llywodraeth Cymru hefyd wedi awgrymu y dylid addasu Cytundebau Cyflwyno er 
mwyn dwyn unrhyw newidiadau angenrheidiol i amserlen y Cynllun Datblygu Lleol yn 
sgil unrhyw oedi oherwydd y pandemig i ystyriaeth. Dylai hyn hefyd gynnwys diwygiadau 
i’r Cynllun Ymwneud Cymunedol (CIS) oherwydd yr angen i addasu i batrymau gwaith 
newydd ac ystyried dulliau amgen o ymwneud â rhanddeiliaid yn sgil yr angen i 
ymbellhau’n gymdeithasol. Amlinellodd y diwygiadau posib i’r amserlen. Eglurodd y 
dylai’r Cynllun Cyflwyno gael ei drafod rhwng Ionawr a Mawrth 2021 (yn hytrach na 
Gorffennaf - Awst 2020), ond roedd caniatâd wedi ei roi i ymestyn y cyfnod trafod 
statudol o 5 wythnos i 8 wythnos er mwyn rhoi mwy o amser i bobl gynnig eu 
safbwyntiau wrth ystyried unrhyw gyfyngiadau pellach yn sgil y pandemig. Hysbysodd y 
Cyngor na fyddai modd mabwysiadu’r Cynllun Datblygu Lleol terfynol am gyfnod pellach 
o hyd at 6 mis o ganlyniad, er bod y dyddiadau’n ymwneud â’r camau’n dilyn cyflwyno’r 
cynllun i Lywodraeth Cymru’n ddynodol. Amlinellodd sut y cafodd y Cynllun Ymwneud 
Cymunedol ei ddiwygio gan ystyried gwahanol ddulliau o sicrhau ymwneud rhanddeiliaid 
wrth ddilyn mesurau ymbellhau cymdeithasol sy’n debygol o fodoli i’r dyfodol 
rhagweladwy.

PENDERFYNWYD:           Y byddai’r Cyngor yn: 

• cymeradwyo’r adolygiadau i’r amserlen a’r Cynllun 
Ymwneud Cymunedol gan roi’r hawl i Reolwr y Grŵp 
Gwasanaethau Cynllunio a Datblygu i gyflwyno’r Cytundeb 
Cyflawni (gweler Atodiad 2) i Lywodraeth Cymru;  a

• dirprwyo awdurdod i Reolwr Tîm y Gwasanaethau Cynllunio 
a Datblygu er mwyn gwneud unrhyw gywiriadau ffeithiol neu 
fân newidiadau i’r Cytundeb Cyflwyno yn ôl y gofyn.  

436. ADRODDAIADAU GWYBODAETH I’W NODI

Hysbysodd y Maer y Cyngor ei fod wedi derbyn neges oddi wrth Gyfarwyddwr Bargen 
Prifddinas-Ranbarth Dinas Caerdydd yn ei hysbysu fod datganiad wedi ei wneud i’r 
wasg Geidwadol yn honni fod Bargen Prifddinas-Ranbarth Dinas Caerdydd yn cefnogi 
ffordd liniaru’r M4 ac yn rhoi’r bai ar Lywodraeth Cymru am ei chanslo. Gan fod Ms 
Bernie yn Swyddog, rhoddodd gyfle i Mr Frank Holmes fynegi ei farn fel gŵr busnes 
annibynnol. Ni wnaeth Ms Beirne gefnogi’r feirniadaeth o Lywodraeth Cymru am ganslo 
ffordd liniaru’r M4. Gofynnodd i’r Aelod Ceidwadol a wnaeth y datganiad gwreiddiol 
gywiro’r datganiad a roddwyd i’r wasg. 

Gofynnodd Arweinydd y Grŵp Ceidwadol am gael codi pwynt o drefn gan gredu fod tor-
rheol wedi bod o safbwynt y Cyfansoddiad. Eglurodd y Maer fod y datganiad yn 
ganlyniad i neges y derbyniodd oddi wrth Gyfarwyddwr Bargen Prifddinas-Ranbarth 
Dinas Caerdydd. Dywedodd y Swyddog Monitro nad oedd cyfeiriad wedi ei wneud at ba 
ran o’r Cyfansoddiad oedd wedi ei dorri. Eglurodd y Maer fod y neges a dderbyniodd 
oddi wrth Gyfarwyddwr Bargen Prifddinas-Ranbarth Dinas Caerdydd yn sôn fod rhywun 
wedi siarad â’r wasg Geidwadol. Dywedodd Arweinydd y Grŵp Ceidwadol nad oedd hi’n 
glir fod y sylw wedi ei wneud gan y Grŵp Ceidwadol. Atebodd y Maer ei bod hi’n 
annhebygol mai’r Grŵp Llafur oedd wedi gwneud y sylw ac na wnaeth Cyfarwyddwr 
Bargen Prifddinas-Ranbarth Dinas Caerdydd feirniadu Llywodraeth Cymru, ond fod y 
sylwadau wedi eu gwneud gan rywun sy’n annibynnol o’r Fargen. Roedd Arweinydd a 
Dirprwy Arweinydd y Grŵp Ceidwadol yn anfodlon â’r feirniadaeth ar eu grŵp nhw. 
Cadarnhaodd aelod o’r Cyngor a ofynnodd y cwestiwn yn ystod y cyflwyniad am ganslo 
ffordd lliniaru’r M4 nad oedd wedi cysylltu ag unrhyw un, yn cynnwys y wasg.  

Cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd symud ymlaen o’r drafodaeth ar y mater. 

Page 11



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MEDI 2020

Canlyniad y bleidlais oedd 20 o blaid y cynnig i symud ymlaen o’r drafodaeth ar y mater 
a 9 o blaid parhau â’r ddadl. 

Adroddodd y Prif Swyddog Cyfreithiol, Gwasanaethau Adnoddau Dynol a Rheolaethol 
a’r Swyddog Monitro ar yr Adroddiadau Gwybodaeth canlynol a gyhoeddwyd ers 
cyfarfod diwethaf y Cyngor. Cyngor.

Teitl                                                                          Dyddiad Cyhoeddi
Penderfyniadau Brys wedi eu Dirprwyo                  10 Medi 2020
Datganiad Cyfrifon Terfynol 2019-20                      10 Medi 2020

PENDERFYNWYD: Fod y Cyngor yn cydnabod cyhoeddi’r dogfennau a restrwyd yn yr 
adroddiad hwn

437. DERBYN Y CWESTIYNAU CANLYNOL ODDI WRTH:

Cwestiwn oddi wrthY Cynghorydd T Thomas i Aelod y Cabinet dros Les a 
Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol 

A wnaiff Aelod y Cabinet amlinellu eu cynlluniau i leihau’r risg o ddigartrefedd yn ystod 
cyfnod gofidus y pandemig Covid-19?

Ymateb Aelod y Cabinet dros Les a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol 

Fel yr hysbyswyd chi eisoes, mae unigolion yn cael eu hunain yn ddigartref am nifer o 
resymau, er enghraifft, diwedd perthynas, anawsterau yn y berthynas rhwng rhiant a 
phlentyn, trais yn y cartref. Nid yw’r fath resymau (risgiau) wedi newid yn sgil y 
pandemig Covid-19, ond yr hyn sydd wedi newid yw’r disgwyliadau ar awdurdodau lleol.

Fel y gwyddoch, ar ddechrau’r pandemig, disgwylid i bob awdurdod lleol sicrhau 
nad oedd unigolion yn ddigartref ar y stryd yn ystod y clo mawr. Disgwyliai 
Llywodraeth Cymru i Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr I ddarparu 
llety dros dro addas gydag ystafell ymolchi i’r garfan hon. Ymestynnodd 
Llywodraeth Cymru’r diffiniad o fregus dan y Ddeddf Tai gyfredol er mwyn 
ystyried effaith y pandemig Covid-19. Yn eu barn nhw, mae’r pandemig Covid-19 
yn fygythiad difrifol ac yn risg eithriadol i’r bobl hynny sy’n ddigartref a’r 
posibilrwydd yw nad yw’r unigolion yma’n gallu cydymffurfio â chyngor iechyd, 
hunan-ynysu, ymbellhau’n gymdeithasol na chynnal y gofynion hylendid 
angenrheidiol ac mae’n ymddangos yn anorfod felly fod person sydd naill ai’n 
ddigartref ar y stryd neu’n wynebu digartrefedd ar y stryd yn llai abl na pherson 
digartref cyffredin i ofalu amdano/amdani ei hun. Golygai’r newid hwn yn y 
canllawiau nad oedd yr unedau llety lle a osodwyd i unigolion digartref yn y 
gorffennol bellach yn cydymffurfio â’r gofynion presennol, h.y. yn sgil ymbellhau 
cymdeithasol, roedd y trothwy capasiti’n is, ac roedd angen hefyd am adnoddau 
ystafell ymolchi unigol yn sgil natur heintus iawn y feirws Covid-19. 

Y llynedd, derbyniodd y Cabinet ein strategaeth i daclo digartrefedd ym Mwrdeistref Sirol 
Pen-y-bont, gyda’r bwriad o “Weithio ar y cyd ar sail gorfforaethol gyda phartneriaid 
allanol, a defnyddwyr gwasanaeth, mewn modd ymatebol, greadigol ac amserol i 
atal a lliniaru digartrefedd drwy’r fwrdeistref sirol yn gyfan, gan sicrhau y gall pobl 
gael mynediad i lety addas, gyda’r gefnogaeth angenrheidiol i gyflenwi eu 
hanghenion”.

Page 12



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MEDI 2020

Nid yw’r pandemig Covid-19 wedi newid ein huchelgais, ond gyda’r cyllid ychwanegol a 
ddarparwyd gan Lywodraeth Cymru, mae wedi rhoi’r modd i ni gyflymu rhan o’n cynllun 
a bwrw ymlaen â phrosiectau a fyddai wedi bod yn disgwyl ar y cyrion am gyllid heblaw 
am hynny. 

Mae ein cynllun ar y cyd yn ystyried fod digartrefedd yn fater cymhleth ac aml-haenog 
sy’n gofyn am ymateb amlweddog. Mae dadansoddiad o anghenion y cohort o bobl a 
dderbyniodd lety yn ystod y pandemig Covid-19 yn cadarnhau hyn. Er enghraifft, o’r rhai 
a dderbyniodd lety yn ystod y pandemig Covid-19, dim ond 1 o’r 15 oedd heb angen 
cefnogaeth, tra bod anghenion gan y gweddill i gyd, oedd yn gofyn am gefnogaeth 
iechyd meddwl a/neu gamddefnydd sylweddau – nid darparu llety yw’r unig ateb. Er 
mwyn sicrhau fod y llety sy’n cael ei ddarparu’n addas ar gyfer yr unigolyn, rhaid bod yr 
unigolyn yn barod ac yn dymuno mynd i’r afael â rhai o’u hanghenion. 

Mae Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont wedi cyflwyno ceisiadau i Lywodraeth Cymru 
ar gyfer prosiectau cyfalaf a refeniw i helpu gyda’r gofynion llety ychwanegol. Isod, 
gwelir rhai enghreifftiau o’r mathau o brosiectau yr ydym wedi eu cefnogi yn sgil cyllid 
ychwanegol oddi wrth Lywodraeth Cymru, ac rwy’n gobeithio y byddwch yn eu gweld yn 
ddefnyddiol, ac fel arfer, rwy’n hapus i drefnu cyfarfod i’w trafod yn fanwl neu os yn 
bosib, drefnu ymweliadau megis yr un a wnaed â Hostel Brynmenyn yr wythnos 
ddiwethaf.

Mae’r prosiectau refeniw yn cynnwys darparu gwasanaethau cefnogi ychwanegol ar 
gyfer Hostel Brynmenyn sydd wedi galluogi’r hostel i gael ei defnyddio ar gyfer 
blaenoriaethu ac adnabod gofynion cefnogaeth defnyddwyr y gwasanaeth. Rydym hefyd 
wedi defnyddio’r grant refeniw i gefnogi Pobl i reoli llety ar Commercial Street ym 
Maesteg ac mae’r Swyddogion yn gweithio ar lefel ranbarthol gydag awdurdodau 
cyfagos a Bwrdd Iechyd Cwm Taf Morgannwg i ddarparu cynllun peilot sy’n ymestyn 
allan i’r rhai sy’n camddefnyddio sylweddau, sydd wedi cael cychwyn cadarnhaol ac 
rwy’n gobeithio y gellir ei gynnal i’r dyfodol.  

Mae’r prosiectau cyfalaf wedi derbyn cefnogaeth ddangosol oddi wrth Lywodraeth 
Cymru a bydd yn edrych i gynyddu faint o unedau llety sydd ar gael ym Mhen-y-bont. 
Amrywia’r cynlluniau yma o brynu adeiladau yn y sector breifat gan Landlordiaid 
Cymdeithasol Cofrestredig (RSLs), ac adnewyddu tai nad ydynt bellach yn cyflenwi 
anghenion ein demograffig digartrefedd i gynyddu capasiti ein cynlluniau cyfredol. 

Yn fy marn i, mae’r Tîm Ymateb Tai wedi gwneud eu gorau glas i ganfod llety i bob 
person digartref ym Mhen-y-bont yn ystod y pandemig Covid-19 ac fe fyddant yn parhau 
â’r gwaith yn ystod y cyfnod hwn o ofid byd-eang.

Yn ei gwestiwn atodol, holodd y Cynghorydd Thomas beth mae’r Cyngor yn ei wneud i 
gefnogi cyn-filwyr o’r lluoedd arfog rhag bod yn ddigartref. Eglurodd Aelod y Cabinet 
dros Les a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol wrth yr Aelodau fod y Cyngor yn gweithio gyda’r 
trydydd sector i gefnogi cyn-filwyr a’u bod wedi arwyddo ymrwymiad i gefnogi cyn-filwyr 
y lluoedd arfog. Hysbysodd Lladmerydd y Lluoedd Arfog y Cyngor eu bod yn cefnogi 
elusennau’r cyn-filwyr ac amlinellodd achos diweddar pan wnaed cyn-filwr yn ddigartref, 
cafodd ei roi mewn llety dros dro cyn ei symud i lety mwy parhaol. Diolchodd y 
Cynghorydd Thomas yr Aelodau am eu hymateb gan ddatgan y byddai’n codi’r mater 
eto drwy gyfrwng cwestiwn ysgrifenedig i Ladmerydd y Lluoedd Arfog. 

Holodd Aelod gwestiwn atodol gan gyfeirio at y trafodaethau helaeth yn ystod y Panel 
Adferiad a holi am effeithiolrwydd y bartneriaeth a’r ymateb a dderbyniwyd oddi wrth 
bartneriaid yn ystod y pandemig. Hysbysodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Les a 
Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol fod y Cyngor wedi cydweithio â’r trydydd sector sydd wedi 

Page 13



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MEDI 2020

ymateb yn sydyn yn ystod y pandemig, gyda chefnogaeth ardderchog oddi wrth y 
Wallich, Caer Las a Phobl. Eglurodd fod yr elfen gefnogaeth yn allweddol yn y cyswllt 
hwn a bod y trydydd sector ac Ymateb Tai wedi cydweithio’n arbennig gyda’i gilydd gan 
gyfarfod yn wythnosol. Ymhellach, roedd Heddlu De Cymru wedi ymateb yn sydyn i 
achosion o ymddygiad gwrthgymdeithasol ac wedi ymgymryd â gwaith ataliol o fewn y 
gymuned. Roedd busnesau lleol, megis perchnogion gwestai a sefydliadau gwely a 
brecwast wedi ymateb yn gadarnhaol drwy ddarparu llety ar gyfer y digartref. 
Mynychodd Landlordiaid Cymdeithasol Cofrestredig gyfarfodydd o’r Panel Ailgartrefu 
Brys er bod eu staff ar seibiant swydd.

Cwestiwn gan y Cynghorydd A Hussain i Aelod y Cabinet dros Wasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar 
Cafwyd rhybudd yn dilyn cyhoeddi adroddiad ar y cyd rhwng y Gymdeithas Llywodraeth 
Leol a’r Ganolfan Iechyd Meddwl sy’n cyfeirio at yr angen am wasanaethau lleol ataliol 
er mwyn helpu i leihau’r anghydraddoldebau iechyd a sicrhau gwell iechyd meddwl i 
bawb.  

All Aelod y Cabinet egluro pa fesurau ataliol sydd wedi eu mabwysiadu o fewn ein Sir er 
mwyn helpu pawb i gadw’n feddyliol iach, yn cynnwys y rhai sydd wedi eu heffeithio gan 
Covid-19? 

Ymateb Aelod y Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar 

Mewn ymateb i’r cwestiwn yn ymwneud â pha fesurau ataliol sydd wedi eu mabwysiadu 
i helpu pobl i gadw’n feddyliol iach o fewn y Fwrdeistref Sirol.

Mae’r isod yn disgrifio’r gwasanaethau sy’n bodoli ar hyn o bryd 

Gwasanaethau Plant:
Bydd nifer o blant yn elwa o dderbyn help a chefnogaeth gynnar ar ryw gyfnod yn ystod 
eu plentyndod a bydd angen help gan arbenigwyr y gwasanaeth iechyd meddwl ar rai. 
Yn ogystal â’r bobl ifanc hynny y mae eu hanghenion iechyd meddwl wedi eu hadnabod, 
mae llawer mwy sy’n wynebu anawsterau cynnar, yn cynnwys y rheini sy’n wynebu byw 
mewn sefyllfaoedd sy’n cynyddu’r risg o ddatblygu problemau sylweddol ac a allai elwa 
o dderbyn cefnogaeth gynnar i hybu iechyd meddwl da mewn modd gweithredol.

Mae ymateb cadarn, graddol yn allweddol i sicrhau iechyd meddwl da ymysg plant a 
phobl ifanc, gan gynnwys y teulu wrth ymwneud â materion megis: genedigaeth iach, 
rhianta cyson, cadarnhaol, cydbwysedd rhwng maeth ac ymarfer corff, cyrhaeddiad yn 
yr ysgol, ffrindiau a’r gallu i ymdopi â digwyddiadau bywyd. Gall plant a phobl ifanc sy’n 
feddyliol iach ddatblygu’n emosiynol, greadigol a deallusol a meddu ar y cryfder i ymdopi 
ag anawsterau bywyd. Cydnabyddir fod profiadau plentyndod yn effeithio’n sylweddol ar 
y gallu i fod yn rhiant effeithiol a chefnogol yn y dyfodol. 

Ceir amrywiaeth eang o wasanaethau ataliol o fewn y portffolio cefnogi gwaith a theulu 
integredig sy’n cefnogi iechyd meddwl plant a phobl ifanc. Mae’r rhain yn cynnwys:  

 Tair canolfan leol wedi eu lleoli yng ngogledd, gorllewin a dwyrain y 
fwrdeistref sirol. Mae’r rhain yn cynnwys gweithwyr cefnogi’r teulu, 
swyddogion ymwneud â’r teulu, cwnselwyr wedi eu lleoli mewn ysgolion, 
gweithwyr ieuenctid, swyddogion lles addysgol, gweithwyr lles emosiynol a 
chwnsela cymdeithasol.  

 Canolfan ganolog sy’n cynnwys amrywiaeth o wasanaethau arbenigol yn 
cynnwys rhai sy’n cefnogi plant ar ‘ymyl gofal’ a’r gwasanaeth cyfiawnder 
ieuenctid.

Page 14



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MEDI 2020

 Gwasanaeth datblygu ieuenctid – gweithwyr ieuenctid, gweithwyr ymwneud, 
gwasanaeth ieuenctid rhan-amser ayb. Yn benodol, ceir tîm lles emosiynol 
ieuenctid sy’n cynnig cefnogaeth i bobl ifanc rhwng 11 a 25 mlwydd oed ar 
sail asesiad anghenion. 

 Gofal plant a blynyddoedd cynnar, yn cynnwys Dechrau’n Deg.

Yn fwy penodol, ceir adnodd gwasanaeth iechyd meddwl plant a llencyndod (CAMHS) o 
fewn canolfan ddiogelu aml-asiantaeth (MASH) ochr yn ochr â dwy nyrs iechyd 
cyhoeddus sy’n gallu cyfeirio plant, pobl ifanc a theuluoedd at y gwasanaethau cywir.  

Y Gwasanaeth Seicoleg Addysg (EPS) 
Parhaodd y Gwasanaeth Seicoleg Addysg i gefnogi ein plant, pobl ifanc, staff 
ysgolion a theuluoedd gyda sylw arbennig i les drwy gyfrwng y dulliau canlynol: 

 cyswllt parhaus a chefnogaeth ymgynghorol ar gyfer ysgolion a 
theuluoedd drwy gyfrwng llinell gymorth dros y ffôn, e-byst a 
chyfarfodydd rhithiol

 datblygu a dosbarthu 11 pecyn o ddeunyddiau ar gyfer ysgolion i 
gefnogi iechyd meddwl a lles staff, disgyblion a theuluoedd yn 
ystod tymor gwanwyn a haf 2020 

 sefydlu ac arwain tasg ddychwelyd i’r ysgol a grŵp gorffen yn ystod 
tymor haf 2020 gyda chynrychiolaeth oddi wrth ysgolion a 
swyddogion yr awdurdod lleol

 anfon holiaduron lles i staff ysgolion ar draws Cyngor Bwrdeistref 
Sirol Pen-y-bont gan gynnig cefnogaeth i bawb a holodd amdano

 datblygu Llyfryn Adferiad, Ailgyflwyno ac Adnewyddu ar gyfer 
Ysgolion a Lleoliadau Addysgol gan gyfeirio at ddigwyddiadau 
critigol er mwyn cefnogi integreiddiad disgyblion nôl i’r ysgol yn 
ystod tymor hydref 2020

 yn dilyn ceisiadau am gefnogaeth, sefydlu dau gynllun yn ystod yr 
hydref hwn: 

o cefnogaeth i ddisgyblion Blwyddyn 11 yn Ysgol Brynteg
o cefnogaeth trosglwyddo i ddisgyblion bregus Blwyddyn 7 yn 

Ysgol Gatholig yr Archesgob McGrath
 caiff teclyn proffilio lles PERMA ei brofi eleni mewn 10 ysgol ym 

Mhen-y-bont
 cynnydd o 100% o safbwynt teclyn goruchwylio cefnogi dysgu 

emosiynol (ELSA) wedi ei ddarparu gan EPS sy’n canolbwyntio ar 
welliant a lles yn ystod y flwyddyn academaidd hon

 ymgymryd â phrosiect ymchwil gofal yn Ysgol Bryn Castell i 
ddechrau

 peilot hyfforddi parod sy’n ymwneud â phrofiadau eithafol plentyndod 
(ACE) drwy gyfrwng webinar a chefnogaeth EPS fyw;

 cynllunio cyfarfodydd drwy gyswllt y seicolegydd addysgol (EP) 
gyda phob ysgol er mwyn adnabod eu blaenoriaethau a’u 
hanghenion o safbwynt cefnogaeth.

 rhoddir sylw cynyddol i les ac adferiad yn ystod y flwyddyn 
academaidd hon, yn ychwanegol at y cynlluniau y cyfeiriwyd atynt 
uchod. Bydd lles ac iechyd meddwl da yn parhau i fod yn sail i’n 
trafodaethau a’n gwaith ymyrryd. 

Gwasanaethau Oedolion

Page 15



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MEDI 2020

Ceir amrywiaeth eang o wasanaethau ataliol ar gyfer oedolion yn cynnwys y rhai sy’n 
cael eu darparu ar y cyd â’r Bwrdd Iechyd. 

Yn 2019, cafodd darpariaeth iechyd meddwl yr Awdurdod Lleol ei ail-fodeli er mwyn 
cynnig gwasanaeth Ataliol ac Ymyrraeth (DEWR) sy’n darparu gwasanaeth cymunedol 
ar gyfer dinasyddion sy’n wynebu salwch meddwl. Gwnaed hyn i sicrhau y gallem 
gefnogi’r dinasyddion hynny nad oedd yn cydymffurfio â chriteria rhai o’n gwasanaethau 
arbenigol. 

Ethos DEWR yw mynd i’r afael â materion cymdeithasol sy’n effeithio ar unigolion neu 
eu teuluoedd/y rhai sy’n eu cefnogi er mwyn rhwystro dechrau salwch meddwl. Mae 
DEWR yn cynnig nifer o ymatebion hyblyg, sy’n canolbwyntio ar y person er mwyn 
sicrhau fod dinasyddion yn gallu ymwneud yn llawn â chymdeithas a bod y ffocws yn dal 
ar eu safbwyntiau, dymuniadau a’u teimladau. Rydym yn gweithio’n uniongyrchol gyda 
dinasyddion a’u teuluoedd gan dargedu’r gefnogaeth gydnabyddedig sydd ei angen 
arnynt er mwyn hybu eu lles meddyliol. 

Gallwn gefnogi dinasyddion sy’n 16 mlwydd oed a throsodd sydd mewn perygl difrifol o 
ddatblygu iechyd meddwl gwael neu ddiffygiol, yn ogystal â’u teuluoedd a’u gofalwyr. 
Gall hyn gynnwys pobl sy’n wynebu digartrefedd, rhai sy’n dioddef o weithrediad uchel o 
safbwynt Anhwylder Sbectrwm Awtistig neu agweddau Anawsterau Dysgu.  

Gall DEWR ddarparu cefnogaeth o safon uchel, sy’n canolbwyntio ar yr unigolyn er 
mwyn cefnogi dinasyddion i gyflawni a chynnal y lefelau uchaf posib o safbwynt 
annibyniaeth a lles meddyliol, naill ai drwy gyfrwng gweithgaredd grŵp neu ar lefel un i 
un. Mae’r tîm hefyd yn cefnogi cydweithwyr Gwasanaethau Plant er mwyn cynorthwyo 
gyda datblygiad a throsglwyddiad plentyn i fyd oedolyn, gan fynd i’r afael ag unrhyw 
faterion iechyd meddwl sy’n amlygu eu hunain.  

Yn ystod y cyfnod anghymharol ac unigryw hwn, bu’n rhaid i’n gwasanaeth addasu er 
mwyn parhau i gyflenwi anghenion ein poblogaeth. Mae cyflwyniad a’r cynnydd yn y 
defnydd o dechnoleg wedi ein galluogi i gefnogi’r gymuned, a thrwy ymroddiad ein staff, 
rydym wedi llwyddo i wynebu’r sialensiau a ddaeth yn sgil Covid-19. Roedd cyswllt 
cyson a chymorth yn hanfodol i nifer o fewn yr ardal, ac ategwyd at bob dull o gysylltu, 
er mwyn darparu cysur a chynnig hyder i’r rhai sy’n derbyn cefnogaeth gennym.  

Drwy gyfrwng Skype, mae staff wedi parhau i gynnig gwaith grŵp megis sesiynau 
garddio, crefft, coginio ac ymwybyddiaeth ofalgar. Mae’r gwaith ataliol beunyddiol er 
mwyn cynnal iechyd meddwl yn parhau, gan mai lles y rhai o dan ein gofal yw ein 
blaenoriaeth, ac rydym hefyd wedi cynyddu ein hymwneud â gofalwyr a’r rhai sy’n 
cefnogi er mwyn cynnal sefydlogrwydd o fewn y cartref yn ystod y fath gyfnodau anodd. 
Ochr yn ochr ag ymdrechion anhygoel ein partneriaid trydydd sector megis BAVO, mae’r 
tîm wedi ymdrechu i gefnogi’r rhai mwyaf bregus o fewn y gymuned, er mwyn sicrhau eu 
diogelwch a rheoli eu hofnau o ganlyniad i’r sefyllfa bresennol.

Yn ôl y disgwyl, mae’r pwysau a’r canlyniadau sy’n gysylltiedig â’r clo mawr megis 
ansicrwydd wedi effeithio ar nifer o’n trigolion, ac mae’r tîm yn dal yn hynod o brysur. Yr 
amcan i’r dyfodol yw parhau i ddatblygu cynlluniau newydd er mwyn targedu heriau sydd 
wedi dod i’r wyneb yn ystod y cyfnod unigryw hwn. Gall y rhain gynnwys hunanhyder a 
gofid am ddelwedd y corf, cynnydd mewn ymddygiad caethiwus a gwaith mwy dwys 
gyda theuluoedd lle mae Anhwylder Sbectrwm Awtistig yn amlwg. Mae tarfu ar drefn 
ddyddiol bywyd wedi effeithio’n fawr iawn ar y grŵp hwn a bydd adran o fewn y tîm yn 
canolbwyntio ar ddarparu ymyrraeth wedi targedu i leihau effaith y pandemig ar y rhai yn 
y categori hwn. Byddwn yn parhau i ddarparu cefnogaeth i’r rhai sydd angen cymorth ar 
y cychwyn cyntaf er mwyn atal yr angen am ymyrraeth tymor hir yn ddiweddarach. 

Page 16



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 16 MEDI 2020

Cefnogi Adferiad yn y Gymuned (ARC) Gwasanaeth Ataliol a Lles ar y cyd rhwng yr 
Awdurdod Iechyd a Lleol yw hwn sy’n darparu Therapi Galwedigaethol, cefnogaeth 
gymunedol a chyngor ymarferol, arweiniad a chefnogaeth strwythuredig ar gyfer 
unigolion sy’n wynebu problemau iechyd meddwl. Mae’r tîm yn cynnig asesiadau, sydd 
wedyn yn gallu darparu amrywiaeth eang ac amrywiol yr ymyrraeth feddygol, therapi 
seicolegol, naill ai mewn grwpiau neu ar lefel un i un. 

Mae’r tîm oedolion yn trafod yn gyson â’n partneriaid o’r trydydd sector a sefydliadau 
gwirfoddol, yr heddlu, gwasanaethau addysg, tai a chyflogaeth gan gyfuno’r gefnogaeth 
a ddarperir ganddynt. 

Roedd y Cynghorydd Hussain yn falch i nodi fod y Cyngor yn gwneud ei orau i gadw 
trigolion yn iach o safbwynt meddyliol, corfforol a chymdeithasol. Mynegodd ofid ynglŷn 
ag absenoldeb unrhyw gyfeiriad at y boblogaeth hŷn sy’n dioddef o iselder, 
arwahanrwydd, unigrwydd a dibyniaeth ar alcohol, ac i beidio ag anghofio ‘syndrom 
straen ôl Covid-19’ ymysg y grŵp hwn. Yn ei gwestiwn atodol, roedd y Cynghorydd 
Hussain yn awyddus i wybod mwyn am y teclyn proffilio lles PERMA fydd yn cael ei brofi 
yn ystod y flwyddyn gan 10 ysgol ym Mhen-y-bont ac a allai Aelod y Cabinet egluro mwy 
wrth y Cyngor amdano? Cytunodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol a 
Chymorth Cynnar ddarparu ateb ysgrifenedig.

Holodd aelod o’r Cyngor am gynlluniau’r Cyngor o safbwynt gweithio gyda’r trydydd 
sector ac a oeddent yn cysylltu â’r Bwrdd Partneriaeth Ranbarthol. Hysbysodd Pennaeth 
Gwasanaethau Plant yr Aelodau fod y gwasanaeth yn gweithio’n agos iawn gyda’r 
trydydd sector sy’n adrodd yn ôl i’r Bwrdd Partneriaeth Ranbarthol, sy’n flaenoriaeth ar 
gyfer y rhanbarth a’i is-grwpiau. 

Cyfeiriodd aelod o’r Cyngor at y posibilrwydd o glo mawr lleol a gofynnodd a allai’r 
Cyngor wneud unrhyw beth yn wahanol. Hysbysodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Wasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar yr Aelodau fod y Cyngor yn gorfod ymateb y n 
ddyddiol i sefyllfa sy’n newid yn gyson. Eglurodd Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Plant wrth y 
Cyngor fod y gwasanaeth yn parhau i weithredu ar lefel lled glo, wrth barhau i gefnogi 
dinasyddion. Caiff camau gweithredu eu hadolygu’n ddyddiol ac mae’r gefnogaeth a 
roddir i ddinasyddion yn cydymffurfio â’r Cynllun Cyflwyno Gwasanaeth ac â chanllawiau 
Llywodraeth Cymru. Yn wyneb clo lleol, meddai, byddai’r gwasanaeth yn ymgymryd â 
mecanwaith trosolwg tynnach unwaith eto. Hysbysodd Aelod y Cabinet dros 
Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar fod staff sy’n gweithio mewn ysgolion 
dan bwysau ac y byddai hynny’n effeithio ar wasanaethau ac y caiff profiadau 
Cynghorau Caerffili a Rhondda Cynon Taf eu holrhain.  

438. MATERION BRYS

Nid oedd unrhyw faterion brys.  

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 18:11

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO COUNCIL

21 OCTOBER 2020

REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

PRESENTATION BY VALLEYS TO COAST & PROGRAMME OF FUTURE 
PRESENTATIONS TO COUNCIL 

1. Purpose of report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to introduce a presentation to Council from Valleys To 
Coast and to inform Members of the programme of future presentations to Council.   

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being objective 
under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015:-  

Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, ecological, 
human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as possible and 
support the creation of resources throughout the community that can help to deliver 
the Council’s well-being objectives.

3. Background

3.1 Arrangements have been made for the Chief Executive and the Director of 
Development of Valleys To Coast to deliver a presentation to Council at the meeting 
of 21 October 2020.    

3.2 Valleys To Coast was formed on 12 September 2003 through a transfer of Bridgend 
County Borough Council housing stock. Following a change in its governance 
structure in 2019 from a local authority and tenant based Board towards a skills based 
Board, as part of the proposal Valleys To Coast undertook to deliver an annual 
presentation to Council which sets out its work; to engage in an annual discussion 
with the Scrutiny process and attend quarterly strategic meetings with the Council.  
This will be the first annual presentation to be delivered to Council.     

3.3 Presentations will be made to future meetings of Council by the Council’s partners, 
the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable of South Wales Police 
and Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board on the following dates:

18 November 2020 - Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable of 
South Wales Police   

16 December 2020 - Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board

4. Current situation/proposal

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



4.1 Members are requested to receive the presentation by the Chief Executive and 
Director of Development of Valleys To Coast.   

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules

5.1 There is no effect upon the policy framework and procedure rules.

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.1 There are no equality implications arising from this report.

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications

7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 
report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report.

8. Financial implications

8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.  

9. Recommendation

9.1 That Members note the presentation by the Chief Executive and Director of 
Development of Valleys To Coast.      

9.2 That Members note the programme of future presentations to Council as outlined at 
paragraph 3.3. 

Mark Shephard 
Chief Executive  
9 October 2020

Contact Officer: Andrew Rees – Democratic Services Manager.

Telephone: (01656) 643147

E-mail: Andrew.rees@bridgend.gov.uk

Postal Address
Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices 
Angel Street
Bridgend
CF31 4WP

Background Documents

None

Page 20

mailto:Andrew.rees@bridgend.gov.uk


BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO COUNCIL

21 OCTOBER 2020

REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the Council’s Annual Report 2019-20 
(Appendix A) for Council to consider and approve.

2. Connections to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities

2.1 The annual report evaluates our progress against our well-being objectives, outlined 
in our Corporate Plan. This report relates to our performance for the year April 2019 
to March 2020 and the well-being objectives for that financial year, namely:

1. Supporting a successful economy – taking steps to make the county a 
good place to do business for people to live, work, study and visit, and to 
ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and 
ambitions of all people in the county. 

2. Helping people to be more self-reliant – taking early steps to reduce or 
prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council and 
its services.  

3. Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all its resources (financial, 
physical, human and technological) are used as effectively as possible and 
support the development of resources throughout the community that can 
help deliver the Council’s priorities.  

3. Background

3.1 According to the Shared Purpose Shared Future statutory guidance (SPSF: 2) for 
the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, individual public bodies 
must annually review the progress of their well-being objectives and publish a report 
to assess the extent to which these objectives contribute to the 7 wellbeing goals in 
accordance with the sustainable development principal.

3.2 Under section 15 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 and in 
accordance with the related statutory guidance issued by the Welsh Government, 
the authority must publish its assessment of performance for the previous financial 
year before 31 October.

3.3 In March 2019, the Council published its Corporate Plan 2018-22, revised 2019-20. 
The Plan sets out its vision, which is, always to act as ‘One Council working together 
to improve lives’, and its three well-being objectives. The Plan also reiterates the well-
being objectives for 2019-20.

Page 21

Agenda Item 7

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-02/spsf-2-individual-role-public-bodies.pdf


3.4 The Plan defined 41 commitments to deliver the three well-being objectives and set 
out 56 outcome focused indicators to measure the progress for the financial year.

3.5 The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) identified how it would best 
use its resources to support the achievement of the well-being objectives and 
statutory duties, including the management of financial pressures and risks over the 
following four years.

4. Current situation / proposal

4.1 The Annual Report, prepared under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015, evaluates how well the Council succeeded in 2019-20 in delivering its 
commitments and planned outcomes for the financial year, using its success 
measures and other evidence.

4.2 Overall, the Council performed well in 2019-20. Of the 41 commitments 34 (82.9%) 
were completed successfully with 3 (7.3%) achieving most of their milestones and 4 
(9.8%) missing most of their milestones.

4.3 Of the 56 indicators identified for the Corporate Plan, 52 can be compared against 
their target:  35 (67.3%) met their target, 9 (17.3%) were off target by less than 10% 
and 8 (15.4%) missed the target by more than 10%.  Detailed information about the 
Council’s performance is included in Appendix A.   

4.4 Due to Covid-19, Welsh Government confirmed that there would be no data 
collection of Public Accountability Measures (PAMs) for 2019-20 therefore no 
analysis has been undertaken in relation to these indicators.

4.5 A summary of funding and financial performance for the year, regulators’ findings 
and themes that underpin our work are also set out in the report.

4.6 This is an important document as it provides citizens and stakeholders with detailed 
information about the Council’s performance against its well-being objectives and 
outcomes.   

4.7 Once approved, the Annual Report will be published on the Council’s website and 
shared with stakeholders. Hard copies of the report will be produced and placed in 
the Council’s public libraries. 

5. Effect upon policy framework& procedure rules

5.1 The Annual Report provides an assessment of progress on the Corporate Plan 2018-
22 which forms part of the corporate policy framework.

6. Equality Impact Assessment 

6.1 The Annual Report provides information on the Council’s performance and has no 
negative equality implications.

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications

Page 22



7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered when writing this report.  It 
is considered there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon the 
achievement of the well-being goals / objectives as a result of this report.  

8. Financial implications

8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

9. Recommendation

9.1 That subject to any amendments by Cabinet on 20 October, that Council approves 
the Annual Report 2019-20 (Appendix A).  

Mark Shephard
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Contact Officer: Wanda Kirby
Corporate Performance Manager

Telephone: (01656) 643382

E-mail:  Wanda.Kirby@bridgend.gov.uk  

Postal Address Corporate Performance Team, Ravens Court, Brewery Lane, 
Bridgend.  CF31 4AP

Background documents

None

Page 23

mailto:Wanda.Kirby@bridgend.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

APPENDIX A  

 

ANNUAL REPORT  

2019-20 
 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR 
 

Page 25

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiqz6yhlaHdAhWHL1AKHYJkAP0QjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.bridgendcommunitytransport.co.uk/&psig=AOvVaw3uGhJtNYugSU5hL_68CLbA&ust=1536144204641243


 

2 

 
 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Introduction       3 

Snapshot of Bridgend County Borough    5 

How we assess our performance    7 

Well-being Objectives      

Well-being Objective 1: Supporting a successful and 

sustainable economy      9 

Well-being Objective 2: Helping people and  
communities to be more healthy and resilient  19 
 
Well-being Objective 3: Smarter use of resources 34 

Financial Performance      45 

What did our Regulators say about us    48 

Our response to Covid-19     50 

Important themes that underpin our work  52 

 
 

 

  

Page 26



 

3 

Introduction  

Welcome to Bridgend County Borough Council’s annual report. It evaluates our progress against 
our well-being objectives, outlined in our Corporate Plan. This report relates to our performance for 
the year April 2019 to March 2020. 
 
Our vision is to act as “one Council working together to improve lives”. We will do this by delivering 
our well-being objectives. These represent our ambitions and commitments to our citizens and our 
contribution to Wales’ seven well-being goals as outlined in the Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015 (the Act). 
 

Progress against our well-being objectives 

This report looks back on the progress we made together during 2019-20 on the steps to meet our 
well-being objectives. To evaluate performance, we have 56 measures of success, which we review 
annually to set targets to drive improvement. 
 
Analysis of performance shows that for 52 of the measures for which we have data: 
 

 35 (67.3%) met their target 

 9  (17.3%) were off target by less than 10% 

 8  (15.4%) missed the target by more than 10% 
 
Trend data is available for 45 indicators.  Of these, 26 (58%) indicators showed an improvement in 
performance or maintained the maximum level of performance compared to last year. 18 (40%) 
indicators showed a downturn in performance, with 1 (2%) being the same 
 
In addition to our measures of success, we also made a number of commitments to support the 
delivery of our well-being objectives. We delivered what we said we would, with 34 (83%) of our 
commitments successfully completed. Three (7%) achieving most of their milestones and a further 
four (10%) judged not to have made sufficient progress. 
 
The implementation of the Social Services and Well-being Act (SSWB) continues to be a priority 
and is a driver for change and for new ways of working.  The principles underpinning the SSWB Act 
align with the sustainable development principle enshrined in the Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015. 
 
We continue to work hard to change and improve services at the same time as having to make 
significant efficiency savings.  For 2019-20, we had to make total savings of £7.621 million with a 
further £2.413 million in 2020-21.  Making smarter use of our resources will include prioritising our 
spend better. It will also mean investing in those things that make the most difference to outcomes 
for local people, and particularly the political priorities around young people and societies most 
vulnerable. 

 
This report focuses on the key activities carried out during 2019-20 to help achieve our well-being 
objectives.  We use a combination of quantitative (measures of success) and qualitative (case 
studies) evidence to measure progress. 
 
Despite the financial challenges we face, we are proud of what we have achieved. We remain 
committed to working with our partners and local communities to achieve our ambitions for Bridgend 
County Borough now and over the longer term.  We are putting in place solid foundations that future 
generations can benefit from and improve on. We do this so that we can provide effective services 
which are important to our citizens, and that will improve people’s lives now and in the future. 

Page 27



 

4 

The Covid-19 pandemic has created unprecedented challenges that have had a dramatic impact 
on the way we do business.  Collaboration, partnership working, committed staff and an army of 
volunteers have helped us to keep delivering vital services and provide support to people from 
across Bridgend County Borough.  Service reform and new ways of working introduced in extremely 
short timescales have provided insight into the benefits of doing different things to support 
communities.  The Council is committed to maximising the lessons learned to inform our planning 
and service design to deliver better outcomes for people who live, work and visit Bridgend County 
Borough.  
 
Please look at our annual report and let us know what you think. For those readers that would like 
to see more in depth information, the report includes many links to detailed reports and data. We 
welcome comments on how we have done and how we can further improve our services for those 
we serve. 
 
 
 
 

 

  

Cllr Huw David – Leader of the Council           Mark Shephard – Chief Executive 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiO8MWxkazfAhXDLFAKHfIuBY4QjRx6BAgBEAU&url=http://www.hays.co.uk/jobs/bridgend-county/latestjobs/index.htm&psig=AOvVaw1U5Zf66gNmWYuAHqBWSfdd&ust=1545317132681406


 

5 

A snapshot of Bridgend County Borough  

In Numbers 

                        Population   144,876 

Area      98.5 square miles  

Households    64,766 

Average House Price  £156,365 (UK HPI: March 2020)  

 

 

Primary schools       48 

Secondary schools       9 

Special schools       3 

Faith schools        6 

Wards         39 

Councillors         54 

Constituency AMs       2  

Regional AMs       4 

MPs         2  

Council staff –excluding schools (Full time equivalent)  4,303 

 

Our Services include: 

Bridgend County Borough Council delivers over 800 services, these include: 

 schools 
 elections 

 social care 
 collecting revenues and administering benefits 

 safeguarding vulnerable adults & children 
 leisure, arts and libraries 

 maintaining highways and public transport 
 supporting business and tourism 

 refuse and recycling 
 special events and festivals 

 street cleaning and safety 
 environmental health 

 parks and play areas 
 planning and building control 

 

Well-being 

Below is a snap shot of economic, social, cultural and environmental well-being across Bridgend 
County Borough. These categories of well-being are prescribed in the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) 2015 Act: 
 
Economic well-being 
 

 76.2% of the working age population are in employment (year ending March 2020) 

 20.6% of pupils achieved 5 GCSEs at A*- A (academic year 2018-19) 

 98.8% of pupils at A level achieved level 3 threshold, (academic year 2018-19) 

 4095 active businesses 

 More than 80 local entrepreneurs helped to start their own business after attending a week-

long course with the PopUp Business School in Bridgend 

 7 awareness sessions held for the EU settlement scheme 

Page 29

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiU5pP45fHcAhXFfFAKHZwcBVkQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.metrofamily.org/programs-and-services/empowerment/success-stories/&psig=AOvVaw0Z5OHhnW89zPFL8M8blYgr&ust=1534516530301819


 

6 

 30 local businesses attended the SME business breakfast to promote apprenticeships 

 Stalls from over 50 businesses and organisations were at the Jobs Fair in Porthcawl where 

over 300 people came to see opportunities available 

Social well-being  
 

 22% of adults take part in sport 3 times a week 

 30,055 junior swims – 4,219 disabled children supported 

 47,506 over 60’s free swims recorded for 5,200 individual users 

 1968 referrals through the National Exercise Referral Scheme resulting in 28,625 visits to 

72 weekly classes 

 70% of adults feel they have good or very good general health 

 More than seven out of every 10 children is a healthy weight (74.4%) 

 5 hours of day time support provided for rough sleepers every day Monday to Friday 

throughout the year 

 1,857 young people got involved in 123 outreach activities and drop in sessions across 

Bridgend County Borough to address anti-social behaviour.  

Cultural well-being 
 

 74% of adults attend or participate in arts, culture or heritage activities at least three times a 
year  

 65% of people strongly agree that the ‘Welsh language is something to be proud of’ 

 27% of adults volunteer 

 11,437children attended library events and activities over the summer holidays in 2019 

 2,472 children took part in the Summer Reading Challenge in 2019 

 45,882 children attended library events and activities throughout 2019-20 

 167,127  children’s books were borrowed in 2019-20 

 794 Year 6 Pupils received National Cycle Standards training during 2019-20  

Environmental well-being  
 

 83% of people are satisfied with their local area as a place to live 

 2,210 trees were planted at 6 locations across Bridgend County Borough 

 67.66% of waste in Bridgend County Borough is recycled which is above the Welsh 

Government target of 64% 

 In 2019-20, Bridgend County Borough residents recycled 7,893 tonnes of food waste, which 

is enough to power a typical school for over four years. 

 Bridgend Green Network has been established to bring together volunteer coordinators for 

environmental and conservation activities.  22 Members from 14 different organisations are 

volunteering to improve our green spaces. 

 Rest Bay, Trecco Bay and Porthcawl Marina retained their Blue Flag awards  

 9 parks across Bridgend County Borough achieved a Green Flag award from Keep Wales 

Tidy 

 

  

Page 30



 

7 

How we assess our performance 

The Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires public bodies to act in a manner 

that seeks to ensure the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future 

generations to meet their own needs.  Based on the sustainable development principle, our well-

being objectives are intended to deliver long term positive outcomes. We review progress annually 

to ensure planned activities are getting us closer to our goals.  Our well-being objectives also 

discharge our statutory duty under the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 to ‘make 

arrangements to secure continuous improvement’.  We use a combination of quantitative 

performance measures and targets to assess performance, along with the progress of our 

commitments to help deliver our key programmes. 

 

Our contribution to the well-being goals 

Our well-being objectives are designed to maximize our contribution to achieving the seven national 
well-being goals. These are set out below: 
 

Well-being Goal Well-being 
Objective: 

Supporting a 
successful economy 

Well-being 
Objective: 

Helping people be 
more self-reliant 

Well-being 
Objective: 

Smarter use of 
resources 

A prosperous Wales ✓  ✓ 

A resilient Wales   ✓ 

A healthier Wales ✓ ✓ ✓ 

A more equal Wales ✓ ✓ ✓ 

A Wales of cohesive communities ✓ ✓ ✓ 

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving 
Welsh language 

✓ ✓  

A globally responsible Wales ✓   

 

Performance measures 

 

A number of performance measures are identified within the Council’s Corporate Plan which help 

show the progress made in delivering the Well-Being Objectives we have set ourselves. Where 

applicable, targets are set against these performance measures to show what we want to achieve. 

Performance measures are assigned a Red Amber Green (RAG) status: 

• green where the measure is on or above target 
• amber where the result is within 10% of the target 
• red where the result is greater than 10% from the target. 

 

Page 31



 

8 

The trend arrow refers to the improvement trend.  An improved trend on last year’s performance will 
indicate an upward arrow.  A brief explanation of where performance is below target is also given.  
  
 

Key: = increased or 

maximum performance 

 = performance declined   = performance stayed the 

same 

 

Commitments 

 

Progress against our key programmes’ commitments affects how we assess progress on each well- 

being objective. We assign a RAG status to each commitment using a balanced appraisal of 

performance along with the current progress of agreed tasks. The self-assessment categories are 

below: 

 

A red status means that there are delays of more than 10% of the total length of the 

planned action. And/or budget and/or performance measures for the commitment are 

mostly red. 

 

An amber status means that there are delays of less than 10% of the total length of the 

planned action. And/or performance measures for the commitment are a mixture of red, 

amber and green. 

 

A green status means that the commitment is being met, and on budget. Also that the 

performance measures are mostly green. 

  

Page 32



 

9 

Well-being Objective 1 

Supporting a successful economy 
 

Why we choose this objective? 
We want to build a county borough where people have more opportunities to secure meaningful 

work, develop a career and improve their family income and circumstances.  We know that higher 

levels of prosperity boost health and well-being and create more resilient communities that need 

fewer services.  We believe that education remains the most important lever for improving the life 

chances of young people.  We believe that a successful economy can and should be balanced 

against the needs of the environment.  
 

What do we want to achieve? 
Our Aims  

1. To help local people develop skills and take advantage of opportunities to succeed and to 

extend that success to every community in the county borough  

2. To create conditions for growth and enterprise  

3. To create successful communities 

Our key programmes. 
Under this objective, there are four key programmes to help achieve our aims and deliver 

improvements in well-being. 

 

Cardiff Capital Region City Deal  
Bridgend County Borough Council and its neighbouring South East Wales Councils, make up the 

Cardiff Capital Region City Deal.  The £1.28 billion Deal will deliver a range of programmes that will 

increase connectivity, improve physical and digital infrastructure as well as regional business 

governance over the next 10-15 years.  The Deal is projected to deliver 25,000 extra jobs across 

the region.  

Strategic Review of Post 16 Education and Training –  

This programme evaluates education provision and curriculum delivery across Bridgend County 

Borough. It ensures there are clear options available to provide the best possible opportunities for 

learners in the county borough.  

Successful Economy Programme – 

This programme consists of key regeneration and development schemes, including regeneration 

and a flood defence scheme in Porthcawl and Maesteg Town Hall Redevelopment.  We are also 

developing a programme of improvement in Bridgend Town Centre, using Welsh Government’s 

Targeted Regeneration Investment Programme.  As part of the Valleys Taskforce, we are working 

to maximise opportunities for regeneration in the valleys.  

Tackling Poverty  
To ensure a consistent and targeted approach to tackling poverty we are streamlining the available 
grants to tackle poverty so we can focus on alleviating child poverty and supporting vulnerable 
families.  We are doing this through early intervention initiatives including Flying Start, Families First, 
Supporting People and Communities First Legacy Funding.    

 

Page 33



 

10 

How did we do? 

Performance Measures  

 
Aim – To help local people develop skills and take advantage of opportunities to succeed 

Measure and preferred outcome 
(higher or lower) 

Actual 
2018 -19 

Target 
2019 - 20 

Actual 2019 
- 20 

& RAG 
Trend 

Wales 
average 

Percentage of working age population 
that is in employment.** (Higher) 

70.8% 71% 76.2% 
 

76.6% 

Percentage of economically active 16 - 
64 year olds.** (Higher) 

74.0% 74% 78.6% 
 

73.7% 

Number of apprentices employed 
across the organisation. (Higher) 

43 25 35 
 

N/A 

Number of apprenticeships taken by 
looked after children. (Higher) 

1 1 2 
 

N/A 

Percentage of Year 11 leavers from 
schools in the authority identified as not 
being in education, employment or 
training (NEETs) in the Careers Wales 
Destination Survey. (Lower) 

0.9% 1.3% 0.7% 
 

1.8% 

Percentage of care leavers who are in 
education, training or employment at: 
a) 12 months 

b) 24 months after leaving care 
(Higher) 

a) 63.64% 60% 54.55% 
 

N/A 

b) 57.89% 60% 57.14% 
 

N/A 

a)  This was impacted by a small cohort, who disengaged from programmes they had signed up to the 
beginning of the academic year.  A renewed focus in supervision of young people who are NEET will be 
taken forward into 20-21. 
b)  Where the young people are NEET this relates to physical or mental health issues which prevents them 
from working, or they are in custody. We will continue to strive to improve our performance in this area. 

Percentage of 16 - 64 year olds without 
qualifications.* (Higher) 

10.5% 11.2% 9.2% 
 

8.2% 

Percentage of schools meeting the 
Learning & Skills Measure in terms of 
the subject offer at Key Stage 4 & Post 
16. (Higher) 

100% 100% 100%  N/A 

Number of participants in the 
Employability Bridgend programme 
going into employment (Higher) 

New 
2019-20 

180 334 N/A N/A 

Gross Value added per head (Higher, 
data published one year in arrears) 

£3,077 £3,078 £3,209 
 

N/A 

* Data for year ending Dec 2019 (Stats Wales)         **Data for the year ending March 2020 

(statswales) 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



 

11 

Aim – To create conditions for growth and enterprise 

Measure and preferred outcome 
(higher or lower) 

Actual 
2018 -19 

Target 
2019 -20 

Actual  
2019 - 20 

& RAG 
Trend 

Wales 
average 

Total annual expenditure by tourists. 
(Higher) 

£347.3m £347.4m £362.69m 
  

N/A 

The number of business start-ups. 
(Higher) 

460 461 475 
 

N/A 

The number of active businesses. 
(Higher) 4160 4161 4095 

 
N/A 

Whilst this is only slightly lower, future figures are going to be negatively affected by the impact of COVID 
– 19. Economic recovery planning will be at the forefront of our activities for the coming year to mitigate 
the potential hit as businesses go into administration (Note: Due to a lag in data, figure provided is for 
2018). 

The percentage occupancy of Council-
owned starter units. (Higher) 

93.5% 93.5% 95% 
 

N/A 

 

Aim – To create successful town centres 

Measure and preferred outcome 
(higher or lower) 

Actual 
2018 -19 

Target 
2019 -20 

Actual 
2019 - 20 
& RAG 

Trend 
Wales 

average 

The number of visitors to town centres 
- footfall for:  (Higher) 

a) Bridgend 
a) 6.7m 7.2m 6.3m  N/A 

b)      Porthcawl b) 2.1m 2.5m 2.7m 
 

N/A 

Bridgend town centre footfall was adversely affected by a number of factors. Nationally, the uncertainty 
over BREXIT and a general election dented consumer confidence across the UK. Locally, the closure of 
the Ford plant and periods of heavy rain and flooding throughout the winter were a factor. The current 
configuration of the pedestrian space and Traffic Regulation Order in the town centre are seen by many 
visitors and businesses as barriers to footfall growth. 

The number of vacant premises in town 

centres   (Lower) 

      a)  Bridgend 

a) 60 69 64 
 

N/A       b)  Maesteg b) 10 9 13 
 

      c)  Porthcawl c) 11 10 19  

      d)  Pencoed d) 6 6 7 
 

BCBC are progressing the review of its Local Development Plan with a view to consulting later in 2020. 
This will contain appropriate retail policies which will help to promote the vitality and viability of BCBC’s 
town centres. 

The financial value of externally funded 
town centre regeneration projects 
underway/in development. (Higher) 

 
£20.8m 

 
£13m 

 
£15m 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 

 

  

Page 35



 

12 

Steps taken to achieve our key programmes  
 

We made 15 commitments to support the delivery of this well-being objective, through our four key 

programmes.  For 12 commitments, we achieved all that we had planned. Therefore, we have 

assessed our performance as green. The remaining three commitments we assessed as red 

because we did not fully complete the planned actions.  We did not make a decision within the 

financial year 2019-20 regarding post 16 provision.  We have since asked schools to work togather 

to deliver on a range of improvements to the current situation. We did not complete our actions to o 

progress strategies to assist young people who are more able and talented as this is now being 

delivered through the Central South Consortium.  All activities to drive forward our agenda in support 

of pupils eligible for free school meals were completed apart from one.  Changes to the structure of 

some resources planned to provide targeted support to vulnerable learners in having their 

educational needs met were delayed.  These have now been reconfigured.     

Cardiff Capital Region City Deal  
 

We are one of 10 Local Authorities that are part of the Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) City Deal 

programme.  City Deal will help boost economic growth by improving transport links, increasing 

skills, building homes, helping people into work and giving businesses the support they need to 

grow. 

 

Metro Plus 

The Metro Plus programme was initially agreed in March 2019.  CCR City Deal in collaboration with 

Welsh Government and Transport for Wales identified a proposed £50 million for local transport 

schemes to support the implementation of the South Wales Metro. 

The programme is designed to create ‘interchanges’ incorporating all modes of transport which can 

act as key hubs for using new and extended metro networks.  This will improve access to work, 

training, education, culture, retail and leisure throughout the region 

Phase 1 of Metro Plus saw each Local Authority within South East Wales receive a £3m share 

towards implementing schemes in their area.  In Bridgend County Borough the funding is being 

used to implement a Park and Ride facility at Pyle as part of the development of an integrated 

transport hub.  The hub will serve the local community and the nearby settlements of Porthcawl, 

Kenfig Hill, Cefn Cribwr and Cornelly with enhanced links to Village Farm Industrial estate.  A bus 

interchange at Porthcawl is included with Active Travel connections.   Programme delivery 

commenced in 2019 and will be complete by 2022. 

The CCR is poised for the next stage of the South Wales transport network development.  The 

potential Metro Plus phase 2 programme includes eleven local projects across the region. For 

Bridgend County Borough these are the Brackla Railway station and Pencoed Crossing. 

 

Cardiff Capital Region Graduate Internships  

 
A significant development for the City Deal was the launch of a graduate internship scheme.  The 

scheme has provided targeted support to assist businesses create high quality placement 

opportunities.  

The objective is to retain talented graduates in the region by highlighting the available employment 

opportunities and the investments in state-of-the art sectors such as financial technology, cyber 

security and compound semiconductors.  The scheme is open to graduates from all degree 

backgrounds. 

Page 36



 

13 

Key performance data on the CCR graduate scheme to end March 2020: 

 213 businesses engaged across the region, 17 of which were within the local authority of 

Bridgend 

 58 placement opportunities developed and advertised across the CCR 

 26 graduates placed with businesses across the CCR 

Apprenticeships 

Apprenticeships remain a workforce planning priority.  We employed 35 apprentices during 2019-

20.  The Council benefits from investing in growing our own talent to help with succession planning, 

and there are well-being improvements for those taking up the opportunity. Learning a new skill, 

connecting with people helps improve self-esteem, confidence, life satisfaction and improve job 

prospects.   

To increase the number of looked after children taking up apprenticeships, the LAC Apprenticeship 

Group have  

 Developed a pre-apprenticeship scheme  
 Promoted apprenticeships to looked after children in Year 11 
 Ensured relevant support is available to access the scheme 
 
In addition, 26 looked after children in Year 11 were contacted about work experience with seven 

expressing an interest.  Three engaged in work placements at Bryn y Cae, BCBC Catering 

Department and Bryngarw Park, two more secured employment.   

 

Strategic Review of Post 16 education and training  
 

A final decision on post 16 provision was expected during 2019. However, it was agreed in 

November 2019 that it would be prudent to conduct a second public consultation to measure the 

public views on the final three options.  

 

 Option 1.  A mix of school sixth forms with some mergers to create new local authority 

maintained sixth-form centre(s).  

 Option 2.  A mix of school sixth forms with some mergers to create new further education 

(FE) college-governed sixth-form centre(s).  

 Option 3.  The retention of sixth forms in all schools - the current position  

The consultation took place between 2 December 2019 and 21 February 2020.  To maximise the 

response rate a mixed methodology was used to gather views.  Analysis of the findings from each 

of the data sources indicated that Option 3 is the preferred option.  This option is now being taken 

forward as a solution for the foreseeable future.  Schools have been tasked to work together to 

deliver on a range of improvements to the current situation.   

More able and talented students 

Each year our schools identify the brightest students and invite them to join the Seren Academy 

Network.  In September 2019, Year 12 students for the Seren Academy network (post-16) and the 

Seren Foundation network (Years 8 to 11) were identified and recruited. The programmes are 

supported by grants from Welsh Government and good progress was made during 2019-20.   

Page 37



 

14 

We continue to be committed to progress the development of strategies to assist young people who 

are more able and talented to help them reach their potential.  However, we did not progress with 

this initiative as this is now being delivered through the Central South Consortium (CSC).  The CSC 

are developing a regional More Able and Talented strategy, but activity was suspended due to the 

Covid-19 emergency.  It is anticipated this work will be restarted in the autumn term of 2020.  While 

formal education was suspended, the Council and CSC have worked in partnership to develop an 

“Excellence and Equity” teaching and learning strategy. Upon completion in autumn 2020, the 

document will be used to continue to support the improvement in specific groups of learners. 

 

Successful Economy Programme 

 
Porthcawl  

 

Porthcawl has undergone significant regeneration to secure its future as a premier seaside town, 

creating jobs, homes and investment in the local economy for years to come.  The £3m project to 

replace sea defences at Town Beach, has helped to transform the seafront area and protect 260 

homes, businesses and historic buildings such as the Grand Pavilion.   

The next phase of the Councils’ £6m plan to protect Porthcawl from flooding and coastal erosion 

have been submitted to Welsh Government.  The business case has been approved, and the 

tendering process is underway.  The new flood defence will see major work undertaken on the 

Western Breakwater, Eastern Promenade and Sandy Bay areas. The new flood defence will protect 

530 homes and 175 businesses while complementing regeneration plans for Salt Lake. The 

improvements will act as assurance for future and current investors, businesses, visitors, and 

residents. 

The new £1.5m Rest Bay Watersports Centre 

opened in October 2019.  It has been purpose-

built for surfers, kayakers, canoeists and 

paddleboard fans, as well as cyclists and 

walkers.  The complex also includes a café, 

changing cubicles and showers, all weather 

bicycle storage, accessible beach wheelchairs 

and year-round lessons in watersports 

activities 

EU funding was made available through the 

Welsh Government’s Tourism Attractor programme to help create this ‘must see’ destination to be 

enjoyed by visitors and residents alike. 

In addition to physical regeneration, efforts to boost recycling, ensure Porthcawl is a tidy, and litter 

free place to live and visit.  In partnership with Porthcawl Town Council we are trialling an innovative 

solution to the problem of discarded chewing gum.  People are encouraged to dispose gum in ‘Gum 

Drop’ bins attached to lampposts along John Street.  The bins are made from recycled chewing 

gum. They can be removed and recycled along with their contents to create a range of products, 

including new bins and wellington boots.  Porthcawl is one of the first Welsh towns to feature the 

innovative bins. 

Three new-dedicated bins for recycling fast-food packing are available on the Western Promenade, 

John Street and Griffin Park.  Two water fountains will be installed along the seafront to encourage 

people to fill up reusable bottles instead of buying single-use plastic bottles.  

Page 38



 

15 

Maesteg Town Hall 

 

In partnership with Awen Cultural Trust we are redeveloping Maesteg Town Hall, a grade II listed 

building to become a cultural community venue to support the social and economic regeneration of 

the town and wider valley communities. The project will generate employment opportunities; provide 

a prominent and suitable arena for commercial, learning and cultural use and help sustain Maesteg 

town centre and increase town centre footfall. Construction is expected to take 15 months to 

complete having been scheduled to commence in February 2020. 

 

Planned improvements include a modern library, a heritage and volunteering centre, a café, new 

workspaces, toilets and fully accessible 'changing place' facilities.  A multifunctional performing arts 

centre is to be created on the first floor.  This will incorporate the main hall, a renovated stage, 

improved dressing rooms, a bar and for the first time a smaller, more intimate studio theatre and 

community cinema.  The balcony seating area will be refurbished.  Both upper and lower floors will 

be linked by a modern glazed atrium and foyer to address accessibility throughout the building. 

 

Bridgend town centre 

 

As part of our work to support business and make the town more attractive and accessible the 

indoor market has seen a lot of improvement work to help breathe a new lease of life into it.  Over 

the last year, a series of illustrative panels providing information about the market’s rich history have 

been set up to welcome shoppers.  The market bell, which dates back to 1837 has been relocated 

to the main entrance.  

 

A central market area is now available for specialist events, family entertainment, children’s play 

facilities and other activities designed to encourage footfall and support trade.  Tables and chairs 

allow people to enjoy a sit down lunch for food purchased at the market.  

 

As part of the revamp, new public toilets 

were built in partnership with Bridgend 

Town Council and the market traders 

association.  Located by the rear 

entrance, one will be wheelchair 

accessible and contain baby-changing 

facilities. 

 

Covid-19 and the lockdown has had a 

significant impact on traders.  To support 

stallholders and other small and 

mediums sized enterprises, the Council 

provided rent-free support for both the 

Bridgend and Maesteg markets. 

 

Valleys Task Force 

 

We are working alongside partner authorities in South East Wales to deliver a number of regional 

projects supported by the VTF, including the Empty Homes Grant. The grant helps support the 

delivery of the Council’s priority of returning empty properties into use in the valleys area of Bridgend 

County Borough, to help generate communities and provide more choice and suitable 

accommodation for residents. Three projects are completed and the Council has committed to 

phase two to ensure a further year of funding.   

Page 39



 

16 

We have also begun delivering a pilot foundational economy project B-Ridges in Bridgend and 

Maesteg town centres.  The project will trial new approaches and create a support package for start-

up businesses linked to the foundation economy.  As defined by Welsh Government, this consists 

of basic services and products that people rely on, that keep the population safe, sound and 

civilised.  Welsh Government provided £75,000 of the £100,000 total cost, with the ‘Kickstart’ 

funding programme supplementing the funding gap.  

 

Work is underway with both the Bryngarw and Parc Slip discovery sites as part of the Valleys 

Regional Park (VRP) investment programme.  Working with delivery partners AWEN (Bryngarw 

Park) and Wildlife Trust (Par Slip) both schemes aim to maximise the social, economic and 

environmental potential of the valleys’ natural, cultural and heritage assets.   

 

Caerau Heat Scheme and Bridgend Town Heat Network Project 

 

The Caerau Heat Scheme is an innovative project.  The project aims to provide a sustainable low 

carbon source of heat for hundreds of homes in Caerau. The scheme forms part of our approach 

towards responding to the decarbonisation agenda through the delivery of our Smart Energy Plan.  

The project gathered further momentum during 2019-20.   

 

The Welsh European Funding Office (WEFO) approved additional funding of £330,000, with a total 

grant offer of approx. £7.3 million.  Nordic Heat were procured to deliver the technical and financial 

advice to the project and will support the development of an outline business case through to 

procurement.  Work is progressing on a private wire from a local wind farm to provide electricity to 

the scheme.  Options for the commercial delivery of the scheme are also being looked at. 

 

The Bridgend Town Heat Network Project aims to supply several public buildings and homes with 

heat and power.   Energy will be generated from a gas combined heat and power unit in the Bridgend 

Life Centre.  We received a funding award of £241,000 from the Heat Network Investment 

Programme (HNIP) to conduct pre-commercialisation activities.  This includes planning permission 

for the scheme, internal approval for the revised financial model and seeking approval from Council 

to provide borrowing for the construction of the scheme.  A further £1m of capital funding is also 

available up until March 2021 subject to the project successfully passing through the pre-

commercialisation stage. 

 

TACKLING POVERTY 
 

Financial well-being 

The debt burden associated with poverty can be extreme.  Debt affects people's ability to make 

decisions, including financial decisions, causing them to focus on short-term income over long-term 

gains, among other effects.  Supporting people to manage their finances has a significant role to 

play in reducing future poverty.  

 

The Housing Benefit and Supporting People teams collaborated to procure financial advice and 

support services from Citizens Advice. The service ran from 1 October 2018 to 31 March 2020 with 

an option to extend for a further year.  The service, known as Financial Advice and Support Service 

(FASS) supports people in poverty or at risk of poverty due to any of the following reasons 

 Debt problems  

 Financial difficulty 

Page 40



 

17 

 Unemployment (claiming benefits, including Universal Credit (UC) 

 In work poverty 

 Budget management issues 

The FASS service have supported 617 new clients, 83% of these clients residing in the former 

Communities First areas of Bridgend County Borough.  The service reported almost £20,000 of debt 

written off and over £1million in financial gains achieved.  This was mainly through welfare benefit 

applications. 

 
Bridgend Learning Partnership 

Having the right skills to access quality jobs is a key route out of poverty.  As a member of the 

Bridgend Learning Partnership, we work with partners to improve the skills level of the workforce in 

to tackle inequality by getting more people into work and better paid jobs. 

The Partnership has continued to promote apprenticeship opportunities, particularly to under 

represented groups.  Over 3,000 students aged 11 to 16 attended ‘Have a Go events ’ held in 

schools across the borough.  The days are interactive and provide students with the opportunity to 

experience the wide range of apprenticeship opportunities available locally and nationally.  The 

board also promoted the benefits of the apprenticeship programme to local businesses via business 

meetings and well-being events. 

Seventy-two young people are undertaking the junior apprenticeship programme at Bridgend 

College.  Students attend 5 days a week and study Maths and English GCSE as well as their chosen 

vocational route, and nine young people with additional learning needs have completed the Intern 

Programme at the Princess of Wales Hospital.   

Employability 

Employability Bridgend has had a successful year, with a very effective outreach and engagement 

strategy.  This included 19 drop in sessions weekly and 12 engagement events and fun days to 

raise awareness of the support available.  During 2019-20, we supported 1,254 participants from 

across Bridgend County Borough.  Some 334 people entered employment.  We worked with people 

currently in jobs, to further their development and improve their job prospects through training and 

mentoring. Some 204 people took up this offer of in work learning.  

Volunteering is another avenue we utilise to help people progress. During the year, 93 participants 

volunteered.  This is a very effective way of learning new skills and identifying new job routes, while 

at the same time having a positive impact on well-being.  Training is an essential aspect of the 

employability support.  350 participants went on courses to improve their skill set and increase their 

chances of gaining employment or to find better jobs.  While numbers tell one part of the story, the 

real impact on people’s lives and families is best understood through the words on one of our 

participants.  

Page 41



 

18 

 

Vulnerable learners 

We continued to work with schools to close the gap in educational attainments for pupils eligible for 

free school meals and those who are not and improve outcomes for vulnerable groups including 

looked after children and young carers.  In the 2018-2019 academic year (reported in the 2019-

2020 financial year), the gap in performance at key stage 4 between pupils eligible for free school 

meals and those who are not, was smaller than the all-Wales average at 28.8% compared with 

32.1%.  All activities to drive forward our agenda in support of pupils eligible for free school meals 

were completed apart from one.  Changes to the structure of some resources planned to provide 

targeted support to vulnerable learners in having their educational needs met were delayed.   These 

resources are now reconfigured and the new ‘Access to Education Team’ will focus strongly on 

supporting the narrowing the gap agenda in 2020-2021. A profiling tool is being offered to all schools 

to track wellbeing progress in children who are looked after and young carers. 

 

We continued to work with CSC to support schools in implementing the ‘Closing the gap’ strategy.    

The Additional Learning Needs (ALN) forum was launched in December 2019.  This work is 

ongoing.  Meetings have been held with Bridgend College to look at the young people that we 

currently have within the education system whose pathway may be Bridgend College. 

 

Work with Careers Wales and Job Centre Plus to identify and support young people who are NEET 

(not in education, employment or training) through the ‘Inspire to Work’ Project continued.  These 

partnerships have resulted in getting more participants into employment than was originally 

projected.  To further our partnership links, plans were in place to house Inspire 2 Work staff in Job 

Centres throughout the borough to simplify the offer of support when a young person presents. 

With the onset of the Covid-19 crisis, these plans have been put on hold.  These plans will need to 

be amended, but the drive from all parties is to co-locate staff to enhance partnership 

arrangements. 

 

  

Case Study: Employability  
 
Davinia had been unemployed for several years and wanted a change of direction.  She had 
some training in electrical work but felt she was struggling to get her foot in the door of the 
construction industry.  She wanted to show her teenage daughter that women could achieve 
anything they set their mind to. 
 
A neighbour recommended she go to the local Life Centre to meet with Employability Bridgend, 
which she did.  Once signed up, Davinia was put on a CSCS course and received support with 
travel costs.  She passed the CSCS course and her mentor supported her to secure 
employment through Bluewater Recruitment.  
 
Davinia says, “Best decision ever coming to meet you... can’t believe the help I had on my 
doorstep, it baffles me to why people aren’t queuing at your door, thanks so much for 
everything.” 

Page 42



 

19 

Well-being Objective 2                                        

Helping people to be more self-reliant 

 

Why we choose this objective? 

 
Providing the right support, in the right place, at the right time can make a real difference to 

outcomes and ensure individuals and families can thrive.  A people centred approach with a focus 

on prevention and wellbeing helps ensure we support people to lead independent lives and reduces 

the likelihood of becoming dependent on Council services.  

 

By building on our track record of working with the third sector, the not-for-profit and private sector, 

we can support communities to develop their own approaches to local issues and meet people’s 

needs within the community.    

 

What do we want to achieve? 
Our aims 

1. To give people more choice and control over what support they receive by providing early 

access to advice and information; 

2. To reduce demand by investing in targeted early help and intervention programmes; 

3. To support the third sector, town and community Councils and community groups to build 

community resilience.  

Key Programmes  

Under this objective, there are two key programmes to help achieve our aims and deliver 

improvements in well-being. 

 

Remodelling Social Care 

 We will continue with this large programme of recommissioning adult home care, developing 

extra care and information and advice services for people and their carers. 

 Working with partners, we are implementing a Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) as a 

single point of contact for all safeguarding concerns. 

 We are implementing new models of residential care for children and young people and 

respite care for children with disabilities in order to make them more targeted and more 

effective. 
 

Community Asset Transfer  

This programme is about the sustainable transfer of assets to communities as a way to preserve 

community assets for the long-term and contribute to building community resilience. 

  

Page 43



 

20 

How did we do? 
 

Performance Measures  
Set out below is how we performed against the performance measures we set ourselves to meet 

this well-being objective and what we achieved in 2019-20 against our two key programmes. 

Aim – To give people more choice and control over what support they receive by providing 

early access to advice and information 

Measure and preferred outcome 

(higher or lower) 

Actual 

2018-19 

Target 

2019- 20 

Actual 
2019-20 
& RAG 

Trend 
Wales 

average 

The percentage of 
a) adults  
b) children 

who received advice and assistance from the 
information, advice and assistance service 
during the year. (Higher) 

 
a) 74.36% 

 
65% 

 
63.91% 

 

 
N/A 

 
b) 81.37% 

 
75% 

 
80.06% 

 
N/A 

Target marginally missed. Staffing cover has been a challenge for the service.  As transformation funding 
became available, recruitment has taken place towards the latter quarter of the year to mitigate this. 

The percentage of people who are satisfied 
with the care and support they received 
(Higher) 

a) Children aged 7-17 years 
b) Adults aged 18 years+ 

a) 86% 85% *N/A N/A 

*N/A 

b) 82.87% 85 % *N/A N/A 

The number of people who have been diverted 

from mainstream services to help them remain 

independent for as long as possible. (Higher) 

1284 1000 1508 

 

 
N/A 

The percentage of adults who completed a 
period of reablement and six months later have 
(Higher): 

a ) a reduced package of care and support  
b) no package of care and support 

a) 67.27% 70% 71.43% 
 

N/A 

b) 61.31% 60% 68.48% 
 

N/A 

*Data no longer collected as per Welsh government decision to cancel this survey 

Aim – To reduce demand by investing in targeted early help and intervention programmes 

Measure and preferred outcome 

(higher or lower) 

Actual 

2018-19 

Target 

2019- 20 

Actual 
2019-20 
& RAG 

Trend 
Wales 

average 

The percentage of children supported to remain 
living within their family (Higher) 

64.13% 65% 62.83% 
 

N/A 

Ongoing monitoring of caseloads to ensure care and support cases are appropriately closed or stepped 
down to Early Help has resulted in stable workloads, whilst LAC numbers also remained stable. The effect 
of these 2 factors means our performance is consistently close to target and will continue to be monitored.  

The percentage of children who receive 
Connecting Families interventions during the 
year who remain out of the care system as at 31 
March of that year (Higher) 

93.4% 85% 92.5% 
 

N/A 

The percentage of completed TAF (Team Around 
the Family) support plans that close with a 
successful outcome (Higher) 

69% 72% 70% 
 

N/A 

Page 44



 

21 

Measure and preferred outcome 

(higher or lower) 

Actual 

2018-19 

Target 

2019- 20 

Actual 
2019-20 
& RAG 

Trend 
Wales 

average 

A greater number of cases were 'stepped up' to statutory services.  This was the right outcome given the 
presenting circumstances.  As these are recorded as TAFs closing without a positive outcome, it reflects 
negatively on performance. 

The percentage of looked after children on 31 
March who have had three or more placements 
during the year (Lower) 

10.24% 12% 9.39% 
 

N/A 

The percentage of individuals discussed at 
Transition Panel that have a transition plan in 
place by age of 16/17 (Higher) 

100% 100% 100%  N/A 

The percentage of households threatened with 
homelessness successfully prevented from 
becoming homeless (Higher) 

70.6% 70% 66.2% 
 

N/A 

The latter part of the year saw the transition from the old operating system to Jigsaw, which coincided with 
an increase in the level of, drop ins who were homeless and required immediate response.  Covid 19 had 
limited impact on these figures but will have a significant impact going forward, as there will be a large 
increase in final duties due to new WG guidelines regarding priority need status. In addition, the lockdown 
hampered the usual preventative actions we have been able to undertake. 

The percentage of people presenting as 
homeless or potentially homeless, for whom the 
local authority has a final legal duty to secure 
suitable accommodation (Lower) 

8.1% 11.85% 10.51% 
 

N/A 

The percentage of care leavers who have 
experienced homelessness during the year 
(Lower) 

5.88% 13% 8% 
 

N/A 

The percentage of private sector dwellings that 
had been vacant for more than 6 months at 1 
April that were returned to occupation during the 
year through direct action by the local authority 
(Higher) 

8.41% 5% 

PAM* no 

data 

available 

  

The number of dwellings created as a result of 
bringing empty properties back into use (Higher) 

New 

2019-20 
5 

 
20 

New 

2019-

20 

N/A 

The percentage of people who feel they are able 
to live more independently as a result of receiving 
a Disabled Facilities Grant in their home. 
(Higher) 

100% 80% 98.1% 
 

N/A 

*Public Accountability Measure 

Aim – To support the third sector, town and community Councils and community groups to 

meet local needs 

Measure and preferred outcome 

(higher or lower) 

Actual 

2018-19 

Target 

2019- 20 

Actual 
2019-20 
& RAG 

Trend 
Wales 

average 

The number of adults who received a service 
provided through a social enterprise, 
cooperative, user-led service or third sector 
organisation during the year (Higher) 

529 480 526 
 

N/A 

The number of Council owned assets transferred 
to the community for running (Higher) 

4 5 4  N/A 

The Community Asset Transfer Policy was revised to enable applications to be Fast Tracked and the process 
speeded up with only a 5-Year Financial Forecast needed.  Additional support and incentives for community 
groups and in particular sports clubs designed to stimulate community asset transfers are now in place. 

Page 45



 

22 

Steps taken to achieve our key programmes   
 

We made 12 commitments to support the delivery of this well-being objective, through our two key 

programmes and our early help initiatives.  All 12 commitments were met and within budget.  We 

have therefore assessed our performance as green. 

 
Remodelling social care  

 
Adult Social Care- Information, Advice Assistance 

The Common Access Point (CAP) is a single point of access enabling service that provides 
accessible health and well-being information and advice that supports people to self-manage their 
needs and maintain their independence.  Providing high quality and reliable information ensures 
people can access help and assistance should it be required, in a timely manner.  

The CAP is for people who need access to Adult Social Care with the exception of Learning 

Disability and Mental Health services.  To support Mental Health services, there is an information 

and signposting service. Those needing help can be directed to GPs or can attend a drop in 

information clinic located throughout Bridgend County Borough.  This service assists in identifying 

where specialist assessments are required and through the Assisted Recovery in the Community 

Service.     

To ensure the benefit of quality information and advice can reach as many people as possible, we 

invested our resources to provide information centres within and across communities. We worked 

with BAVO (Bridgend Association of Voluntary Organisations) to develop and deliver strategic 

programmes and interventions such as Connected Communities. 

Connected Communities  

The “Connected Communities” project aims to support older adults, people with learning disabilities 

and carers of vulnerable people to develop their support networks within their communities.   

This project has enabled BAVO to recruit staff and help support people with information, advice and 

assistance (IAA), community based support to maintain or enhance independence and well-being 

and to connect or signpost people to appropriate community opportunities that meet their needs.  

This has complemented the local community co-ordinator roles within the Council, helping to create 

a network across Bridgend County Borough.   

Connected communities recognises the need for “community building” to create sustainable 

community opportunities that can support access to community activities such as craft groups, 

activity programmes and well-being sessions.  Support is also available to address housing 

concerns, welfare benefits and make connections to health and social care via the Common Access 

Point.  BAVO have also been able to provide telephone support for people during evenings, 

weekends and bank holidays.  The Council and BAVO worked together on the project to harness 

the third sectors potential to support community well-being and develop new ways of working.  By 

doing this we have been able to identify opportunities to support more people in the community. 

Over 200 local people are benefitting and this figure is set to grow.  The number of organisations 

making referrals is increasing, as is the range of community groups offering their services to support 

people  

There are examples of local people taking up alternatives to care visits to home or attending day 

services- helping to reduce demand on these services. The case study below perfectly 

demonstrates the impact of this project on an individual level 

Page 46



 

23 

 

 

Towards the end of the year, we received additional funding to recruit volunteers, which proved to 

be an invaluable resource during the pandemic and lockdown. The Council and CVCs (County 

Volunteer Councils) streamlined their approach to recruiting volunteers, with Covid-19 creating a 

sense of urgency around this issue.  There is a real opportunity to sustain the volunteering spirit 

that has emerged during the pandemic, to support longer-term community development. 

Carers 
 
All carers should feel that they have voice, choice and control over their lives and that they have the 

right support to make informed choices.   During 2019-20, we carried out extensive engagement 

and consultation with service users, families and stakeholders to co-produce a vision for our carers’ 

service.  We estimate that we have 18,000 unpaid carers in the borough of which around 1,600 are 

known to us.   

The outcome of the engagement work was to commission a new Bridgend Carers Well-being 

Service with a priority to offer outreach to as many previously unidentified carers as possible. 

This new service has a Carers Panel made up of 12 local carers. The new service is undertaking 

what matters conversations and carers assessments for carers, and is establishing a presence at 

community venues around the borough.  It is anticipated this approach will support the process of 

promoting more ‘carer-friendly’ communities 

Case Study: 

Mrs P is 85 years old and lives alone.  She had always been an active member of the 

community, through hobbies and interest groups.  A number of falls had dented her confidence 

and she was worried about a planned hip operation 

The community navigator met Mrs P at a Friendship Coffee Morning.  She raised her concerns 
about how she would cope following the operation.  The community navigator put her in touch 
with the charity Age Connect Morgannwg.  They have a Hospital to Home service that provides 
6-8 weeks of support for people over 50 discharged from hospital. 
 
After the operation Mrs P had been reasonably active and mobile, but her mobility and 
confidence was again worsening due to her right knee.  The community navigator provided 
support, helping Mrs P: 
 

 to contact her GP and seek medical advice for her knee condition 

 to make a referral to Care & Repair  

 to apply for a Blue Badge, 
 
Mrs P herself illustrates the impact of the support provided best: 
 
“I have more peace of mind setting out to go shopping, knowing that I can park close to the 
shop. I was tending to put things off because I worry about how far I will have to walk from the 
car to the supermarket and back……Much happier now I know GP has visited and is going to 
speak to other people to support me’. 
 

Page 47



 

24 

 

During 2019-20  

 The Bridgend Carers Wellbeing service provided support to 1,263 unique individual Carers; 

 392 Adult Carers Assessments were completed and 99 Young Carers Assessments; 

 Action for Children continue to support young carers, providing access to relevant information 

advice and assistance.  31 young carers received support, where feedback showed that: 

 

o 100% reported improvement in emotional and mental well-being; 

o 97% reported improvement in family relationships; and  

o 95% felt they could make positive changes in lifestyle and behaviour because of the 

support received 

 

 During the Covid-19 lockdown period a further 34 young carers were supported via digital 

platforms.  There with 11 carers who received more intensive one to one telephone support 

and 10 families received emergency grants for food and activities. 

Young carers group 

Since October 2019, the young carers group meets once a week.  The 35 young carers access 

health and well-being sessions delivered by an experienced youth worker.  The weekly breakfast 

sessions are an opportunity for young carers to socialise with their peers and take a break from 

their caring responsibilities.  The group have become a support network for one another and other 

Carers choir: Case Study 
 

“Off Duty’, the Bridgend Carers Choir was formed in 2019.  It was set up to provide some 
“me time” for carers in a welcoming and fun atmosphere, surrounded by people with similar 
experiences.  Originally supported by the Council, Awen Cultural Trust and Bridgend 
Carers Centre, the choir has gone from strength to strength. This year they worked to 
expand opportunities for community based singing connecting more people into the choir.  
 
The group have performed at a number of public events and produced their own song 
“Strong” written by Izzy Thomas the choir’s conductor.  The song was recorded by 
students at Bridgend College and used as part of a media campaign by Carers UK 
with all the proceeds going to the charity.’  The choir showcased the song at the 
Councils celebratory inspire for life event in March 2020.  
 
Group singing is evidenced to support better well-being and is an effective way of 
bonding people and together.  Members of the choir say the singing helps with memory 
and report improved happiness and well-being.  Being together as a choir has 
supported the carers to share experiences whilst having a common focus of singing 
together.  
 

 

Page 48



 

25 

young carers.  They have held fund-raisers to support their activities and raise awareness of young 

carers within the wider community.  Recently they were awarded winners of the Mayors Citizenship 

Award. 

Childrens social care: Early help 

Since 2016, Children Social Care has been remodelling its services so that services focus on 

delivering early help and effective permanence arrangements.  The service is designed to improve 

and promote outcomes for children and young people in the County Borough of Bridgend. 

During 2019-20 there was an increase in the range of ‘Universal, Additional and Vulnerable’ services 

that assist with supporting children and their families to prevent their circumstances deteriorating 

and becoming more complex.   

What we have done for universal services: 

• Helped children and young people develop healthy behaviours 
• Delivered a programme of events under the “Getting Bridgend Moving” that include activities 

targeting children and young people 
• Developed a positive parenting programmes and partnerships with Flying Start 
• Invested in early years and whole household approaches- recognising the importance of the 

‘First 1000 days’ of a child’s life 
 

We have also changed the way we work to provide better outcomes.  There has been a growing 

engagement with primary and secondary schools.  We recognise the potential of schools to 

contribute to Ageing Well in Bridgend through intergenerational working and the development of 

age friendly communities. Closer working with schools is critical to develop the knowledge of 

teachers of how to refer and access appropriate services as required. 

What we have done for additional services: 

When children and young people need additional support to help them meet their full potential, 

accessing timely and appropriate early help can prevent issues from escalating and increase the 

likelihood that any intervention will succeed.  

Early help in Bridgend delivers services in three Early Help Hubs located in the north, east and west 

of Bridgend County Borough.  In addition, a central hub offers a range of specific family support 

services across the whole of Bridgend County Borough.   

Within each hub, there are a range of professionals who can offer support to children and their 

families.  Referrals are through a ‘one front door’ route from numerous agencies including schools 

and by self-referral.  Early hubs use a team around the family approach, with 1,203 families 

supported during 2019-20. 

High quality universal and additional services are the building blocks of effective early help. We will 

continue to develop the service so that it better supports Information, Advice and Assistance by 

improving content and making certain information is clear, concise and provides confidence.  This 

will help ensure contacts and referrals to Children Services receive the appropriate level of service 

at the right time.  We will streamline pathways between services and work closely with other 

professionals to advise how services should be accessed appropriately. 

Services for vulnerable children 

There has been significant service transformation to meet the needs of vulnerable children.  These 

changes have led to better outcomes with a reduction in the number of children placed in out of 

county accommodation. In the five years between 2014 and 2019 the number of looked after 

children reduced from 412 to 381.  Though the most recent data shows a slight increase (394 as of 

Page 49



 

26 

31st March 2020), intensive interventions continued to be made to help children from becoming 

looked after.   

Performance data 
 

  

Number of 

individual 

children 

worked with 

Number of 

families 

worked with 

%  of children 

prevented from 

becoming 

looked after  

% of children 

removed from 

CP Register 

% of children 

closed to 

Children's 

Social Care 

2018-2019 146 72 88.5% 54.0% 10.3% 

2019-2020 115 59 92.5% 44.8% 23.5% 

 

Our work focuses on reunifying families where this has been a necessity and the delivery of 

parenting groups including: 

 Non-Violent Resistance – Parenting programme for children who are displaying challenging 
and aggressive behaviours.  

 Incredible Years – Parenting programme for younger children exploring attachment, 
routines, boundaries and play. 

 Grobrain – Early years programme for parents with babies looking at secure attachment, 
interactions and play. 

 Connecting Dads – a programme for fathers looking at their role as a Dad and the 
importance of this. 

 Chill Out Group – Group for teenagers looking at anxiety and stress management and 
strategies to deal with this. 

 
How we assess need 
 
To ensure that we appropriately identify need and provide the right support to families, we use the 

Joint Assessment Family Framework (JAFF) and Team Around the Family (TAF) processes. 

The JAFF is a standardised approach to assessing a child’s needs and deciding how these should 

be met.  The JAFF promotes more effective, earlier identification of additional needs particularly in 

universal services. It aims to provide a simple process for a holistic assessment of child’s needs 

and strengths.  The process takes into account the roles of parents, carers and environmental 

factors on a child’s development.  Practitioners are better placed to agree with children and families 

about appropriate modes of support.  A TAF is required when the family require support from 

different services to meet their identified needs.    

In 2019-20, we received 2,147 JAFF referrals, 28% of these were from schools and 31% from health 

services.  1,065 JAFF assessments were undertaken resulting in 399 TAF action plans.  70% of 

these were closed with a successful outcome, which is an indicator that the family’s needs have 

reduced. 

Transition services 

 
A key outcome for effective transitioning for looked after children has been the development of 

supported and semi-supported living accommodation.  This has increased the range and capacity 

of our accommodation.  There are now seven transitional supported accommodation beds, and four 

step down beds.  These are designed to offer young people flexible staffing support to ‘step down’ 

from care environments that had 24 hour support.  It is intended this service model will support care 

Page 50



 

27 

leavers to move onto more permanent and independent housing accommodation.  These new 

options have reduced the pressure on the Homelessness service.  Previously this was the only way 

for carer leavers to access supported accommodation, and has made transitioning planning more 

effective.  Regionally we will work with Cwm Taf Morgannwg Health Board to identify how they can 

engage as appropriate to joint work cases in transition and ensure that children receive effective 

and equitable health services.    

Fostering services 
 
Bridgend foster care assess, recruit and support a wide range of carers.  This includes general 

foster carers, relatives, parent and child, transitional family link, supported lodgings and When I’m 

Ready households. 

During 2019-20 we targeted the recruitment of new carers in a number of ways 

 Contributing to the National Fostering 
Framework to develop the all Wales brand 
‘Foster Wales’ 

 Promotional events to raise the profile of 
fostering – including attending school fetes, 
working with local church communities, and an 
evening in Court Coleman 

 Multiple online campaigns  

 New referral scheme for existing carers  

 MAX cards that give foster carers discounted 
or free admission to activities  

 
During 2019-20, we exceeded our target by recruiting, eight new generic foster carer households, 

and 14 connected persons (or kinship) carers were approved.  Thirteen fostering households left 

the service, the majority due to significant changes in their personal circumstances. Three 

households were adopting the children and young people already in their care. We terminated the 

approval of two carers due to safeguarding concerns.   

During 2019-20 we also developed new services.  The “mother and baby service” is an innovative 

approach to the demand for high supervision of parent and baby, forming part of the parenting 

assessment within proceedings. It can be a direct alternative to residential care or can be a preferred 

resource in in its own right. Reunification Support Workers is a recent new service. The objective of 

the service is to prevent a potential breakdown of a foster care placement. 

The introduction of transitional foster carers has been an important addition. These carers are 

experienced short-term carers who have a therapeutic approach to parenting. The role of the carers 

is to use their parenting skills to prepare children for transition to a permanent placement this might 

be within fostering or reunited with their family. 

Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH)  

Bridgend MASH brings together key professionals, either co-located or virtually, to ensure better 

decision making through timely information sharing and robust analysis ensuring effective 

safeguarding for vulnerable children, young people and adults.  This way of working ensures MASH 

can identify needs early and respond proportionately leading to better outcomes for service users.  

As part of our continuous improvement approach to service delivery, MASH monitors and reviews 

its processes and systems in line with the needs of services. The MASH are about to implement the 

Mhub system, a bespoke multi agency information management system which will further enhance 

the sharing of information between partner agencies. 

Page 51



 

28 

We have also improved the process for assessing Public Protection Notifications (PPNs) in relation 

to children.  All PPNs are now subject to the Joint Filtering Process which involves three services 

(Information Advice Assistance, Early Help and Police) collaboratively agreeing how best to meet 

the needs of the child.  This ensures speedier decision-making and reduces the risk of any delays 

in response.  There is also a collective agreement on whether the PPN meets the threshold for an 

intervention or would be better serviced by a referral to the BAVO social navigator who sits within 

MASH. In 2019-20, there were 6,351 contacts in relation to children to the Information Advice 

Assistance service.  There were 3,119 contacts to our Early Help team and 325 Adult Safeguarding 

referrals. 

 

  

Case Study:  High Risk Victim of Domestic Abuse  
 
A high-risk repeat victim of domestic violence and abuse is one of the most difficult cases 
that the MASH receives. Ensuring the safety and well-being of the service user requires a 
timely multi-agency response to address the diverse range of risks and issues. Such a 
referral was made to the MASH as soon as the incident had been risk assessed and is an 
example of how effective collaboration across sectors can provide life changing support for 
the most vulnerable in our community. 
 
Upon receipt of the referral, the case was presented at the Daily Discussion meeting, which 
is a multi-agency risk assessment conference to agree an immediate safety plan and the 
long-term actions to ensure the safety of the service user.  The agencies involved include 
police, health, child protection, adult protection, housing practitioners, Independent 
Domestic Violence Advisors (IDVAs), probation and other specialists from the statutory and 
voluntary sectors. 
 
The case involved physical, mental, emotional and financial abuse as well as stalking.  To 
provide appropriate support required drawing on a wide range of partners to help: 
 

 Police provided a TESCOS alarm (panic alarm) which would immediately alert police 
to respond 

 IDVA supported the service user to navigate the criminal court proceedings and 
liaised with the prosecution to request an application for special measures and a 
restraining order. 

 IDVA contacted the prison service to stop the aggressor contacting the service user  

 A debt management plan was put in place to help her manage debts affordably 

 With lower rent arrears she was eligible to be put on the housing register- and was 
moved to a new location before the aggressor was due to be released from prison 

 Additional safety measures were added to the make the property secure along with a 
fire safety assessment by SWFR  

 Police put a marker on the new address- meaning any calls to police would be 
prioritised 

 
With these measures in place, the service user was able to focus on her mental health 
supported by her GP.  The family are now back under one roof, and she is more confident 
to rebuild her life.  The IDVA will monitor the release of the aggressor and keep the service 
user informed.   

Page 52



 

29 

Community Asset Transfer 

Community Asset Transfers (CAT) is one of the key ways in which Councils can help build 
community resilience and safeguard services and assets that are of value to the community.  The 
Council's CAT Policy was revised to include a ‘Fast Track’ protocol to streamline the process and 
is appropriate to the scale of the asset being considered.  During 2019-20, the following assets were 
transferred to the community.  
 

Pencoed Pavilion (Pencoed Town Council) – The transfer of the Pavilion was completed in March 
2020 following a refurbishment funded by the Council and the Town Council at a cost of more than 
£90,000.  The Pavilion has been closed since March 2018 following storm damage and is due to be 
re-opened for the local playgroup and sports clubs. 
 
Griffin Park Health & Wellbeing Centre (Porthcawl Town Council) –  The Town Council has taken 
over day to day running of the centre on a renewable management agreement while the 
development of a new road scheme for Sandy Bay is being progressed by the Council.  The facility 
is currently used to support veterans. 
 
Caerau Community Centre (Caerau Development Trust) – The charity has agreed a short-term 
lease to enable solar panels to be installed while a long-term 35 year lease is being progressed. 
 
Great Western Avenue Play Area (Coity Higher Community Council) - The Community Council 
has taken over the responsibility for the play areas in Coity and introduced a programme of 
refurbishment jointly funded under the Council’s T&CC Capital Grant Scheme.  Funding of £30,000 
was awarded for two projects costing £60,000. 
 
Improving places and spaces  

To support the community have greater voice and control over assets, the Council has established 

a £1million CAT fund.  This fund will enable buildings such as pavilions to be improved post transfer 

The fund was extended to also be used to support pitch improvements and to provide equipment 

grants to enable the self-management of facilities. An additional model has seen several town and 

community Council’s progress arrangements to manage sports pavilions.  This community 

ownership model may in time include playing fields.   

The Council has created its own £75,000 Bridgend Sport Support fund to provide immediate 

financial assistance to local sporting clubs.  Originally intended to focus on mini, junior and youth 

teams involved in the CAT process it has been broadened in recognition of current pressures arising 

from the Covid-19 pandemic. 

There has been continued partnership working with national governing bodies. Football Association 

Wales supported a review of school and community resources to identify potential sites for 

community hub models. 

A similar project has commenced with the Welsh Rugby Union at the Parc Derwen site in Coity with 

the development of an ‘alternative rugby’ hub. The project has already seen the site adopted as the 

home of the Welsh Touch Rugby Association and Wales Deaf Rugby will be using it for their training 

camps.  The WRU intend to use the site for festivals as part of their seasonal realignment project. 

It is hoped it will become a hub for coach education. 

 

 

Page 53



 

30 

Early Intervention and prevention programmes  

Although not identified as one of our key programmes, one of our aims is ‘to reduce demand by 

investing in targeted early help and intervention programmes’.  During 2019-20, we continued to 

develop our approach and took steps to improving well-being by delivering community based 

initiatives that focus on early intervention and prevention.  Some of the key achievements are set 

out below.    

Children’s Play – Activity pods 

We strongly believe in the importance of play in children’s lives and the benefits it gives to their 

health, happiness and well-being.  It is also important in laying the foundation for each child in 

reaching their full potential during their adult life.  To help the Welsh Government achieve its 

commitment that Wales becomes a country where every child has a wide range of challenging and 

interesting opportunities to play, we offer innovative ways to help children enjoy their leisure time. 

The activity pod programme, developed in partnership with the reuse charity ‘Scrap Store’, offers 

outdoor play opportunities for pupils in Key Stage 1.  The charity diverts reusable waste away from 

landfill/energy recovery to help improve art and play opportunities.  Scrap materials such as 

cardboard tubes, tyres, lengths of material, netting, ropes, crates, and bins are used to create 

innovative and interesting spaces to play.   

Schools are provided with the scrap material and 

poddely (a type of play equipment) to allow them to 

make their own play environment that best meets their 

pupils needs and maximises opportunities for play, 

sport and physical activity.  To safeguard the long-term 

sustainability of the programme, training is provided to 

all schools.  This ensures there are the right skills and 

confidence to take full advantage of the activity pod. 

The programme supports children’s inventiveness and 

creativity.  This results in children using the items in 

endless different ways, enabling all ages, genders and 

abilities to find ways to play and socialise together.  The 

reuse principle of the activity pod also makes a positive 

impact on the environment. 

 

New Generation of Community Health and Well-being Centres 

During the year there have been improvement works taking place at Bridgend Life Centre to 

continue our aspiration of creating a series of wellbeing hubs to support the wellbeing of people for 

generations to come.   

The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act has increased our focus on ensuring our leisure facilities 

move with the times and recognise the changing needs of people.  During 2019-20, Audit Wales 

carried out an in-depth examination of our Active Bridgend plan and identified a number of positive 

aspects of our approach.  This included our focus on long-term planning to ensure the sustainability 

of our services to improve health and well-being.  

The development of our leisure facilities as Life Centres with a broad range of services and facilities 
is now moving to the next level of integration.  We are working with partners to provide an even 

Page 54



 

31 

broader mix of facilities.  The outcomes will focus on dementia support, falls prevention, combatting 
loneliness and isolation and physical and mental well-being. 

Through our Healthy Living Partnership with Halo Leisure, we secured a £750,000 investment to 

transform the Indoor Bowls Centre in Bridgend to create our first well-being hub.  Completed in 

October 2019, the new facilities include studio spaces for targeted programmes, meeting and 

training rooms, consultation spaces and a larger office base for strategic services.  There was 

additional investment towards the end of the year to improve accessibility.  This included adapted 

fitness equipment for people with physical disabilities, new sensory equipment to support mental 

well-being initiatives and an improved lift system and access to the building. 

The exercise referral programme is now located in the hub, which has over 2,000 referrals per year.  

The programme supports conditions such as Parkinson’s, stroke, pulmonary rehabilitation and falls 

prevention.  The venue also supports the Feel Good for Life programme for people living with 

dementia and their carers.  The programme won the Community Leisure UK award for physical 

activity.  Through our partnership with BAVO a base for the third sector has been created and the 

Employability Bridgend programme has co-located its staff and services within the Life Centre.  This 

focus on co-location and accessibility of facilities and services will be expanded to other locations.   

Super Agers 

The Council has been successful in securing investment for a regional programme from the Healthy 

and Active fund to develop a “Super Agers” project.  The Super Agers is a collaborative project and 

includes third sector, health board, public health and 

the local authorities in the region.  The aim is to 

develop age-friendly communities, recognising the 

health and well-being benefits this brings to older 

adults  

Super-Agers was launched at the 2019 ‘Olympage’ 

games.  There were 10 teams with 239 participants, 

including for the first time regional teams from RCT 

and Merthyr Tydfil.  There are now similar 

opportunities taking place in community hubs, 

programmes for people with learning disabilities, in 

community centres and leisure/cultural venues and in independent care settings.  

A series of workshops were also conducted with Bridgend College social care students who support 

activity-based work with older adults including the Olympage programme.   

To support Super Agers in the home, there is an ‘Active at Home’ resource, which includes tai chi, 

seated exercise videos, a home activity tracker, pedometer and thera band.  124 participants have 

received these resources, with packs also available for those digitally excluded.   

Housing and homelessness 

During 2019–20, we made strides in meeting the key aims set out in our Homelessness Strategy 

2018-2022 and subsequent action plan. Tackling housing and homelessness requires a multi-

agency response.  The Council adopts a proactive approach with partners to tackle rough sleeping.   

During the year, developments have included:  

 afternoon drop in sessions at local churches for rough sleepers, 

 5 hours of day time support provided for rough sleepers every day Monday to Friday 

 frequent meetings and information sharing with key third sector partners 

Page 55



 

32 

 creation of a specific Street Vulnerable MARAC which allows for multi-agency support to 

tackle rough sleeping on an ongoing basis 

We continue to work with our partners to deliver services funded through the Housing Support 

Grant. During 2019-20, we awarded contracts to allow continued provision for two key projects: 

 Alternative to Bed & Breakfast Accommodation, suitable accommodation with specialist 
support to those who we offer temporary accommodation.  These units ensure those in 
temporary accommodation are supported to develop independent living skills to help secure 
long-term accommodation. The service ensures less reliance on unsuitable Bed & Breakfast 
accommodation.  

 Kerrigan Project provides for the continuation of longer-term supported accommodation for 
those with multiple and complex needs.  Support staff on site 24/7 work with individuals to 
develop independent living skills to support a move on into independent accommodation.  
The project also provides step down accommodation for those with lower level support needs 
and ‘Floor Space’, which, provides a direct access, night by night accommodation service to 
those, who would otherwise be rough sleeping.   

 
Successful funding bids to Welsh Government Youth Homelessness Innovation Fund has brought 

additional funding to allow for the development of a Housing First youth project (in partnership with 

Caer Las) and an Assessment Centre (in partnership with Llamau).  Both projects have increased 

our provision to young persons who find themselves homeless.   

We put in place a single point of contact, the Housing Support Gateway for those looking to access 

or refer to housing support services.  We improved on-line capabilities with the launch of our new 

case management system, ‘Housing Jigsaw’ that allows people to make an application for housing 

through the BCBC website.  

We continued our work with the Home Office and Welsh Government to support the Syrian Refugee 

Relocation Scheme.  We welcomed four additional families into Bridgend County Borough 

throughout 2019-20.    

 

Case Study – Housing First  

Our Housing First service, delivered in partnership with Caer Las, provides an alternative 
method of support, with the aim of breaking the cycle of homelessness for some of the areas 
most entrenched and complex rough sleepers. ‘Paul’ (an anonymised name) was one of the 
first individuals supported through the project.   
 
Paul was rough sleeping and had issues with alcohol dependency. Evicted from various 

temporary accommodation placements, Paul had never been able to maintain a tenancy and 

relations with family and friends had broken down.  Housing First undertook pre tenancy 

work, which included building a relationship with Paul and addressing his concerns regarding 

his ability to maintain accommodation.  After two months Paul was allocated a property 

through the Housing First steering group.  Working with Paul, he was supported to do things 

for himself including setting up payments for utilities, securing furnishings and decorating the 

house to make it home 

Paul has now been living in his property for around 9 months and is having reduced support, 

after gaining experience and confidence in managing his own tenancy. In line with the 

principles of Housing First the project is not however looking to completely end support to 

Paul until we can be completely confident that his support needs are completely addressed.  

Page 56



 

33 

Empty Properties 

Empty properties are a wasted resource and have many negative impacts, which can be 

categorised under three headings: 

 social, such as crime including arson, graffiti, squatting, as well as reduced public confidence 

in the area or the Council 

 environmental, including rodent infestation, fly tipping, dangerous structures, and a poor 

impression of the area 

 economic, such as repair costs, increased burdens on Councils’ resources, property 
devaluation, deterred investment 
 

Over the last few years, the Council has developed many tools and approaches to encourage empty 

homes back into use.  This included the removal of the 50% council tax reduction for properties 

empty for six months or longer, as well as investing grant monies and loans to support owners of 

empty properties.  During 2019-20, thirty-four properties were renovated, creating 20 additional 

homes. 

Most recently, we entered into a service level agreement with Rhondda Cynon Taff County Borough 

Council to allow them to deliver an empty property loan scheme in eligible rural parts of Bridgend 

County.  The loan scheme is funded by the Valleys Task Force empty homes grant.   The scheme 

aims to support the valleys area of Bridgend County helping to regenerate communities, provide 

choice and suitable accommodation for residents.  

 

 

  

Page 57



 

34 

Well-being Objective 3 

Smarter use of resources   

Why we choose this objective? 

Over the period 2018-19 to 2021-22, the Council is expected to make recurrent budget reductions 
of some £32.6 million. For 2019-20, our target budget reduction was £7.621 million and as in 
previous years, we continue to be committed to finding at least 50% of these reductions for the year 
by making smarter use of resources, and minimising any reductions in services.  As austerity 
continues, it becomes harder each year to make further budget reductions, but this year we 
continued to seek ways of working to save us money, primarily by making smarter use of our 
resources, including our people and our buildings, and making the most of the assets we retain.  
 

What do we want to achieve? 
Our aims 

 

1. To achieve the budget reductions identified in the Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

2. To improve the efficiency of and access to services by redesigning our systems and 

processes.  

3. To work collaboratively to make the most of public assets. 

4. To develop the culture and skills required to meet the needs of a changing organisation. 

 

Key Programmes  

Under this objective, there are three key programmes to help achieve our aims and deliver 

improvements in well-being: 

 
Digital Transformation Programme  
This programme aims to change the way we operate to enable customers to access 
information, advice and services on line. 
 
Rationalising the Council’s Estate  
This programme is about disposing of assets, transferring assets to communities to manage while 
making the most of assets we retain.   
 
School Modernisation Programme –  
This programme invests in a sustainable education system in school buildings that reduces cost 
and their carbon footprint 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 58



 

35 

How did we do? 

Performance Measures 
Set out below is how we performed against the performance measures we set ourselves to meet 

this well-being objective and what we achieved in 2018-19 against our three key programmes. 

Aim - To achieve the budget reductions identified in the Medium Term Financial Strategy 

Measure and preferred outcome 
(higher or lower) 

Actual 
2018-

19 

Target 
2019- 20 

Actual 
2019-20 
& RAG 

Trend 
Wales 

average 

The percentage of budget reductions 

achieved  (Higher) 
91.7% 100% 89.4% N/A N/A 

Not all saving measures actioned achieved full year savings as they were implemented part way 
through the financial period, with some not realising as much as anticipated, however overall the 
budget outturn showed an underspend due to savings been made elsewhere.   

Aim -To improve the efficiency of and access to services by redesigning our systems and 

processes  

Measure and preferred outcome 
(higher or lower) 

Actual 
2018-19 

Target 
2019- 20 

Actual 
2019-20 
& RAG 

Trend 
Wales 

average 

The number of new services that are 
available to the public on line.  (Higher) 

5 3 2  N/A 

School transport applications and the Housing Jigsaw solution were put on line.  A lot of work was 
done to configure, set up and test the online reporting tool with the aim to go live in March.  Due to the 
Covid-19 issues that arose, this was not achieved but will be revisited at some point in the future. 

Aim - To work collaboratively to make the most of public assets 

Measure and preferred outcome 
(higher or lower) 

Actual 
2018-19 

Target 
2019- 20 

Actual 
2019-20 
& RAG 

Trend 
Wales 

average 

The percentage of surplus capacity of 

school places in 

a) primary schools 

b) secondary schools 

(Lower) 

a) 4.89% 10% 9.36%  N/A 

b) 22.01% 18% 20.65% 
 N/A 

Changes in demographics and use of spaces has resulted in a reduction in surplus places in the 
secondary sector. 

Realisation of capital receipts target  

(Higher) 

£1,821 

million 

£2.8 

million 
£794,000 N/A N/A 

The sale of Ysgol Bryn Castell was delayed by Covid 19 but contracts were exchanged and the sale 
receipt of £2.6 million will now be achieved in 2020/21. 

Percentage of £500k planned budget 

savings achieved through Implementation 

of Corporate Landlord model.  (Higher) 

New  
2019-20 

100% 95% 
New 

2019-
20 

 
N/A 

Within the end of year finance figures the service absorbed an additional known but unbudgeted cost 
pressures of c. £300,000.  This is without the additional impact of Covid-19. 

Percentage of  BCBC operational buildings 

achieve full statutory compliance (Higher) 
New for 
2019-20 

100% 54.6% 
New 

2019-
20 

 
N/A 

Page 59



 

36 

Measure and preferred outcome 
(higher or lower) 

Actual 
2018-19 

Target 
2019- 20 

Actual 
2019-20 
& RAG 

Trend 
Wales 

average 

Compliance is below target.  This is due to us increasing the compliance testing regime by a further 
3000+ items across the estate.  This has impacted on the overall percentage performance. We also 
had issues with external certification.   Provision of certificates for the period January to March by 
contractors were impacted by the Covid-19 lockdown as were the performance of some inspections 
due during March. Steps have been taken to improve the performance of contractors to ensure full 
compliance is achieved and maintained. 

Percentage change in carbon dioxide 
emissions in the non-domestic public 
building stock on previous year (Higher) 

18.98% 6.46% 28.83% 
 

 

N/A 

Income generated from the Council’s non-
operational property portfolio (Higher) 

£29,028 £25,000 £30,000 
 N/A 

 

Aim – To develop the culture and skills required to meet the needs of a changing 

organisation 

Measure and preferred outcome 
(higher or lower) 

Actual 
2018-19 

Target 
2019- 20 

Actual 
2019-20 
& RAG 

Trend 
Wales 

average 

The number of staff taking up in-work health 

checks (Higher) 

New 

2019-20 

Set 

baseline 
169 

New 

2019-

20 

N/A 

The percentage of employees completing e-

learning modules (Higher) 
54.1% 25% 40.02%  N/A 

The number of interactions from citizens on 
the corporate social media accounts 
(Facebook and Twitter) (Higher) 

48,701 41,444 82,422 
 

N/A 

Number of participants in staff survey  
(Higher) 

1291 1356 1150  N/A 

The survey was made available to 3,054 staff (non-schools) in both welsh and English in both online 
and paper formats. Reminders were also published.  Despite this less staff completed the survey this 
year. Although there was a slight reduction in the number of participants, comparison of the tracker 
questions shows that overall responses were more positive in 2020 compared to 2018.   

The proportion of staff reporting through 

survey that they agree or strongly agree with 

the statements: (Higher) 

 

a) I feel every department is working towards 
the same common goal 

a) 35% 36% 37% 
 

N/A 

b) I am satisfied with BCBC as an employer b) 59% 60% 66% 
 

N/A 

c) Working here makes me want to perform to 

the best of my ability 
c) 69% 70% 74% 

 
N/A 

d) I feel that BCBC values its employees ideas 

and opinions 
d) 31% 32% 39% 

 N/A 

e) Do you think there are opportunities for two-

way communication to discuss and raise ideas 

and issues? 

e) 59% 60% 72% 
 

N/A 

 

Page 60



 

37 

Steps taken to achieve our Key Programmes  
 
We made 14 commitments to support the delivery of this well-being objective, through our three key 

programmes. Ten commitments were fully met and within budget, therefore our performance is 

assessed green.  Three commitments judged amber, as we did not fully achieve what was planned 

and one assessed red because we did not fully complete the planned actions.  We did not achieve 

all we set out to do in rationalising the Council’s estate, as there was a delay in marketing the 

Waterton site and progressing with exit strategies to further reduce our administrative estate.   We 

did not meet our planned budget reductions.  However, we did still realise full savings by holding 

vacancies and making savings elsewhere. We therefore assessed ourselves as amber.  We did not 

make progress in relation to the expansion of Welsh-medium childcare provision, as part of the 

school modernisation programme, therefore we assessed ourselves as red.   

 

Digital Transformation Programmme 

 
The Digital Transformation programme has a citizen centred focus.  We listened to the initial 

feedback from the 2015 budget consultation that 87% of our citizens wanted more council services 

online, as well as in the 2019 budget consultation where 70% of respondents stated they would 

support a move to digitalise services. 

New, modern functionality also meets the demand of over 85% of our citizens who have access to 

the internet and prefer the convenience of online transactions (ONS).   

In 2018, we launched a new single digital platform (My Account) for citizens to interact with us online 

for key services.  Since launching over 36,000 has registered an online account, with over 16,000 

people registering for council tax online and over 11,000 subscribing for eBilling resulting in savings 

on paper, postage and packaging. 

In 2019-20, we received 14,000 online applications for various services including council tax, 

housing benefit, school admissions and school transport.  In addition, 26,286 payments were made 

by residents using My Account. 

By providing more online services and self-serve solutions, it enables us to explore opportunities to 

streamline and automate current manual processes as well as helping to save money.  Work to 

centralise and automate utility payments was completed during the year, which resulted in reducing 

transaction costs and late payment charges. Significant work was also undertaken in automating 

creditor payments. 

Our new chatbot “Oggie” was launched in August 2019 to enhance the customer service experience 

and to reduce contact volume on other traditional channels e.g. telephone face-to-face and emails.  

The chatbot deals with the more routine customer queries and by being available 24/7/365, it 

enables the citizen to contact us outside the traditional working hours.  Since Oggie was launched, 

there have been 9,956 online conversations.   

Towards the end of January 2020, we also became the first local authority in Wales to launch a new 

online system for people in need of housing support.  The system called “Housing Jigsaw” enables 

people to sign up for homelessness services or join the housing register.  All individual cases are 

available online which negates the delays previously involved in housing applications and decision-

making.  By including our housing partners in this journey, the customer gets a faster response and 

a more efficient solution to their housing needs.  Since its launch, there have been 1,017 online 

transactions made which has also helped us reduce transaction costs as well as printing and 

postage.   

Page 61



 

38 

Work to centralise and automate utility payments has reduced the number of utility bills paid each 

year from approximately 2,860 down to 28, i.e. a single monthly invoice is paid for electricity and 

gas and a quarterly invoice for water. Individual departments also have access to an on-line portal 

to see their individual utility invoice and monitor energy consumption over the year. 

Whilst some good progress has been made in implementing new functionality within iTrent, our HR 

system, to streamline key managerial processes there is an ambition to assess further functionality 

beneficial to our staff and managers and work will continue into 2020-21. 

Work has also continued to develop the Council’s corporate website.  Following an independent 

accessibility review, the Council’s website was named as the most accessible in Wales for disabled 

people for the second quarter of 2020.  The website has been designed to meet level ‘AA’ – a 

worldwide standard for websites which aims to make pages as accessible as possible.  With 

innovations in place such as specialist software, which reads out webpage text to support blind 

people or to make text readable for people with dyslexia or ADHD, the Council’s website achieved 

an overall result of 8/10, putting it among just 17 per cent of all UK Councils who scored seven or 

more. 

At the start of the Covid-19 lockdown, it was evident that digital has enabled citizens to continue 

engagement with us as we have seen a transition to the digital channel.  The intention is to learn 

from the period of lockdown, assessing the possibilities and opportunities arising from the ‘new 

norm’ by further promoting digital services and introducing more innovative ways of working and 

serving our communities. 

 
Rationalising the Council’s Estate 
 
Corporate Landlord Model  

We continued to develop a more commercial approach to Council assets and property services.  

Our Corporate Landlord operating model was fully deployed and operational. During 2019-20, we 

saw large increases in both productivity and volumes of work completed. This will continue to be 

enhanced as full condition surveys are completed and a switch is made from responsive repairs to 

planned preventative maintenance through 2020-21. 

A commercial property portfolio review was undertaken, which will help to shape the development 

of a strategy for the future to deliver accommodation based on supply and demand requirements 

going forward.  The full impact of Covid-19 is not yet fully known, though we recognise that there 

are significant pressures facing the accommodation portfolio.  As we embrace home working it is 

likely that we will need to look at opportunities to rationalise the administrative estate further and 

this work will continue into 2020-21. 

 
Disposal of assets 
 
As a Council, we have some 950 assets with a value of circa £454 million and a budget of £14.6 

million per annum.  We need to ensure where assets are no longer needed, they are disposed of in 

the most effective way and that the assets we continue to hold are utilised effectively and efficiently.    

We continue to rationalise the Council’s administrative estate and in particular the leased estate.  

During 2019, work continued on exit strategies for some of our leased buildings including 

successfully releasing Kenfig Nature Reserve. Sunnyside House is planned for release in spring 

2021. 

Page 62



 

39 

Due to the impact of Covid-19 the sale of Ysgol Bryn Castell was delayed, resulting in the capital 

receipt target of £2.8 million for 2019-20 not being achieved.  Capital receipts of £794,000 were 

realised and contracts exchanged for the sale of Ysgol Bryn Castell.  The sale will complete in 2020-

21.  We do remain on target to achieve our enhanced disposals programme target of £21 million 

capital receipts by 2020-21. 

Investment also continued in 2019-20.  Grant funding enabled the completion of the redevelopment 

of the Rest Bay café and water sports centre at Porthcawl.  Funding was secured for the Enterprise 

Hubs and new starter unit developments at Village Farm, which will progress into 2020-21.   

At Waterton, our depot site, in conjunction with adjoining land, is being promoted as a 

comprehensive regeneration opportunity known as Parc Afon Ewenni. Currently, we are working 

with the adjoining landowners to ensure that the scheme retains its status as an allocated site within 

the emerging Local Development Plan.  This work will continue throughout 2020-2021. 

Redevelopment options for retention of part of the site for redevelopment of a new depot or school 

are being reviewed and will be progressed during 2020-21.  The site can then be marketed once 

these have been finalised. 

Energy 

We continued to undertake engagement, communications and training related to energy and carbon 

saving initiatives throughout the Council. We conducted energy audits to identify, quantify and 

prioritise energy saving opportunities within our buildings. We also actively looked to increase the 

uptake of renewable energy technologies to decrease dependency on fossil fuels.  

In early 2018, capital funding was approved for the delivery of energy efficiency improvements in 

Council owned buildings as part of an ambitious £1.3million investment programme.  Welsh 

Government offered free surveys from Carbon Trust to investigate potential energy saving 

opportunities.  The energy saving measures include LED lighting, pipework insulation, Building 

Management System (BMS) controls or solar PV systems, to name a few.  Following a review of 

options, the Re:fit framework - a joint venture between HM Treasury and Local Government 

association, specialising in delivering retrofit projects to public sector buildings was chosen.   

Nineteen buildings were shortlisted, out of the initial thirty identified, and engagement with 

stakeholders continued during the year. A project plan was developed and the procurement process 

completed early 2020. A high level appraisal process has commenced on the selected buildings, 

sixteen of which are schools.  The Council is looking to reduce £162,000 on annual energy bills and 

approximately 258 tonnes of carbon dioxide.  This investment continues our efforts to work towards 

net-zero carbon and to maximise the reduction of carbon emissions produced by our own activities 

and assets. Work will commence during summer 2021 and is expected to take 12-18 months 

In early 2020, we started a trial in five schools to reduce gas consumption by introducing a heating 

additive.  The results of the trial showed gas consumption reduced by an average of 10%. 

We replaced four diesel vans with four electric vehicles (EVs) as part of a pilot to reduce vehicle 

running and maintenance costs and our carbon footprint.  Following the successful trial, we installed 

eight electric vehicle-charging points at Ravens Court.  This new infrastructure will allow the 

expansion of EVs within the Council.  

Funding was granted in 2019 to retrofit the existing Heating Ventilation and Air Conditioning system 

and lighting system in Ravens Court.  The new system is expected to save £10,000 per year in 

energy costs, and save approximately 38 tonnes of carbon emissions as well as improving the 

working environment.  Work is expected to be completed by the end of 2021. 

 

Page 63



 

40 

Schools’ Modernisation Programme 

Our flagship school modernisation programme continued to work towards delivering new 

educational facilities for Bridgend County Borough, which are designed to support 21st century 

teaching and learning.   With more than £68.2 million of funding set to be committed towards the 

next phase of the school modernisation programme, it remains our largest investment. We plan to 

build four efficient and sustainable primary schools and one special school over the next five to 

seven years as part of Welsh Government’s 21st Century Schools and Colleges Programme, 

ensuring there is a sufficient supply of pupil places across Bridgend County Borough.   

Options appraisal work in relation to the primary school projects has concluded and approved in 

January 2020 to progress feasibility studies in respect of each of the primary school projects. 

Feasibility studies are underway and will complete in 2020/2021. Programmes were affected 

because of Covid-19, and certain survey work could not take place as planned. Notwithstanding 

this, the outcome of the studies will be reported to Cabinet in 2020/2021, and a decision made 

regarding the preferred way forward in respect of each of the schemes. 

Option appraisal work in relation to the special school is ongoing into 2020-21.  Subject to obtaining 

the necessary approvals, the construction of two primary schools and the one special school will be 

funded from Welsh Government and Council capital. The other two primary schools will be will be 

funded via Welsh Government’s new Mutual Investment Model (MIM) funding, whereby private 

partners build and maintain schools in return for a fee, and will cover the cost of construction, 

maintenance and financing the project. At the end of a fixed period, the buildings will become 

Council owned assets. 

Funded by Welsh Government, the construction of the new East Hub building at Brynteg School is 

well underway. The Hub will allow effective joined-up working between Early Help, Safeguarding, 

multi-agency and joint services staff, supporting families and learners at the heart of the community 

that they serve. The building will be ready for occupation in the autumn of 2020. 

The Council continues to work with contractors in order to maximise community benefits. Through 

our construction projects, we seek to ensure that schemes deliver on targeted recruitment and 

training, apprenticeships, work experience and pupil engagement, highlighting the future 

employment opportunities of a career in the construction industry.  

Development work linked to the Cymraeg 2050 capital programme continued to progress in relation 

to the expansion of Welsh-medium childcare provision, but has been impacted by the Covid-19 

emergency. Work will continue into 2020-21 to develop plans to identify childcare providers who will 

utilise the accommodation developed thus far to offer childcare in the communities identified (Betws, 

Ogmore Valley, Porthcawl and Bridgend Town). 

In the Spring of 2020, we opened a Welsh-medium learning resource centre at YGG Calon Y 

Cymoedd. The provision, enables young children who have a diagnosis of autistic spectrum disorder 

(ASD) to receive their education through the medium of Welsh. 

 
CORPORATE CHANGE  
 

Although this was not identified as one of our key programmes, we have three aims which focus on 

doing things differently corporately to meet our well-being objective of ‘Making smarter use of 

Resources’.  The three aims focus on delivering budget reductions, developing culture and skills in 

a changing organisation and making the most of our spend on goods and services through 

procurement.    The steps we made are set out below: 

Page 64



 

41 

Budget reductions and our medium-term financial strategy (MTFS)  
 
When developing our MTFS, we consider a number of different funding scenarios and aim to 

balance investment in preventative measures against the costs of reacting to unanticipated 

situations in statutory services. We aim to ensure the majority of savings are generated from smarter 

use of resources, with front line service reductions kept to a minimum.  Each budget reduction 

proposal is weighted in terms of the impact on other areas of the Council, on the public and on our 

well-being duty as set out in the Well-being of Future Generations Act.  Where a budget cut in one 

area of non-statutory prevention would lead to increased costs in another, this is not considered to 

be good financial management. Similarly, budget reductions are achieved through remodelling of 

existing service provision and through making services self-sufficient rather than removing them in 

their entirety, to make them more sustainable going forward. 

Alongside this is a capital strategy aligned to a 10 year capital programme, and a treasury 

management strategy, which demonstrate how the Council ensures that all of its capital and 

investment plans and borrowing are prudent and sustainable. They are intended to give a high level 

overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury management activity contribute 

to the provision of services along with an overview of how associated risk is managed and the 

implications for future sustainability. The capital strategy is monitored on a quarterly basis and 

reports provided to Cabinet and council. The capital programme is updated in line with the strategy 

and approved by council quarterly. 

Of the £7.621 million budget reductions required for 2019-20, we achieved £6.815 million through 

smarter use of resources, avoiding cutting the quality or level of services.   

These included: 

 We further developed extra care housing, leading to £330,000 of savings,  

 A further review of the HALO and AWEN partnership contracts leading to £150,000 of savings, 

 £111,000 further efficiencies realised as part of the Shared Regulatory Services, 

 Further rationalisation of software and hardware budgets, saving £200,000,  

 Council wide staff restructures, leading to savings in excess of £1.4 million, 

 We also reduced our corporate budgets by £2.388 million, mainly by reducing our annual capital 
financing commitment through a review of policy, removing funding set aside for pump priming 
and additional funding generated through the increase in Council tax from an original 4.2% to 
4.5% in 2018-19.   
 

We did not achieve our savings in full in respect of the Materials Recovery and Energy Centre 

(MREC), (£475,000) and Bridgend bus station (£45,000).  Budget realignment is being considered 

for 2020-21.  The savings relating to removing subsidies for bus services (£62,000), library and 

cultural facilities (£60,000) although not achieved in 2019-20, have been progressed, and full 

savings met in 2020-21.  The savings relating to the implementation of the learner transport policy 

(£67,000) are dependent on the recent public consultation.  The Council consults widely with 

citizens on all budget proposals as an integral part of its MTFS and strives annually to increase 

participation and involvement. This is reflected in the increased response rate year on year. 

Developing culture and skills 

 

The Council made good progress in transforming services and undertaking organisational changes.    

New staff engagement arrangements that were established in 2018-19, carried on into 2019-20, 

with regular induction sessions for new starters with the Chief Executive; open engagement 

sessions for staff with the Chief Executive and Leader; and a second annual staff survey 

undertaken. During the year, a strong focus was given to supporting managers to fulfil their 

Page 65



 

42 

managerial responsibilities and to enable employees to look after their mental wellbeing with the 

introduction of mindfulness courses.  

We continued to provide the learning and development opportunities for staff to meet future service 

needs by updating the learning and development website enabling employees to access or enrol 

on relevant training courses. Working with trade union colleagues, funding was secured for priority 

training opportunities, through the Wales Union Learning Funding (WULF).   

Directorate specific training and development opportunities included extended managers’ meetings 

taking place to ensure open communication on legislative and corporate changes.  Leadership and 

management training opportunities continued to be offered to middle managers. Health board 

boundary issues were progressed and opportunities for cross-working/training continued to be 

examined.  The availability of staff training is widely embraced by staff.  Within constrained 

resources, the following has been achieved: 

 
Six new e-learning modules developed: 

 Managers’ Induction  

 GDPR  

 Sensory Loss modules: Vision Loss, Hearing Loss and Dual Sensory Loss 

 Safeguarding Children and Adults – Raising Awareness 

 Carers E-Practice Guide 

 Trans Awareness 
 

Number of staff completing training 

 IT Workshops – 21 workshops delivered and 199 employees attended 

 Mental health training – 13 workshops delivered and 168 employees attended 

 No of e-learning completions 2,040 

 Workbook completions 685 
 

Procurement 

 

We spend around £170 million annually through procurement on bought-in goods, services and 

works and influencing the ways in which this is done can make a key contribution to ‘sustainability 

and resilience’.  

We are working towards the circular economy principles to ensure sustainable procurement, which 

ultimately underpins the seven well-being goals under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 

Act 2015 (WBFGA). We will consider ‘whole life costing’ where money is spent in ways that deliver 

wider benefits and adds value as opposed to traditional procurement routes of awarding contracts 

based on lowest price. Consideration such as energy consumption and end of life decommissioning, 

financial and environmental factors will be considered as part of awarding contracts. 

We continue to engage with businesses within our communities, to support new and innovative 

ideas.   As well as considering how we integrate the five ways of working into our new procurement 

strategy and ensuring that the strategy enables procurement to maximise contribution to the well-

being goals, some specific initiatives are being looked at. We have signed up to the UK Steel Charter 

and we are still looking at developing the foundation economy model. 

As part of the new procurement strategy that we are developing, we will consider co-producing 

services with the public, private and community sectors to help shape innovative solutions. We will 

work with suppliers to identify the best solutions to suit our needs.  We will work with others to 

replicate good practice. This new strategy will enable us to maximise our contribution to the well-

being goals and encourage initiatives to help deliver sustainable procurement. 

Page 66



 

43 

Consultations and engaging through social media 
 
Throughout the year we carried out a range of consultations to find out your views and inform our 
decisions. We undertook online surveys, roadshows throughout Bridgend County Borough, ran 
focus groups and invited comment through social media on a number of topics.  Further information 
can be found at https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/equalities-and-
engagement/consultations/.    

During 2019-20, we made good progress against our aim of improving and promoting mechanisms 

to improve responses to consultations and to engage with the public through social media.  A variety 

of engagement methods were used throughout the year to improve resident inclusion and the 

response rate of consultations.  Progress was made in making available easy read versions of 

consultation where they were appropriate i.e. the budget consultation and strategic equality plan 

consultation. Youth versions were also created for the budget consultation and learner travel review. 

Residents and community groups were also more widely engaged using a variety of techniques 

including: one to one support to complete surveys, discussion groups, clicker pads and drop in 

sessions in libraries.   

Clicker pad engagement sessions 

were used to include residents in the 

Strategic Equality Plan, Post 16 and 

learner travel consultations, and to 

carry out the Medium Term Financial 

Strategy budget consultation. 

Sessions were held with full Council, in comprehensive schools with pupils and carers, Bridgend 

Community Cohesion and Equality Forum, the Bridgend Coalition of Disabled People and Citizens’ 

Panel members.  We also used a variety of engagement methods including paper surveys, online 

surveys, Citizens Panel engagement events and public drop in sessions in libraries. 

During the Budget Consultation period we also used promotional materials such as posters, flyers 

and business cards to aid promotion of the consultation. An explainer video was also developed 

and used on the website, social media channels and the digital screens within the Contact Centre 

to promote the budget consultation as well as a bilingual advert on Bridge FM. A QR code was also 

created to ensure easy access to the online surveys for residents.   

During the year, we audited our social media channels and implemented new strategies and tactics 

to grow our social media channels, which contribute towards the Council’s ability to engage with the 

public. Since July 2019, we have seen a significant growth in these type of interactions.  We also 

received the highest amount of interactions on social media during the yearly budget consultation 

campaign than in previous years.   

Being more strategic when we post content on our channels enabled us to engage with the public 
at the most popular times and days that people are online which contributed to a growth in the 
number of interactions. User generated content on Instagram proved popular and increased our 
interactions with the public Instagram stories with use of boomerang working well and for A-level 
and GCSE results day with hundreds of people viewing these videos. Trending hashtags on twitter 
increased reach and engagement such as #Goingtooxford on A-level results week.  
 
On average, each post on social media reached 6,703 people. During the budget consultation social 

media campaign, a total of 2,009 interactions were received via social media. This included 147 

interactions from the live question and answer (Q&A) session, 1,365 social media comments and 

497 social media poll votes. Overall, the Council received 7,437 interactions during the budget 

consultation, covering survey completions, engagement event attendees and social media 

Page 67

https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/equalities-and-engagement/consultations/
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/equalities-and-engagement/consultations/


 

44 

interactions. This is an increase of 2,149 (40.6%) on the 5,288 interactions from last year, of which 

1,200 relates to an increase on social media comments. 

In the latter part of the year, due to severe weather and the Covid-19 pandemic, social media 

interactions increased by almost 50% which resulted in almost a doubling of the yearly target. We 

had the highest ever number of positive reactions (likes and loves) throughout the pandemic as the 

public have been engaging positively with our unsung heroes’ campaign. We have turned the 

homepage of our website into a hub of information during the pandemic and residents have been 

actively engaged with our social media channels to find out the latest developments within Bridgend 

County Borough. In terms of developing our ability to engage with the public through social media 

we posted more regularly and consistently to generate more engagement. We created graphics, 

infographics and collages to promote important information. This resulted in a yearly increase of 

9.94% in social media interactions. 

Page 68



 

45 

  

Financial Performance  

Our financial environment is becoming increasingly challenging.  We need to make unprecedented 

savings in the future that can only be achieved by changing the way we work and changing the way 

services are delivered.  Last year the gross amount we spent on delivering services to our citizens 

and investing in our landscape and infrastructure totalled around £439 million.  The total amount 

that we had available to spend was made up from three main sources listed below. 

Revenue Expenditure 
Our revenue expenditure represents day-to-day costs such as salaries, equipment, supplies and 

services.  Our net revenue expenditure in 2019-20 after allowing for appropriation to earmarked 

reserves, additional income from council tax and an under spend against council-wide budgets was 

£270.246 million, which resulted in an under spend of £563,435 which was transferred to the 

Council fund.  The table below shows the expenditure and proportion of spend per well-being 

objective in 2019-20 and spend on other core services and statutory functions: 

 

Well-being objective for  2019-20 Revised 
Budget 

2019-20 
(£’Million) 

Actual 
Outturn 

2019-20 
(£’Million) 

Actual 
Over/(Under 

Spend) 

2019-20 
(£’Million) 

1. Supporting a successful economy 48.883 49.065 0.182 

2. Helping people to be more self-
reliant 

55.900 54.548 -1.352 

3. Smarter use of resources 5.063 5.054 -0.009 

4. Core services and statutory 
functions 

160.963 161.579 0.616 

TOTAL 270.809 270.246 -0.563 

 

Capital Expenditure 
This represents our spending on schools and infrastructure such as roads, bridges and buildings.  

These assets will benefit the community over long periods of time and the expenditure is largely 

financed by borrowing and capital grants.  Our capital expenditure in 2019-20 was £22.822 million, 

where the main projects carried out during the year included: 

 £2.413 million Disabled Facility Grants and private sector housing 

 £2.527 million on highways and carriageway works 

 £1.908 million on Schools ICT infrastructure 

 £1.562 million on schools capital maintenance works 

 £1.117 million Porthcawl Resort Investment Focus 

 

 

Page 69



 

46 

Grants 
We also received specific government revenue grants in addition to the core Revenue Support 

Grant and Non-Domestic Rate (NDR) allocations and Housing Benefit Subsidy, totalling £50.979 

million during 2019-20, which we are able to use in addition to our own revenue budgets.  The main 

grants received during 2019-20 included: 

 £6.105 million – Post-16 Grant 

 £5.767 million – Supporting People Grant 

 £4.895 million – Education Improvement Grant 

 £4.592 million – Pupil Development Grant 

 £3.076 million – Flying Start Grant 

 £1.690 million – Families First Grant 

The following charts summarise where the money came from and where the money is spent: 

 

 

46%22%

4%

17%

13%

2019-20 Where The Money Comes From 

Revenue Support Grant & Non
Domestic Rates [from Welsh
Government] (46%)

Specific Government Grants
(22%)

Other Grants & Contributions
(4%)

Council Tax (19%)

Fees, Charges & Other Income
(9%)

Page 70



 

47 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

9%

29%

17%

1%

5%

14%

7%

10%
2% 2% 1%

3%

2019-20  Where the Money Is Spent
Education & Family Support (9%)

Schools (29%)

Adult Social Care (17%)

Prevention & Wellbeing (1%)

Children's Social Care (5%)

Communities (14%)

Chief Executive (7%)

Benefit Payments to Claimants
(10%)

Capital Financing (2%)

Levies & Contributions (2%)

Corporate Functions  & Insurance
Premiums (1%)

Council Tax Reduction Scheme (3%)

Page 71



 

48 

What Our Regulators Said about Us  
 

Audit Wales  

 
The work of all Councils in Wales is scrutinised by external regulators to ensure that we use public 

money efficiently and effectively to deliver benefits for our communities. Audit Wales has an annual 

programme of audit and assessment work that it undertakes in the Council, and the conclusions 

from all this work are brought together in an Annual Improvement Report (the latest report available 

is to be published October 2020).  

During the course of the year the Auditor General did not make any formal recommendations, 

however there were a number of proposals for improvement identified in the reviews undertaken 

during 2019-20.  These reports can be viewed on the links below. 

The Auditor General also researches topics at a national level in order to share best practice and 

make recommendations for how public bodies can improve.  The topics covered during the year 

included the role of Public Service Boards, Well-being of young people, Violence against women, 

and First point of contact.  These reports can be accessed via the links below. 

 

Performance and Audit Reviews (local)f 
 

Link 

Follow up review of the corporate arrangements 
for the safeguarding of children in Bridgend  

https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publicatio
ns/bridgend_safeguarding_report.pdf 
 

Delivering with less- Environmental health 
services follow up review for Bridgend 

https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publicatio
ns/bridgend_council_environmental_health_fol
low_up_english.pdf  
 

Financial sustainability assessment https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publicatio
ns/pdf_6.pdf 

Examination under the WFG Act (Wales) 2015 
– ‘Active Bridgend Plan’ 

https://www.audit.wales/publication/bridgend-
county-borough-council-well-being-future-
generations-examination-active 

Savings planning follow up- Bridgend County 
Borough Council 

https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publicatio
ns/1469A2019-
20_BCBC_savings%20planning_final.pdf 

Performance and Audit Reviews (national) Link 

Review of Public Service Boards https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publicatio
ns/review-of-public-service-boards-english.pdf 
 

The well-being of young people  https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publicatio
ns/well-being-of-young-people-english_0.pdf 
 

Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 
2014: First point of contact assessments 

https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publicatio
ns/Front-door-to-adult-social-care-english.pdf 
 

Tackling violence against women, domestic 
abuse and sexual violence  

https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publicatio
ns/VAWDASV_eng.pdf 
 

 

Page 72

https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/bridgend_safeguarding_report.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/bridgend_safeguarding_report.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/bridgend_council_environmental_health_follow_up_english.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/bridgend_council_environmental_health_follow_up_english.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/bridgend_council_environmental_health_follow_up_english.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/pdf_6.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/pdf_6.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/publication/bridgend-county-borough-council-well-being-future-generations-examination-active
https://www.audit.wales/publication/bridgend-county-borough-council-well-being-future-generations-examination-active
https://www.audit.wales/publication/bridgend-county-borough-council-well-being-future-generations-examination-active
https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/1469A2019-20_BCBC_savings%20planning_final.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/1469A2019-20_BCBC_savings%20planning_final.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/1469A2019-20_BCBC_savings%20planning_final.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/review-of-public-service-boards-english.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/review-of-public-service-boards-english.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/well-being-of-young-people-english_0.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/well-being-of-young-people-english_0.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/Front-door-to-adult-social-care-english.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/Front-door-to-adult-social-care-english.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/VAWDASV_eng.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/VAWDASV_eng.pdf


 

49 

Estyn  

Estyn is the office of Her Majesty's Inspectorate for Education and Training in Wales. The purpose of 

Estyn is to provide an independent inspection and advice service on quality and standards in education 

and training in Wales.  To search for the latest reports, please visit 

https://www.estyn.gov.wales/system/files/2020-08/Bridgend%2520County%2520Borough%2520Council_0.pdf 

 

Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW)   

 
CIW evaluate the performance of social services (children and adult services) annually and publish 

their findings and recommendations in a letter to the Director of Social Services.  The assessment 

for performance in 2019-20 can be found here https://careinspectorate.wales/200803-local-

authority-annual-performance-review-letter-201920-bridgend-county-borough-council 

 

During 2019-20, CIW also undertook an inspection in collaboration with Health Inspectorate Wales 

(HIW) to evaluate how Bridgend County Borough Council is promoting independence and 

preventing escalating needs for older adults. The key findings and recommendations are published 

in a report, which can be found here https://careinspectorate.wales/inspection-older-adults-

services-bridgend-county-borough-council 

 

 

  

Page 73

https://www.estyn.gov.wales/system/files/2020-08/Bridgend%2520County%2520Borough%2520Council_0.pdf
https://careinspectorate.wales/200803-local-authority-annual-performance-review-letter-201920-bridgend-county-borough-council
https://careinspectorate.wales/200803-local-authority-annual-performance-review-letter-201920-bridgend-county-borough-council
https://careinspectorate.wales/inspection-older-adults-services-bridgend-county-borough-council
https://careinspectorate.wales/inspection-older-adults-services-bridgend-county-borough-council


 

50 

OUR RESPONSE TO COVID-19   
 
Towards the end of the financial year 2019-20, Covid-19 presented a huge challenge for local 

leadership.  The pandemic also underlined the importance of effective collaboration between local 

partners, and with national government.  The need to be flexible and responsive to meet the 

unprecedented changes to how we lead our daily lives has meant service reform and new ways of 

working have been introduced in extremely short timescales.   

Staff from across public services and the third sector have worked tirelessly to help their 

communities.  This has involved delivering food boxes, securing housing for homeless people, the 

creation of hubs for key workers, delivering accredited online adult courses, supporting people in 

their homes, the distribution of business grants, supporting the roll out of the Test Trace and Protect 

programme, and the return of schooling before the summer holidays.  Many Council staff 

volunteered to be redeployed to keep critical frontline services going, and had to adapt to different 

shift patterns, learn new skills and work through weekends, normal school holidays and bank 

holidays.  The following are just some examples of how staff came together to help local residents 

at the start of the pandemic in mid March 2020: 

Local schools Teachers and assistants prepared online learning materials for more than 23,000 

pupils every weekday. 

Housing Team In early April four pods were set up in temporary locations near projects run by the 

Wallich and housing association Pobl.  The new pods, which contain a bed and toilet, were 

introduced to respond to the needs of rough sleepers, allowing them to comply with social distancing 

requirements and if necessary to self-isolate. 24/7 support was available to those using the pods. 

Cleaning staff:  Crews started work from 4am to get childcare hubs ready for each day. Armed with 

disinfectant and bleach, many had to travel much further than normal due to their regular schools 

closed. The hubs, which also acted as collection points for free school meals, and four Flying Start 

centres were their main focus, but they also continued to clean corporate buildings where essential 

staff were based. 

Catering Team Around 400 cooks, catering assistants and meals at home delivery drivers fed 

children, keyworkers and vulnerable adults during the pandemic, providing hundreds of hot meals 

a day and thousands of packed lunches each week. Working in shifts, they prepared, cooked and 

delivered meals, with many giving up their holidays to ensure the vital service could continue. 

Language and Play officers recorded a series of book readings, songs and craft sessions to help 

young children continue to develop and learn. Uploading the videos to a closed Facebook page for 

families registered under the scheme and basing themselves at one of the emergency childcare 

hubs, the team combined their usual roles with supporting the childcare provision for keyworkers. 

ICT Team Ordering hundreds of laptops during a worldwide shortage while dealing with twice the 

normal number of cyber-attacks, the ICT team ensured that Council staff could work from home 

during the pandemic. The additional workload has been on top of supporting schools as teachers 

moved towards online learning, repurposing over 500 laptops and ICT devices for digitally excluded 

learners and providing tablets to local care homes so that residents could make video calls to 

relatives. 

Fees waived for sports clubs Football and rugby clubs will not pay hire charges for using outdoor 
sports facilities for the 2019-20 season. The Council’s decision takes account of both the 
exceptional circumstances around the Covid-19 crisis and the continued commitment of sports 
clubs and town and community Councils to complete community asset transfers of outdoor 
facilities. 

Page 74



 

51 

 
Page 75



 

52 

Important themes that underpin our work 
 

Performance Management Framework 
Performance management is about taking action in response to actual performance to make 
outcomes for users and the public better than they would otherwise be. You can see our 
Performance Management Framework here: https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/media/2281/bcbc-
performance-management-framework-2017-version.pdf  

 

Scrutinising our performance 
Overview and scrutiny committees are a valuable part of the transparent and democratic process.  
They support the work of the Council as a whole in the improvement of public services. You can 
see more information on the role of scrutiny here: https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-
council/democracy-and-elections/overview-and-scrutiny-committees/ 

 

Risk management   
With growing demands on services at a time of increasing pressure on finances, effective risk 
management remains an essential part of the framework for ensuring good corporate governance.   
Since Corp Risk Register was last agreed, the Covid-19 pandemic has occurred which has had an 

effect worldwide. The register is being continuously reviewed during this period to take into account 

any Covid-19 related risks.  More information can be found here, agenda item 4 

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/g3915/Agenda%20frontsheet%2010th-Sep-

2020%2014.00%20Audit%20Committee.pdf?T=0&LLL=0 

Equality and diversity  
We are committed to promoting equality and valuing diversity through all of our services and 
dedicated to treating our residents, customers, employees and visitors with respect, while providing 
services which respond to people’s individual needs. More information can be found at: 
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/equalities-and-engagement/equality-and-diversity/ 
 

Welsh language  
We are committed to treating Welsh and English on an equal basis when carrying out our public 

business.  Our five-year strategy and more information on how we promote the language can be 

seen at: https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/equalities-and-engagement/welsh-language/ 

 

Bridgend Public Services Board 
Bridgend Public Services Board (PSB) is a group of public sector and not for profit organisations 

who work together to create a better Bridgend County Borough.  In July 2020 the PSB published its 

second annual report highlighting the activity it has undertaken in 2019-20.  You can read the full 

report here https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/media/8924/psb-bridgend-ann-report-eng-0620.pdf 

 

Our well-being objectives for 2020-21 
In our Corporate Plan 2018-22, we set out our well-being objectives. These are:  

 Supporting a successful and sustainable economy  

 Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient 

 Smarter use of resources  

Page 76

https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/media/2281/bcbc-performance-management-framework-2017-version.pdf
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/media/2281/bcbc-performance-management-framework-2017-version.pdf
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/democracy-and-elections/overview-and-scrutiny-committees/
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/democracy-and-elections/overview-and-scrutiny-committees/
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/g3915/Agenda%20frontsheet%2010th-Sep-2020%2014.00%20Audit%20Committee.pdf?T=0&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/g3915/Agenda%20frontsheet%2010th-Sep-2020%2014.00%20Audit%20Committee.pdf?T=0&LLL=0
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/equalities-and-engagement/equality-and-diversity/
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/equalities-and-engagement/welsh-language/
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/media/8924/psb-bridgend-ann-report-eng-0620.pdf


 

53 

As part of our corporate planning the well-being objectives were assessed against the requirements 

of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 to identify opportunities to maximise our 

contribution to the 7 well-being goals.   

The Council agreed to the rewording of two objectives.  The rationale behind the changes was to 

strengthen the alignment with the seven well-being goals.  Full details on the actions we have in 

place can be seen in our Corporate Plan 2018-2022, reviewed for 2020-21 here: 

https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/media/8471/corporate-plan-english-version.pdf 

 

 

Feedback 

We welcome your comments on this annual report and your suggestions for improvement. You can 
give your feedback through  

 

    our website: www.bridgend.gov.uk  

 

      on Instagram www.instagram.com/BridgendCBC/    

  

     via Facebook www.facebook.com/BridgendCBC   

      

    on Twitter: @BridgendCBC   

   

    email to talktous@bridgend.gov.uk  

 

     in writing to Corporate Performance Team, Bridgend County Borough Council,   

     Raven’s Court, Brewery Lane, Bridgend CF31 4WB 

 

This report is available in both Welsh and English. It is also available in another language or format 

on request. 

 

Page 77

https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/media/8471/corporate-plan-english-version.pdf
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/
http://www.instagram.com/BridgendCBC/
http://www.facebook.com/BridgendCBC
mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjEtJeG4v3cAhUMZVAKHU4kBoAQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.freeiconspng.com/img/29484&psig=AOvVaw3Esxkzu-R7qA2xBEvoBGIs&ust=1534927852009229
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwj5ndrz4v3cAhWPmbQKHbLBAUsQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.iconfinder.com/icons/208880/address_at_blue_contact_contacts_e-mail_email_mail_message_icon&psig=AOvVaw1V91FBq8niuFytAucl-yfd&ust=1534928026748424
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwie1oHT4_3cAhUHL1AKHRBpAaAQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.freeiconspng.com/images/email-icon&psig=AOvVaw1kyihVqlaon3wi98cuLyJO&ust=1534928292865762


This page is intentionally left blank



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO COUNCIL

21 OCTOBER 2020

REPORT OF THE INTERIM CHIEF OFFICER – FINANCE, PERFORMANCE AND 
CHANGE

CAPITAL PROGRAMME UPDATE - QUARTER 2 2020-21

1. Purpose of report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to:

 comply with the requirement of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) ‘The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 
Local Authorities’ (2017 edition).

 provide an update of the Capital Programme for the period 1 April to 30 
September 2020 (Appendix A)

 seek approval for a revised capital programme for 2020-21 to 2029-30 
(Appendix B)

 note the projected Prudential and Other Indicators for 2020-21 
(Appendix C)

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate 
priorities

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 
objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015:-  

1. Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make 
the county a good place to do business, for people to live, work, study and 
visit, and to ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions of all people in the county. 

2. Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient – 
taking steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or 
dependent on the Council and its services. Supporting individuals and 
communities to build resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to 
have active, healthy and independent lives.

3. Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all its resources (financial, 
physical, ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and 
efficiently as possible and support the creation of resources throughout the 
community that can help deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

Page 79

Agenda Item 8



2.2 Capital investment in the Council’s assets is a key factor in meeting the 
Council’s Priorities as set out in the Council’s Corporate Plan.

3. Background 

3.1 The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (Wales) Regulations 
2003 as amended, contain detailed provisions for the capital finance and 
accounting controls, including the rules on the use of capital receipts and what 
is to be treated as capital expenditure. They modify accounting practice in 
various ways to prevent adverse impacts on authorities’ revenue resources.

3.2      As well as the legislation, the Council manages its Treasury Management and 
Capital activities in accordance with the following associated guidance:-

 CIPFA’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice 
 CIPFA’s The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities 
 Welsh Government (WG) revised Guidance on Local Authority Investments

3.3 The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities requires Local 
Authorities to have in place a Capital Strategy which demonstrates that the 
Authority takes capital expenditure and investment decisions in line with service 
objectives and properly takes account of stewardship, value for money, 
prudence, sustainability and affordability. To demonstrate that the Council has 
fulfilled these objectives, the Prudential Code sets out a number of Indicators 
that must be set and monitored each year.

3.4 On 26 February 2020, Council approved a capital programme covering the 
period 2020-21 to 2029-30 as part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS). The capital programme was last updated and approved by Council on 
22 July 2020. This report provides an update on the following areas:

 Capital Programme 2020-21 Quarter 2 update
 Capital Programme 2020-21 Onwards
 Prudential and Other Indicators 
 Capital Strategy monitoring

4. Current Situation / Proposal

Capital Programme 2020-21 Quarter 2 update

4.1 This section of the report provides Members with an update on the Council’s 
capital programme for 2020-21 since the budget was last approved by Council 
and incorporates any new schemes and grant approvals. The revised 
programme for 2020-21 currently totals £53.541 million, of which £27.850 
million is met from Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC) resources, 
including capital receipts and revenue contributions from earmarked reserves, 
with the remaining £25.691 million coming from external resources, including 
General Capital Grant. Table 1 below shows the capital programme for each 

Page 80



Directorate from the July 2020 (Quarter 1) approved Council position to quarter 
2:

Table 1 – Capital Programme per Directorate 2020-21

Approved 
Council Directorate

22-Jul-20

New 
Approvals & 
Adjustments

Virements Slippage to 
future years

Revised 
Budget 2020-

21

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Education & 
Family 
Support

7,624 0 125 (500) 7,249

Social 
Services and 
Well-being

2,189 0 102 0 2,291

Communities 48,237 4,691 (227) (12,855) 39,846

Chief 
Executive’s 3,567 420 0 (520) 3,467

Unallocated 688 0 0 0 688

Total 62,305 5,111 0 (13,875) 53,541

4.2 Table 2 below summarises the current funding assumptions for the capital 
programme for 2020-21. The capital resources are managed to ensure that 
maximum financial benefit for the Council is achieved. This may include the 
realignment of funding to maximise government grants. 

Table 2 – Capital Programme 2020-21 Resources

£’000CAPITAL RESOURCES

BCBC Resources:
Capital Receipts 9,045
Earmarked Reserves 10,754
Unsupported Borrowing 2,573
Supported Borrowing 3,986
Other Loans 1,417
Revenue Contribution 75
Total BCBC Resources 27,850

Page 81



External Resources:
Grants 25,691
Total External Resources 25,691
TOTAL RESOURCES 53,541

4.3 Appendix A provides details of the individual schemes within the capital 
programme, showing the budget available in 2020-21 compared to the 
projected spend. 

4.4 A number of schemes have already been identified as requiring slippage of 
budget to future years (2021-22 and beyond). At quarter 2 the total requested 
slippage is £13.875 million, which includes the following schemes:

Porthcawl Regeneration (£2.557 million) 
Council have approved £2.607 million to fund works associated with the 
regeneration of Porthcawl, subject to realisation of capital receipts. Feasibility 
works are currently underway but it is anticipated that £2.557 million will be 
slipped into 2021-22. Further optioneering, development and engagement work 
will be required to bring forward the right mix of housing, low carbon 
development and sustainable transport onto the site.

Llynfi Development Site (£2.246 million) 
The COVID-19 pandemic has had a severe impact on the intended site 
investigation works at the Maesteg Washery West site, with site access 
restrictions, staff resourcing issues and laboratory shut downs causing a 
significant delay to the programme of works. Discussions with the consultant 
engineers on the scheme, have indicated that the scheme can now progress 
(whilst following current COVID guidelines) and they have produced a revised 
programme to this effect.

Welsh Government has recently provided confirmation to the Council that the 
loan for this site, which was due to be repaid this month, can now be extended 
for a further 12 months.  Consequently the funding has been slipped into 2021-
22 and adjusted to reflect the revised capital / feasibility split.

         
Coastal Risk Management Porthcawl (£1.25 million) 
Approval has been received from Welsh Government to tender the £6.032 
million for works in Porthcawl in relation to the refurbishment of the Western 
Breakwater, improvement of the Eastern Promenade, repairs to Rhych Point 
and introduction of a dune management system to enhance and retain the relic 
dunes at Sandy Bay. These works will protect approximately 531 Residential 
and 175 Business Properties. 

The tender process, which started later than originally planned whilst approval 
was sought from WG, is underway and it is anticipated for this to be concluded 
by the end of November, with an anticipated works start date of January 2021. 
This has resulted in slippage of £1.25 million to 2021-22.

  

Page 82



Carriageway and Footways renewal (£1.3 million) 
Due to the limited available working window for resurfacing works (generally 
March to October) it is anticipated that works will be complete to the value of 
£1.7 million for 2020-21. As a result of additional WG funding in previous years 
£1.3 million has been slipped into 2021-22. 

           Corporate Landlord Energy Efficiency Savings (£1.287 million)
The Refit Project is progressing successfully. Over the last months and despite 
the delays caused by the pandemic, the tenderer was appointed (Ameresco) 
and the high level appraisal stage was completed and approved by the Project 
Board. Currently the Project Board is expecting the Investment Grade Proposal 
report by the beginning of November 2020. As a result, the Council will have 
greater detail about the energy conservation measures that will be installed at 
the 19 sites that are part of this project. It is estimated that by January 2021 the 
Council would be in a good position to enter the works contract with the service 
provider. It should be noted that once the Investment Grade Proposal report is 
approved, the report will be sent for approval to Salix Finance which will 
substitute the prudential borrowing required for the scheme with an interest free 
loan.

Waterton Upgrade (£2.837 million) 
£8.144m was approved by Council for works associated with the Waterton 
upgrade. The budget was approved on the basis that the Highways depot at 
Waterton was to be rationalised and refurbished. The Council is now 
investigating the possibility of a school being constructed at Waterton thus the 
Highways Depot is likely to be a new construction at a location still to be 
identified. When a location is identified a robust estimate will be compiled and 
reported to Cabinet and Council for financial approval. Therefore the 2020-21 
funding of £2.87 million will be slipped into 2021-22.

          
The balance of slippage (£2.398 million) is across a number of schemes and 
are minor amendments to the financial profiles of the schemes.

Capital Programme 2020-21 Onwards

4.5 Since the last capital report in July 2020, there have been a number of new 
externally funded schemes approved and internally funded schemes, which 
have been incorporated into the capital programme, including:          

     Highways Refurbishment Grant (£0.806 million)
The Council has been awarded £0.806 million from the WG Capital Funding for 
Local Government Public Highways Refurbishment Grant 20-21, to undertake 
highway refurbishment works to the highway network. The purpose of the 
capital funding is to support local authorities to finance public highways 
refurbishment within their authority limits. 

Active Travel Fund (£2.44 million)
In July 2020 WG awarded the Council with an Active Travel Fund of £2.44 
million. The purpose of the fund is to increase levels of active travel, improve 
health and well-being, improve air quality, reduce carbon emissions, connect 

Page 83



communities and improve active travel access to employment, education and 
key services, destinations and public transport. It will include an active travel 
package for Bridgend to Pencoed and a package of improvements for Bridgend 
to Coychurch and Pencoed to Pencoed College. 
Due to the late notification of funding for the schemes, it is anticipated that there 
will only be spend of £1.583 million in 2020-21, there is likely to be slippage of 
£861,000. WG cannot give assurance that this funding can be carried forward 
or that further grant funding will be made available in 2021-22, so the scheme 
has been split into phases and as much work as possible will be completed in 
this financial year, with the rest hopefully completed next year either through 
grant carried forward, additional capital funding or new bids to WG.

Fleet Replacement Programme (£0.5 million)
To enable replacement of council-wide vehicles on a cyclical nature funding of 
£0.5 million has been included in the capital programme in 2021-22 to be 
funded through prudential borrowing. The funding and corresponding charges 
to services will be managed through the Joint Fleet Manager.

TRI Standalone - 11a Nolton Street (£0.299 million)
The Council have been successful in securing £0.3 million from Welsh 
Government’s Targeted Regeneration Investment (TRI) programme, for the 
redevelopment of 11a Nolton Street. The redevelopment, led by Coastal 
Housing Group (CHG) sees a key site in the town centre being brought back 
into use, providing 10 affordable new homes and supported by 2 commercial 
units. In March 2020, the Council entered into a funding agreement for the TRI 
grant with Coastal Housing Group.

Local Sustainable Transport Covid Response (£0.619 million)
In June 2020 WG awarded the Council with funding in relation to Local 
Sustainable Transport Covid Response (£0.619 million). The fund is to be used 
for ‘pop up’ measures which will include temporary low cost solutions to 
reallocate road space in favour of sustainable forms of transport.

          
          Enable Grant (£0.180 million)

WG has awarded the Council with £0.18 million funding in relation to the 
Enable, Support for Independent Living Grant 2020-21. The purpose of the 
Funding is to support the delivery of adaptations and integrate service delivery.

Safer Routes in Communities (£0.222 million)
WG has awarded the Council with £0.222 million funding in relation to Safe 
Routes in Communities. The purpose of the funding is to support capital 
schemes that contribute to the Welsh Government’s objectives to improve 
accessibility and safety and encourage walking and cycling in communities. 
There is particular emphasis on improving routes to and from schools. The aim 
is to change how people travel, resulting in greater social inclusion and 
improved community safety. Specifically this will be used to fund the Coity 
Higher Community Safe Routes Phase II. 

A small number of other minor additions to the programme are listed below:

Page 84



 Investment in ICT - £0.24 million WG Covid-19 contribution to ICT costs.
 Pyle Park and Ride Metro and Penprysg road bridge - £0.2 million Local 

Transport Fund grant.
 Bryngarw House & Pencoed Library - £0.05 million for agreed minor 

works schemes funded via the minor works revenue budget.

         
4.6 There are a number of other schemes within the Capital Programme that are 

awaiting confirmation of external funding over the Autumn period. Once 
approval is known, it may also result in some schemes needing re-profiling. The 
Capital Programme has not been updated at this time for these schemes and 
further reports will be brought to Cabinet and Council in due course for approval. 

A Revised Capital Programme is included as Appendix B.

Prudential and Other Indicators 2020-21 

4.7 In February 2020, Council approved the Capital Strategy for 2020-21, which 
included the Prudential Indicators 2020-21 to 2022-23 together with some local 
indicators. 

4.8 The Capital Strategy is intended to give an overview of how capital expenditure, 
capital financing and treasury management activity contribute to the provision 
of services along with an overview of how associated risk is managed and the 
implications for future sustainability. To this end, a number of prudential 
indicators were included, and approved by Council. In line with the requirements 
of the Prudential Code, the Chief Finance Officer is required to establish 
procedures to monitor both performance against all forward-looking prudential 
indicators and the requirement specified.

4.9 Appendix C details the actual indicators for 2019-20, the estimated indicators 
for 2020-21 set out in the Council’s Capital Strategy and the projected indicators 
for 2020-21 based on the revised Capital Programme. These show that the 
Council is operating in line with the approved limits.

Capital Strategy Monitoring

4.10 The Capital Strategy also requires the monitoring of non-treasury management 
investments and other long term liabilities. The Council does have an existing 
investment portfolio which is 100% based within the County Borough and 
primarily the office and industrial sectors. The income streams are generally 
spread between the single and multi-let office investments on Bridgend Science 
Park, the multi-let industrial estates and the freehold ground rent investments. 
The total value of Investment Properties was £4.635 million at 31 March 2020.

4.11 The Council has a number of Other Long Term Liabilities which are included 
within the Capital Strategy. No new loans have been taken out in quarter 2.

5. Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules

Page 85



5.1 As required by Financial Procedure Rule 3.5.3 within the Council’s Constitution, 
“The Chief Finance Officer shall report quarterly to Cabinet an update on the 
Capital Strategy and the Prudential Indicators.”

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.1 Projects within the capital programme will be subject to the preparation of 
Equality Impact Assessments before proceeding.  There are no equality 
implications arising from this report.

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications

7.1       The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of 
this report.  It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable 
impacts upon the achievement of wellbeing goals/objectives as a result of this 
report. Specifically the development of a 10 year capital programme, which 
reflects the Council’s affordability in terms of capital receipts and borrowing, 
supports the principle of sustainability over the long term.

8. Financial implications

8.1 The financial implications are outlined in the body of the report.

9. Recommendation

9.1 It is recommended that Council:

 notes the Council’s capital programme update for 2020-21 for the period 
to 30 September 2020 (Appendix A);

 approves the revised Capital Programme (Appendix B);
 notes the projected Prudential and Other Indicators for 2020-21 

(Appendix C).

Gill Lewis
Interim Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change 
October 2020

Contact Officer: Nigel Smith
Interim Group Manager – Chief Accountant 

Telephone: 01656 643359
E-mail: Nigel.Smith@bridgend.gov.uk
Postal Address: Bridgend County Borough Council

Chief Executive’s - Finance
Raven’s Court
Brewery Lane
Bridgend
CF31 4AP

Page 86

mailto:Nigel.Smith@bridgend.gov.uk


Background documents: 
Capital Strategy 2020-21– Report to Council 26 February 2020
Capital Programme Q1 Update 2020-21 – Report to Council 22 July 20
Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020 onwards – Report to Council 26 February 2020

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



Bridgend County Borough Council APPENDIX A

CAPITAL MONITORING REPORT QUARTER 2 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

Budget 20-21 
(Council JULY 

20)

New Approvals Virement Slippage Revised Budget 
2020-21

Total Exp to 
date

Projected Spend Over / (Under) 
spend

Impact on 
BCBC 

Resources

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Education & Family Support
HIGHWAYS SCHEMES BAND B 500                   (500)                  -                             -                   -                        -                   -                  
BRYNMENYN PRIMARY             44                     44                               -                  44                          -                   -                  
GATEWAY TO THE VALLEYS SEC SCH 97                     97                              1                       97                          -                   -                  
GARW VALLEY SOUTH PRIMARY PROVISION 160                   160                            (3)                     160                        -                   -                  
PENCOED PRIMARY               62                     62                              7                       62                          -                   -                  
GARW VALLEY PRIMARY HIGHWAYS  30                     30                               -                  30                          -                   -                  
PENCOED PRIMARY SCHOOL HIGHWAYS WORKS 56                     56                               -                  56                          -                   -                  
BRYNMENYN SCHOOL HIGHWAYS WORK 15                     15                              (1)                     15                          -                   -                  
ALN PROVISION 7                       7                                 -                  7                            -                   -                  
REDUCTION OF INFANT CLASS SIZES 70                     70                              16                     70                          -                   -                  
CROESTY PRIMARY SCHOOL        149                   149                            9                       149                        -                   -                  
SCHOOLS CAPITAL MINOR WORKS 272                   125                   397                            26                     397                        -                   -                  
SCHOOLS TRAFFIC SAFETY        252                   252                             -                  252                        -                   -                  
SCHOOL MODERNISATION RETENTION 591                   591                             -                  591                        -                   -                  
CEFN CRIBWR PRIMARY ALN 438                   438                            192                   438                        -                   -                  
EDUCATION S106 SCHEMES        202                   202                             -                  202                        -                   -                  
COMPLEX & MEDICAL NEEDS PROVISION 49                     49                              41                     49                          -                   -                  
MYNYDD CYNFFIG PRIMARY SCHOOL MOBILES 1,200                1,200                          -                  1,200                     -                   -                  
SCHOOLS' CAPITAL MAINTENANCE GRANT 1,462                1,462                         1,319                1,462                     -                   -                  
WELSH MEDIUM CHILDCARE PROVISION - BETTWS 578                   578                            20                     578                        -                   -                  
WELSH MEDIUM CHILDCARE PROVISION - BRIDGEND 55                     55                               -                  55                          -                   -                  
WELSH MEDIUM CHILDCARE PROVISION - OGMORE 128                   128                            24                     128                        -                   -                  
WELSH MEDIUM CHILDCARE PROVISION - PORTHCAWL 55                     55                               -                  55                          -                   -                  
WELSH MEDIUM CHILDCARE PROVISION - HIGHWAYS 100                   100                             -                  100                        -                   -                  
WLGA - ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR ICT -SCHOOLS 81                     81                               -                  81                          -                   -                  
EAST HUB- BRYNTEG COMPREHENSIVE 971                   971                            659                   971                        -                   -                  

TOTAL Education & Family Support 7,624                 -                  125                   (500)                 7,249                         2,310                7,249                     -                   -                  

Social Services and Wellbeing
BRYNGARW PARK - ACCESS IMPROVEMENTS 35                     35                               -                  35                          -                   -                  
BRYN Y CAE - HFE'S 40                     40                               -                  40                          -                   -                  
WELLBEING MINOR WORKS 31                     90                     121                            5                       121                        -                   -                  
TY PENYBONT 38                     (38)                    -                             -                   -                        -                   -                  
BAKERS WAY MINOR WORKS        10                     10                               -                  10                          -                   -                  
GLAN YR AFON CARE HOME        51                     51                               -                  51                          -                   -                  
CHILDRENS RESIDENTIAL HUB     1,864                1,864                         106                   1,864                     -                   -                  
HARTSHORN HOUSE 50                     50                              - 50                          -                   -                  
EXTRA CARE FACILITIES         120                   120                             -                  120                        -                   -                  

TOTAL Social Services & Wellbeing 2,189                 -                  102                    -                  2,291                         111                   2,291                     -                   -                  

Communities
Street Scene
PARKS/PAVILIONS/COMMUNITY CENTRES CAT 748                   748                            21                     748                        -                   -                  
ABERFIELDS PLAYFIELDS 11                     11                               -                  11                          -                   -                  
CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION CITY DEAL 5,552                5,552                          -                  5,552                     -                   -                  

P
age 89



Budget 20-21 
(Council JULY 

20)

New Approvals Virement Slippage Revised Budget 
2020-21

Total Exp to 
date

Projected Spend Over / (Under) 
spend

Impact on 
BCBC 

Resources

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

PORTHCAWL TOWN SEA DEFENCE    52                     52                              (55)                   52                          -                   -                  
COYCHURCH CREMATORIUM 835                   (815)                 20                              5                       20                          -                   -                  
REMEDIAL MEASURES - CAR PARKS 125                   (20)                   105                             -                  105                        -                   -                  
CIVIL PARKING ENFORCEMENT 38                     38                               -                  38                          -                   -                  
SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL          -                   -                            1                        -                        -                   -                  
ROAD SAFETY SCHEMES           64                     20                     84                              18                     84                          -                   -                  
ACTIVE TRAVEL- PENCOED TECHNOLOGY PARK  -                  2,444                2,444                          -                  1,583                    (861)                  -                  
HIGHWAYS STRUCTURAL WORKS     200                   200                            3                       200                        -                   -                  
CARRIAGEWAY CAPITAL WORKS     250                   250                            77                     250                        -                   -                  
ACTIVE TRAVEL - BRIDGEND TO BRACKLA  -                   -                            (20)                    -                        -                   -                  
ROAD SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS - HEOL MOSTYN 600                   600                            5                       600                        -                   -                  
RIGHTS OF WAY MINOR WORKS  -                  50                     50                               -                  50                          -                   -                  
HIGHWAYS REFURBISHMENT GRANT 151                   806                   957                            71                     957                        -                   -                  
CARRIAGEWAY & FOOTWAYS RENEWAL 3,003                (1,303)              1,700                         401                   1,700                     -                   -                  
NATIONAL CYCLE NETWORK PHASE 2  -                   -                            (17)                    -                        -                   -                  
REPLACEMENT OF STREET LIGHTING 455                   (175)                 280                            17                     280                        -                   -                  
BRIDGE STRENGTHENING A4061    1,285                1,285                         656                   1,285                     -                   -                  
COMMUNITIES MINOR WORKS       101                   367                   468                            (27)                   468                        -                   -                  
RIVER PROTECTION MEASURES     3                       175                   178                            64                     178                        -                   -                  
RETAINING WALL REPLACEMENT BETTWS 11                     40                     51                               -                  51                          -                   -                  
PYLE PARK AND RIDE METRO  -                  120                   120                            44                     120                        -                   -                  
LOCAL TRANSPORT FUND - PENPRYSG ROAD BRIDGE  -                  80                     80                              75                     80                          -                   -                  
LOCAL TRANSPORT FUND - BRIDGEND TO COYCHURCH  -                   -                            (30)                    -                        -                   -                  
SAFE ROUTES - COITY HIGHER  -                  222                   222                            (6)                     222                        -                   -                  
SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT COVID RESPONSE 619                   619                            68                     619                        -                   -                  
RESIDENTS PARKING BRIDGEND TC 128                   128                             -                  128                        -                   -                  
FLEET VEHICLES                2,085                2,085                         190                   2,085                     -                   -                  
RELOCATE RECYCLING CENTRE     1,594                1,594                          -                  1,594                     -                   -                  
AHP WASTE 238                   238                            28                     238                        -                   -                  
EXTENSION TO CORNELLY CEMETERY 314 (301)                 13                               -                  13                          -                   -                  
EXTENSION TO PORTHCAWL CEMETERY 216 (199)                 17                               -                  17                          -                   -                  
STREET LIGHTING ENERGY SALIX  1417 1,417                         287                   1,417                     -                   -                  
HIGHWAYS S106 MINOR SCHEMES 63                     63                               -                  63                          -                   -                  

TOTAL Streetscene 19,539              4,381                367                   (2,618)              21,669                       1,877                20,808                  (861)                  -                  

Regeneration & Development
BRIDGEND BUS SUP NETWORK        128                   128                            36                     128                        -                   -                  
PORTHCAWL RESORT INVESTMENT FOCUS (PRIF) 99                     99                              59                     99                          -                   -                  
EU CONVERGANCE SRF BUDGET     990                   990                             -                  990                        -                   -                  
PURCHASE OF SALT LAKE CAR PARK 64                     (64)                    -                             -                   -                        -                   -                  
VRP - BRYNGARW PARK 263                   (24)                   239                            1                       239                        -                   -                  
VRP - PARC SLIP 139                   24                     163                            13                     163                        -                   -                  
TRI THEMATIC PROJECTS (UCPE AND UCLG) 600                   220                   820                            54                     820                        -                   -                  
TRI STANDALONE PROJECTS 220                   299                   (220)                 299                             -                  299                        -                   -                  
PORTHCAWL REGENERATION PROJECT 2,543                64                     (2,557)              50                              47                     50                          -                   -                  
ECONOMIC STIMULUS PROJECT 887                   887                             -                  887                        -                   -                  
COASTAL RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 2,750                (1,250)              1,500                         10                     1,500                     -                   -                  
LLYNFI DEVELOPMENT SITE       2,246                (2,246)               -                             -                   -                        -                   -                  
BRIDGEND HEAT SCHEME          450                   450                             -                  450                        -                   -                  
MAESTEG TOWN HALL CULTURAL HUB 5,158                (60)                   5,098                         643                   5,098                     -                   -                  
TOWN & COMMUNITY COUNCIL FUND 249                   249                            10                     249                        -                   -                  
CAERAU HEAT NETWORK 1,939                1,939                          -                  1,939                     -                   -                  
PORTHCAWL THI                 134                   134                             -                  134                        -                   -                  

P
age 90



Budget 20-21 
(Council JULY 

20)

New Approvals Virement Slippage Revised Budget 
2020-21

Total Exp to 
date

Projected Spend Over / (Under) 
spend

Impact on 
BCBC 

Resources

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

TOTAL Regeneration & Development 18,859              299                    -                  (6,113)              13,045                       872                   13,045                   -                   -                  

Corporate Landlord
CAPITAL ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND 820                   820                             -                  820                        -                   -                  
CORPORATE  LANDLORD ENERGY EFFICIENCY SAVINGS 1,299                (1,287)              12                               -                  12                          -                   -                  
ENTERPRISE HUB 627                   (24)                   603                            28                     603                        -                   -                  
RAVEN'S COURT MINOR WORKS 454                   454                            5                       454                        -                   -                  
ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING POINTS RAVENS COURT 25                     25                              13                     25                          -                   -                  
RELOCATION OF REGISTRARS      9                       9                                53                     9                            -                   -                  
BRIDGEND/MAESTEG MARKET MINOR WORKS 25                     25                               -                  25                          -                   -                  
DDA WORKS                     16                     270                   286                            1                       286                        -                   -                  
MINOR WORKS 1,233                (975)                 258                             -                  258                        -                   -                  
FIRE PRECAUTIONS MINOR WORKS  95                     96                     191                            8                       191                        -                   -                  
BRYNCETHIN DEPOT FACILITIES   151                   151                            10                     151                        -                   -                  
NON OPERATIONAL ASSETS        480                   480                             -                  480                        -                   -                  
WATERTON UPGRADE              2,837                (2,837)               -                             -                   -                        -                   -                  
EVERGREEN HALL - LEASE ACQUISITION 40                     40                               -                  40                          -                   -                  
INVESTING IN COMMUNITIES 1,728                1,728                          -                  1,728                     -                   -                  
BRYNGARW HOUSE 30                     30                               -                  30                          -                   -                  
PENCOED LIBRARY 5                       15                     20                               -                  20                          -                   -                  

Total Corporate Landlord 9,839                11                     (594)                 (4,124)              5,132                         119                   5,132                     -                   -                  

TOTAL Communities 48,237              4,691                (227)                 (12,855)            39,846                       2,868                38,985                  (861)                  -                  

Chief Executive
CORPORATE CAPITAL FUND 200                   (76)                   124                            69                     124                        -                   -                  

TOTAL Corporate Capital Fund 200                    -                  (76)                    -                  124                            69                     124                        -                   -                  

 -                  
DISABLED FACILITIES GRANTS (DFG) 1,950                (24)                   1,926                         499                   1,926                     -                   -                  
HOUSING RENEWAL AREA          100                   100                             -                  100                        -                   -                  
VALLEYS TASK FORCE EMPTY PROPERTIES GRANT 300                   300                            22                     300                        -                   -                  
WESTERN VALLEY EMPTY HOMES PILOT 260                   260                             -                  260                        -                   -                  
EMERGENCY REPAIR LIFETIME GRANT  -                  24                     24                              24                     24                          -                   -                  
ENABLE SUPPORT GRANT  -                  180                   180                            43                     180                        -                   -                  

TOTAL Housing/Homelessness 2,610                180                    -                   -                  2,790                         587                   2,790                     -                   -                  

DIGITAL MEETING SPACES        26                     26                              21                     26                          -                   -                  
ICT INFRA SUPPORT             211                   240                   76                     527                            527                   527                        -                   -                  
DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION        520                   (520)                  -                             -                   -                        -                   -                  

TOTAL ICT 757                   240                   76                     (520)                 553                            547                   553                        -                   -                  

UNALLOCATED 688                    -                   -                   -                  688                             -                  688                        -                   -                  

TOTAL Chief Executive 4,255                420                    -                  (520)                 4,155                         1,203                4,155                     -                   -                  

GRAND TOTAL 62,305           5,111              -               (13,875)          53,541                   6,492             52,680               (861)                -               

P
age 91



T
his page is intentionally left blank



CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2020-2030 APPENDIX B

CUMULATIVE

Total Cost
BCBC 

Funding
External 
Funding

Total Costs to 
31-3-20

Council July 
2020

New 
Approvals Vire Slippage

Revised 
2020-21 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 2026-2027 2027-2028 2028-2029 2029-2030 Total 2020 - 2030

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Education & Family Support

Coleg Cymunedol y Dderwen Comprehensive School 97             97            -       15                  97                                                         97                                                                                                                       97                         
Additional Learning Needs 7               7              -       4,082             7                                                           7                                                                                                                         7                           
Garw Valley South Primary Provision 160           160          -       10,433            160                                                       160                                                                                                                     160                       
Garw Valley Primary Highways Works 30             30            -       265                30                                             30                                                                                                                       30                         
Pencoed Primary School 62             62            -       10,933            62                                                         62                                                                                                                       62                         
Pencoed School Highways Works 56             56            -       355                56                                                         56                                                                                                                       56                         
Brynmenyn Primary School 44             44            -       8,115             44                                                         44                                                                                                                       44                         
Brymenyn Primary Highways Works 15             15            -       737                15                                                         15                                                                                                                       15                         
21st Century Schools Band B 49,502      15,652    33,850                     -             1,910        5,663        24,631      16,580      718                                                  49,502                  
Highways Schemes Band B Schools 3,400        3,400       -       500               (500)           -             3,400                                                                                                   3,400                    
Mynydd Cynffig Primary School Mobiles 1,200        1,200       -       1,200            1,200          1,200                    
School's Capital Maintenance Grant 1,462        1,462       -       1,462            1,462          1,462                    
Welsh Medium Childcare Provision - Bettws 595            -         595        578               578             17             595                       
Welsh Medium Childcare Provision - Bridgend 650            -         650        55                 55               98             497           650                       
Welsh Medium Childcare Provision - Ogmore 625            -         625        128               128             497                        625                       
Welsh Medium Childcare Provision - Porthcawl 650            -         650        55                 55               98             497           650                       
Welsh Medium Childcare Provision - Highways Schemes 100           100        100               100             100                       
WLGA - Additional funding for ICT in Schools 81              -         81          81                 81               81                         
Reduction of Infant Class Sizes - Bro Ogwr 70              -         70          10                  70                 70                                                                                                                       70                         
Reduction of Infant Class Sizes - Croesty 149            -         149        17                  149               149             149                       
Brynteg Comp - East Hub 1,010         -         1,010     971               971             39             1,010                    
Schools Minor Works 397           397          -       136                272               125          397                                                                                                                     397                       
Cefn Cribwr Primary School ALN 438           438                           438               438             438                       
School Modernisation 591           591         591               591             591                       
Schools Traffic Safety 252           252         323                252               252                                                                                                                     252                       
Education S106 Schemes 202            -         202        146                202                                                       202                                                                                                                     202                       
Complex and Medical Needs Works in Schools 49             49            -       313                49                                                         49                                                                                                                       49                         
Total Education and Family Support 61,894      23,912    37,982   35,880            7,624             -             125          (500)          7,249          6,059        6,657        24,631      16,580      718            -           -           -           -          61,894                  
Social Services and Well-being

Adult Social Care

Extra Care Facilities 120           120          -       1,717             120                                                       120                                                                                                                     120                       

Adult Social Care Minor works  -            -          -       38                 (38)           -                                                                                                                      -                       

Bryn Y Cae 40             40            -       40                                            40               40                         

Bakers Way 10             10            -       10                                            10               10                         

Social Services Care Act 51             51            -       71                  51                                                         51                                                                                                                       51                         

Wellbeing Minor Works 121           121         31                                90                         121             121                       

Bryngarw Park- Access 35             35           35                                                         35               35                         

Children's Residential Accommodation Hub 1,864        1,214      650        367                1,864                                     1,864                                                                                                                  1,864                    
Hartshorn House 50             50           50            50               50                         
Total Social Services and Well-being 2,291        1,641      650        2,155             2,189             -             102           -           2,291           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -          2,291                    
Communities

Street Scene

Town Beach Revetment Sea Defence, Porthcawl 52             28           24          3,151             52                                                         52                                                                                                                       52                         

Active travel Pencoed Technology Park 2,444         -         2,444     2,444          2,444          2,444                    

Highways Structural Works 2,000        2,000       -       213                200                                                       200             200           200           200           200           200           200           200           200           200           2,000                    

Carriageway Capital Works 2,500        2,500       -       311                250                                                       250             250           250           250           250           250           250           250           250           250           2,500                    

Highways Refurbishment Grant 957            -         957        151               806                                      957                          957                       

Replacement of Street Lighting Columns 3,880        3,880       -       1,093             455               (175)                      280             400           400           400           400           400           400           400           400           400           3,880                    

River Bridge Protection Measures 178           178          -       3                   175                       178             178                       

Road Safety 84             84            -       26                  64                                20                         84                                                                                                                       84                         

Fleet Vehicles 2,585        2,585       -       236                2,085            2,085          500                                                                                                      2,585                    

Re-locate Household Waste Recycling Centre - West 1,594        1,594       -       6                    1,594            1,594                                                                                                                  1,594                    

AHP Waste 238           238          -       238               238             238                       

Parks/Pavilions/Community Centres CAT 748           748          -       3                    748               748                                                                                                                     748                       

Aber Playing Fields 11             11                             11                 11               11                         

Bridge Strengthening - A4061 Ogmore Valley 1,285        1,285       -       381                1,285                                                    1,285                                                                                                                  1,285                    

Communities Minor Works 468           468          -       50                  101                              367                       468                                                                                                                     468                       

Residents Parking Bridgend Town Centre 128           128          -                         128                                                       128                                                                                                                     128                       

S106 Highways Small Schemes 63              -         63          63                                                         63                                                                                                                       63                         

Remedial Measures - Car Parks 105           105          -       64                  125                              (20)                       105                                                                                                                     105                       

Prow Capital Improvement Programme 50              -         50                           50                                        50                                                                                                                       50                         

Road Safety Improvements - Heol Mostyn 600           600          -       265                600                                                       600                                                                                                                     600                       

Pyle Park and Ride Metro 120           120        120             120             120                       

FUTURE YEARS2020-2021
Total 2020-2030

P
age 93



CUMULATIVE

Total Cost
BCBC 

Funding
External 
Funding

Total Costs to 
31-3-20

Council July 
2020

New 
Approvals Vire Slippage

Revised 
2020-21 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 2026-2027 2027-2028 2028-2029 2029-2030 Total 2020 - 2030

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

FUTURE YEARS2020-2021
Total 2020-2030

Local Transport Fund - Penprysg Road Bridge 80              -         80                           80                                        80               80                         

Safe Routes - Coity Higher 222            -         222                         222                                      222             222                       

SustainableTransport Covid Response 619           619        619             619             619                       

Coychurch Crem Works 835            -         835        835                                          (815)          20               815                                                                                                      835                       

Retaining Wall Replacement, Bettws 51             11           40          164                11                 40                           51                                                                                                                       51                         

Civil Parking Enforcement 38             38            -       38                                            38                                                                                                                       38                         

Cardiff Capital Region City Deal 42,134      7,880      34,254   3,447             5,552                                       5,552          4,055        4,310        6,029        6,043        7,567        7,570        762           246           42,134                  

Carriageway Resurfacing & Renewal of Footways 3,003        3,003       -       1,568             3,003                                       (1,303)       1,700          1,303                                                                                                   3,003                    

Extension to Cornelly Cemetery 314           314          -       314                                          (301)          13               301                                                                                                      314                       

Extension to Porthcawl Cemetery 216           216          -       216                                          (199)          17               199                                                                                                      216                       

Street Lighting Energy Efficiency 1,417        1,417       -       483                1,417                                                    1,417                                                                                                                  1,417                    
Regeneration & Development                                    

Porthcawl Resort Investment Focus 99             64           35          1,038             99                                                         99                                                                                                                       99                         
Coastal Risk Management Program - Porthcawl 6,032        1,509      4,523     2,750                                       (1,250)       1,500          4,382        150           6,032                    
Porthcawl Regeneration 2,607        2,607       -       36                  2,543            64            (2,557)       50               2,557                                                                                                   2,607                    

Special Regeneration Funding 990           990          -                         990                                                       990                                                                                                                     990                       

Porthcawl Townscape Heritage Initiative 134           134          -       489                134                                                       134                                                                                                                     134                       

Economic Stimulus Grant 887           887          -       887                                                       887             887                       

Business Support Framework 128           128          -       27                  128                                                       128                                                                                                                     128                       

Llynfi Valley Development Programme 2,260        2,260       -       2,246                                       (2,246)        -             2,260                                                                                                   2,260                    

Purchase of Land at Salt Lake Car Park, Porthcawl  -            -       36                  64                                (64)           -                                                                                                                      -                       

VRP- Bryngarw Country Park 239            -         239        263                              (24)          239             239                       

VRP - Parc Slip 163            -         163        139                              24            163             163                       

Tri Thematic Projects (UCPE and UCLG ) 820            -         820        600                              220                       820             820                       

TRI Standalone projects 299            -         299        220               299             (220)                      299             299                       

Maesteg Town Hall Cultural Hub 7,183        2,604      4,579     417                5,158                                       (60)            5,098          2,085                                                                                                   7,183                    

Smart System and Heat Programme 500           500          -       450                                                       450             50                                                                                                        500                       

Caerau Heat Network 6,293        1,168      5,125     1,939            1,939          2,434        1,531        389           6,293                    
Community Projects 699           699          -                         249                                          249             50             50             50             50             50             50             50             50             50             699                       
Corporate Landlord                    

Corporate Landlord - Energy Savings Strategy 1,299        1,299       -       1,299                                       (1,287)       12               1,287                                                                                                   1,299                    

Investing in Communities 1,728        1,728       -       1,728            1,728          1,728                    

Evergreen Hall 40             40            -       40                                40               40                         

Enterprise Hub - Innovation Centre 2,060        589         1,471     97                  627               (24)                                       603             1,422        35                                                                                           2,060                    

Raven's Court 454           454         454                                                       454             454                       
Minor Works 10,428      10,428     -       206                1,233                           (975)                      258             1,130        1,130        1,130        1,130        1,130        1,130        1,130        1,130        1,130        10,428                  
Electrical vehicle charging points Ravens Court 25             25            -       25                                                         25                                                                                                                       25                         
Fire Precautions 191           191          -       95                                96                         191                                                                                                                     191                       
DDA Works 286           286          -       16                                270                       286                                                                                                                     286                       
Relocation of Depot Facilities 151           151          -       984                151                                        151                                                                                                                     151                       
Waterton Upgrade 8,144        8,144       -       2,837                                       (2,837)        -             8,144                                                                                                   8,144                    
Bridgend Market 25             25            -       25                                                         25                                                                                                                       25                         
Relocation of Registrars 9               9              -       4                    9                                                           9                                                                                                                         9                           
Non-Operational Assets 480           480          -                         480                                                       480                                                                                                                     480                       
Capital Asset Management Fund 820           820          -       820                                                       820                                                                                                                     820                       
Culture

Bryngarw House 30             30           30               30               30                         
Pencoed Library 20             20           5                 15            20               20                         
Total Communities 124,542    67,580    56,962   14,795            48,237          4,691          (227)         (12,855)     39,846        33,824 8,056 8,448 8,073 9,597 9,600 2,792 2,276 2,030 124,542                
Chief Executive's

Corporate Capital Fund 1,924        1,924      200                              (76)                       124             200           200           200           200           200           200           200           200           200           1,924                    
ICT

Investment in ICT 527           287         240                          211               240             76                         527                                                                                                                     527                       
Digital Transformation 520           520          -       520                                          (520)           -             520                                                                                                      520                       
Digital Meeting Spaces 26             26            -       51                  26                                                         26                                                                                                                       26                         
Housing / Homelessness                                             

Housing Renewal / Empty Properties 1,000        1,000       -       99                  100                                                       100             100           100           100           100           100           100           100           100           100           1,000                    
Valleys Taskforce Empty Properties Grant 300           105         195        300                                        300                                                                                                                     300                       
Western Valley Empty Homes Pilot 260           91           169        260               260             260                       
Emergency Repair Lifetime Grant 24             24            -                                       24                         24                                                                                                                       24                         
Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG) 19,476      19,476     -       1,623             1,950            (24)                       1,926          1,950        1,950        1,950        1,950        1,950        1,950        1,950        1,950        1,950        19,476                  
Enable Grant 180            -         180                         180                          180                                                                                                                     180                       
Total Chief Executive's 24,237      23,453    784        2,168             3,567            420              -         (520)          3,467          2,770 2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250 24,237                  
Unallocated 9,055        9,055       -                         688                                                       688                                                                 477           1,725        2,055        2,055        2,055        9,055                    
Total  Expenditure 222,019    125,641  96,378   54,998            62,305          5,111           -         (13,875)     53,541        42,653 16,963 35,329 26,903 13,042 13,575 7,097 6,581 6,335 222,019                
Expected Capital Resources

P
age 94



CUMULATIVE

Total Cost
BCBC 

Funding
External 
Funding

Total Costs to 
31-3-20

Council July 
2020

New 
Approvals Vire Slippage

Revised 
2020-21 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 2026-2027 2027-2028 2028-2029 2029-2030 Total 2020 - 2030

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

FUTURE YEARS2020-2021
Total 2020-2030

General Capital Funding

General Capital Funding - General Capital Grant 25,367      25,367     -       3,997            3,997          2,397        2,397        2,397        2,397        2,397        2,194        2,397        2,397        2,397        25,367                  
General Capital Funding - Supported Borrowing 39,207      39,207     -       4,134            (148)         3,986          3,844        3,938        3,938        3,938        3,938        3,811        3,938        3,938        3,938        39,207                  
Capital Receipts - Schools 1,215        1,215       -       1,215            1,215                                                                                                                  1,215                    
Capital Receipts - General 20,153      20,153     -       12,700          148          (5,018)       7,830          11,635                   688                                                                            20,153                  
Earmarked Reserves 27,580      27,580     -       13,228          (2,474)       10,754        5,527        2,203        5,332        2,366        23             1,375                                  27,580                  
Revenue Contribution 75             75            -       40                 35               75                                                                                                                       75                         
Prudential Borrowing (Directorate Funded) 4,298        4,298       -       3,564            (1,457)       2,107          2,191                                                                                                   4,298                    
Prudential Borrowing (Corporately Funded) 4,069        4,069       -       1,769            (1,303)       466             3,603                                                                                                   4,069                    
SALIX Interest Free Loan - WG 1,417        1,417       -       1,417                                                    1,417                                                                                                                  1,417                    
Llynfi Development Site Loan - WG 2,260        2,260       -       2,246                                       (2,246)        -             2,260        2,260                    
Sub-Total General Capital Funding 125,641    125,641   -        -                44,310          35                -         (12,498)     31,847        31,457 8,538 12,355 8,701 6,358 7,380 6,335 6,335 6,335 125,641                
External Funding Approvals

WG - Highways Grant 957            -         957        151               806                         957                                                                                           957                       
WG - Other 1,344        1,344     894               330                         1,224          120                                                                                         1,344                    
WG - 21st Century Schools 34,811       -         34,811   971               971             239           2,230        17,638      13,241      492                                                  34,811                  
WG - Enable Grant 180            -         180                         180             180                                                                                                                     180                       
WG - Safe Routes in Communities 222            -         222                         222             222                                                                                                                     222                       
WG - Porthcawl Revetment 24              -         24          24                 24                                                                                                                       24                         
WG - Coastal Risk Mangement Program - Porthcawl 4,523         -         4,523     2,062            (562)          1,500          2,911        112           4,523                    
WG - Integrated Care Fund (ICF) 650            -         650        650               650                                                                                                                     650                       
WG - Welsh Medium Capital Grant 2,701         -         2,701     997               997             710           994                                                                                         2,701                    
WG - Infant Class Size Grant 219            -         219        219               219                                                                                                                     219                       
WG- VRP 402            -         402        402               402             402                       
WG - TRI 1,119         -         1,119     820               299             1,119          1,119                    
Westminster 30,677       -         30,677   3,977            3,977          3,128        3,128        4,504        4,505        5,722        5,713                                  30,677                  
CSC Foundry 3,577         -         3,577     113               113             175           430           443           456           470           482           762           246                        3,577                    
S106 314            -         314        265               265             49                                                                                                        314                       
Transport Grant 3,263         -         3,263                      3,263          3,263                                                                                                                  3,263                    
Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) 682            -         682        632               632             50                                                                                                        682                       
EU  9,261         -         9,261     4,616            (24)              4,592          2,749        1,531        389                                                                            9,261                    
Other 1,452         -         1,452     1,202            (815)          387             1,065                                                                                                   1,452                    
Sub-Total External Funding Approvals 96,378       -         96,378   17,995          5,076           -         (1,377)       21,694        11,196      8,425        22,974      18,202      6,684        6,195        762           246            -          96,378                  
Total Funding Available 222,019    125,641  96,378   62,305          5,111           -         (13,875)     53,541        42,653      16,963      35,329      26,903      13,042      13,575      7,097        6,581        6,335        222,019                
Funding Shortfall/(Surplus)  -            -          -        -                -              -          -            -              -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -                       

P
age 95



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C 
 

PRUDENTIAL AND OTHER INDICATORS 2020-21  
 
The Prudential Indicators are required to be set and approved by Council in accordance with 
CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities. Table 1 shows the 2019-20 
actual capital expenditure, the capital programme approved by Council on 22 July 2020 and 
the latest projection for the current financial year which has incorporated slippage of schemes 
from 2019-20 together with any new grants and contributions or changes in the profile of 
funding.  

 
Table 1: Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Expenditure  

 2019-20 
Actual 

£m 

2020-21 

Estimate 

(Council  

 Jul 20) 

£m 

2020-21 

Projection 

£m 

Council Fund services 22.822 55.954 53.061 

Investment Properties - 0.480 0.480 

TOTAL 22.822 56.434 53.541 

 
All capital expenditure must be financed, either from external sources (government grants and 
other contributions), the Council’s own resources (revenue, reserves and capital receipts) or 
net financing requirement (borrowing, leasing and Private Finance Initiative). The planned 
financing of the expenditure has been projected as follows: 
 
Table 2: Capital financing 
 

 2019-20 
Actual 

£m 

2020-21 

Estimate 

(Council  

Jul 20) 

£m 

2020-21 

Projection 

£m 

External sources 16.199 21.551 25.691 

Own resources 1.408 23.664 19.674 

Net Financing 
Requirement  

5.215 11.219 7.976 

TOTAL 22.822 56.434 53.541 

 

The net financing requirement has fallen compared to the estimate in the Capital Strategy as 
a result of the reduction in forecast spend, increase in anticipated external funding sources, 
and associated reduction in the anticipated level of Prudential Borrowing in the year.  The net 
financing requirement or ‘debt’ is only a temporary source of finance, since loans and leases 
must be repaid, and this is therefore replaced over time by other financing, usually from 
revenue which is known as the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). As well as MRP, the 
Council makes additional voluntary revenue contributions to pay off Prudential or Unsupported 
Borrowing. The total of these are shown in Table 3 below. 

Page 97



 
 
 
Table 3: Replacement of debt finance  
 

 2019-20 
Actual 

£m 

2020-21 

Estimate 

(Council  

Feb 20) 

£m 

2020-21 

Projection 

£m 

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 2.858 2.925 2.925 

Additional Voluntary Revenue Provision 1.948 1.505 1.502 

Total MRP & VRP 4.833 4.430 4.427 

Other MRP on Long term Liabilities 0.690 0.743 0.743 

Total Own Resources 5.523 5.173 5.170 

 
The Council’s cumulative outstanding amount of debt finance is measured by the Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR). This increases with new debt-financed capital expenditure and 
reduces by the MRP amount within the year. Based on the above figures for expenditure and 
financing, the Council’s estimated CFR is as follows based on the movement on capital 
expenditure at quarter 2: 

Table 4: Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement 
 

 2019-20 
Actual 

£m 

2020-21 
Estimate 

£m 

2020-21 
Projection 

£m 
Capital Financing Requirement    
Opening CFR excluding PFI & other 
liabilities 

 
155.084 

 
155.893 

 
155.466 

Opening PFI CFR 17.000 16.309 16.310 
Total opening CFR 172.084 172.203 171.776 
Movement in CFR excluding PFI & 
other liabilities 

 
0.382 

 
6.790 

 
3.550 

Movement in PFI CFR (0.690) (0.743) (0.743) 
Total movement in CFR (0.308) 6.047 2.806 
Closing CFR 171.776 178.249 174.582 
Movement in CFR represented by:    
Net financing need for year (Table 2 
above) 

5.215 11.219 7.976 

Minimum and voluntary revenue 
provisions 

 
(4.833) 

 
(4.430) 

 
(4.427) 

MRP on PFI and other long term 
leases (Table 3) 

 
(0.690) 

 
(0.743) 

 
(0.743) 

Total movement (0.308) 6.046 2.806  
 
 

The capital borrowing need (Capital Financing Requirement) has not been fully funded with 
loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow has been used 

Page 98



as a temporary measure. This is known as Internal Borrowing. Projected levels of the Council’s 
total outstanding debt, which comprises of borrowing, PFI and Other Long Term Liabilities, are 
shown below compared with the Capital Financing Requirement:-    
 
 
Table 5: Prudential Indicator: Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement 
 

 2019-20 
Actual 

£m 

2020-21 

Estimate 

(Council 
Feb 20) 

£m 

2020-21 

Projection 

£m 

Debt (incl. PFI & leases) 116.867 117.867 113.367 

Capital Financing 
Requirement 

171.776 178.249 174.582 

 
Statutory guidance is that debt should remain below the capital financing requirement, except 
in the short-term. As can be seen, the Council expects to comply with this in the medium term. 
 
The Council is legally obliged to set an affordable borrowing limit (also termed the authorised 
limit for external debt) each year. In line with statutory guidance, a lower “operational 
boundary” is also set as a warning level should debt approach the limit.  Table 6 below shows 
these two limits and as the current projection for debt is £113.367 million, it is within the 
Operational Boundary. 

Table 6: Prudential Indicators: Authorised limit and operational boundary for external debt in £m 
 

 2019-20 
Actual 

£m 

2020-21 

Estimate 

(Council  

Feb 20) 

£m 

2020-21 

Projection 

£m 

Authorised limit – 
borrowing 

Authorised limit – other 
long term liabilities 

145.000 

30.000 

170.000 

30.000 

170.000 

30.000 

Authorised Limit Total 175.000 200.000 200.000 

Operational boundary – 
borrowing 

Operational boundary – 
other long term liabilities 

105.000 

 

20.000 

140.000 

 

20.000 

140.000 

 

20.000 

Operational Boundary 
Limit Total 

130.000 165.000 165.000 

    

Total Borrowing and 
Long Term Liabilities 

116.867 117.867 113.367 

 
 

Page 99



Although capital expenditure is not charged directly to the revenue budget, interest payable 
on loans and MRP are charged to revenue, offset by any investment income receivable. The 
net annual charge is known as financing costs; this is compared to the net revenue stream i.e. 
the amount funded from Council Tax, business rates and general government grants. 

Table 7: Prudential Indicator: Proportion of financing costs to net revenue stream 

 2019-20 
Actual 

£m 

2020-21 

Estimate 

(Council  

Feb 20) 

£m 

2020-21 

Projection 

£m 

Capital Financing Central 
 

6.728 6.995 6.975 

Other Financing costs  3.893 3.451 3.451 

TOTAL FINANCING COSTS 
 

10.821 10.446 10.426 

Proportion of net revenue stream 3.92% 3.85% 3.84% 

 

This shows that in 2019-20, 3.92% of our net revenue income was spent paying back the costs 
of capital expenditure.  The estimate for 2020-21 is 3.84% which is in-line with the approved 
Capital Strategy. 

Page 100



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO COUNCIL

 21 OCTOBER 2020   

REPORT OF THE CHIEF OFFICER LEGAL, HR AND REGULATORY SERVICES

INFORMATION REPORT FOR NOTING

1. Purpose of Report .

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Council of the Information Reports for noting 
which have been published since its last scheduled meeting.

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities.

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being objective 
under the  Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015:- 

   
 Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all its resources (financial, physical, 

human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as possible and 
support the development of resources throughout the community that can help 
deliver the Council’s priorities. 

3. Background.

3.1 At a previous meeting of Council, it was resolved to approve a revised procedure for the 
presentation to Council of Information Reports for noting.

4. Current situation / proposal.                                                                     

4.1 Information Reports

The following information report has been published since the last meeting of Council:-    

Title Date Published

Urgent Delegated Decisions                                                     14 October 2020

4.2 Availability of Documents

The document has been circulated to Elected Members electronically via 
Email and placed on the BCBC website. It is available from the date of publication. 

5. Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules.

5.1 This procedure has been adopted within the procedure rules of the Constitution.

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.1 There are no negative equality implications arising from this report.

Page 101

Agenda Item 9



  
7. Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications 

7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 
report.  It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report.

8. Financial Implications.

8.1 There are no financial implications regarding this report. 

9. Recommendation.

9.1 That Council acknowledges the publication of the document listed in this report.

K Watson
Chief Officer Legal, HR and Regulatory Services & Monitoring Officer
8 October 2020 

Contact Officer: Andrew Rees  
Democratic Services Manager  

Telephone: (01656) 643147
 Email: cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk

Postal address: Democratic Services
Legal and Regulatory Services
Civic Offices
Angel Street 
Bridgend 
CF31 4WB

Background documents:  None.  

Page 102

mailto:cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk


BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

INFORMATION REPORT TO COUNCIL 

21 OCTOBER 2020   

REPORT OF THE CHIEF OFFICER LEGAL, HR AND REGULATORY SERVICES

URGENT DELEGATED DECISIONS

1. Purpose of report

1.1 To report to Council two delegated decisions executed as a matter of urgency under 
Scheme A1.1 of the Scheme of Delegation of Functions.

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities.

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 
objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015:-  

1. Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focussed on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough. 

2. Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - 
taking steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or 
dependent on the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and 
communities to build resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to 
have active, healthy and independent lives.

3. Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently 
as possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community 
that can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.

3.        Background

3.1 Decisions taken as a matter of urgency must be reported to the next available 
meeting of Council in accordance with Paragraph 18 of the Overview & Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules which are to be found at Part 4 of the Constitution.

4. Current situation / proposal.

4.1     The urgent decisions taken and therefore by-passing the call-in procedure (as set 
out in paragraph 19 of Part 4 Rules of Procedure within the Constitution), are 
summarised below:-

          Scheme A 1.1 

Page 103



          EFS-EDSU-20-140 – To seek approval to suspend relevant parts of the Contract 
Procedure Rules to competitively tender and enter into a Contract with Capital Law 
for the provision of legal services to schools.

          CE-HR-20-413 – To seek approval to suspend relevant parts of the Contract 
Procedure Rules to re-tender and renew the Inter Authority Agreement with Powys 
County Council for the provision of Disclosure and Barring Checks (Exempt 
Delegated Power).
                                 

5. Effect upon policy framework & procedure rules

5.1 This report has no effect on the Council’s Policy Framework and Procedure Rules.  

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.1 There are no negative equality implications arising from this report.  

7. Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications

7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 
report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts 
upon the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report.

8. Financial implications

8.1 There are no financial implications relating to the report.  

9. Recommendation

9.1 It is recommended that Council notes the report.  

K Watson
Chief Officer Legal, HR and Regulatory Services & Monitoring Officer
October 2020 

Contact Officer: Mark Anthony Galvin
Senior Democratic Services Officer – Committees 

Telephone: (01656) 643148

E-mail: mark.galvin@Bridgend.gov.uk

Postal Address: Democratic Services, Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 
4WB

Background documents: The Council’s Scheme of Delegation 

Page 104

mailto:mark.galvin@bridgend.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	6 Cyflwyniad Cymoedd I'r Arfordir  & Rhaglen o Gyflwyniadau i'r Dyfodol i'r Cyngor
	7 Adroddiad Blynyddol 2019-20
	Appendix A ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

	8 Diweddariad Rhaglen Gyfalaf - Chwarter 2 2020-21
	Appendix A - Capital Monitoring Q2 2020-2021
	Appendix B - Capital Programme 2020-2030
	Appendix C Prudential Indicators Q2 2020-21

	9 Adroddiad Gwybodaeth i'w Nodi
	Urgent Delegated Decision Updated


